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PRODUCT RANGE

PE Compounds

Silane Grafted XLPE Compound upto 1. 1KV.

(LT /LT ABC/FR/AMBIENT CURE)

Silane Grafted XLPE Compound for MV upto 36KV.
XLPE Compound for CCV Line upto 66KV.

PE Sheathing and Insulation

Semi-Conductive Compounds

HFFR Compounds

PVC Compounds
Insulation Sheathing Speciality Grades : FRLS Anti Termite Anti
Rodent Oil Resistant Grades Auto Harness Cable Grades Data and
Communication Cable Grades ROHS & REACH Compliant Grades

Filled Compounds
Calcium Carbonate and Talc filled in PE, PP and HDPE

Master Batches
Colour Master Batches - 1000 shades to choose from
Speciality Master Batches - UV Antioxidant Processing Aid Optical Brightner etc.

Footwear Compounds
PVC TPR NBR

Pipe Compounds
PE PEX

Engineering Plastics
Nylon - Glass & Mineral Filled PP - Glass & Mineral Filled
ABS Compound PC Compound

Upcycling
LDPE LLDPE/ PP/ granules and Agglomerates

We service customer in
Algeria, Argentina, Brazil, Bangladesh, Croatia, Egypt, Saudi
Arabia, South Africa, Srilanka,India, Nepal, Oman, Portugal, UAE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Narrindra Suranna

Mr. Narrindra Suranna, aged 57 years, is a B.Com (Hons.), and L.L.B from Calcutta University. Currently, he
is holding the position of Chairman & Managing Director ofthe Company. He has been associated with the
Company since inception. He has got wide experience in Plastic Industry. Due to his effective leadership,
the Company has been able to achieve stupendous growth.

Rajesh Kothari

Mr.Kothari,aged 55years, a Graduate (B.Com) from Rajasthan University, Aimer, has morethan 27 years
ofexperienceinthe areas of marketing, after sale service and marketresearch. He started his careerinthe
year 1985with KanoriaChemicals & Industries Limited. He hasbeenassociated with Kkalpanasince 1997.

Pranab Ranjan Mukherjee

Dr. Pranab Ranjan Mukherjee aged 73 Years, is a Gold Medalistin M.sc and has done his Ph.D from L.L.T,
Kharagpur. He has five years of Academic Research Experience in the fields of Syntheticand Mechanistic
Organic Chemistry. He started his careerinthe year 1975 atINCAB Industries Limited as General Manager
(Works). He also served as Director (Operations) at Polylink Polymers India Limited and Siechem Industries,
Puduchery . He received various awards in his long career. He has been associated with Kkalpana since
2009 and currently holding the position of Whole Time Director. He has over 40 years of Experience in
plastic and polymers Industries.

Dev Krishna Surana

Mr. Dev Krishna Surana, aged 26 years, is B.Com (Hons). He has also done MSC-Management for
Business Excellence—from UKand MBA(CAM)from USA. His key skills are projectmanagement, Human
Resource, Administration and Information Technology. He has been associated with KKalpana in various
projects and was taken on the Board of Directors w.e.f. 11.02.2019.

Ramakant Mishra

Mr. Mishra , aged about 62 years, F.C.S, F.C.M.A and MBA, has more than 37 years of experience in
corporate ,Secretarial and Financial matters of various Companies. He Joined onthe Board of Kkalpanain
September, 2014 as an Independent Director.

Mamta Binani

Mrs.Binani, aged about46 years, a Fellow Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI),
has 18 years of experience in corporate consultation & advisory, covering Due Diligence, Secretarial &
Legalfunctions. She has beenthe firstlady Chairperson (easternregion) of (ICSI) and has held the post of
Presidentof ICSI. She also serves IndependentDirectorshipin various Companies. She Joined the Board
of Kkalpana in September, 2014 as an Independent Director.

Samir Kumar Dutta

Mr. Dutta, aged about 75 years, is a Graduate in science from Calcutta University and a Fellow Member
of the Institute of Cost Accountants of India (ICAl). He has over 30 years of experience in finance and
additionally 10 years of experience in corporate consultation & advisory, covering Cost Audit and Tax
matters. He Joined the Board of Kkalpana as an Independent Director in June, 2017.

Ramya Hariharan

Mrs. Ramya Hariharan, aged 40 years, is a qualified Company Secretary and LLB. She has more than 16
years ofexperienceindealing withgeneral corporate matters, mergers and acquisitions, projects, banking
andfinance andinsolvency matters. Sheis the partnerin charge ofthe eastern region of areputed national
law firm. She Joined the Board of Kkalpana in February, 2019 as an Additional Director.




Chairman’s

Statement
Dear Shareholders,

Dear Shareholders,

| take the opportunity of welcoming you to the 34" Annual General Meeting of your company. The Annual Reportand
the Board’s Report for the year ended 31stMarch, 2019 are with you. I hope you must have glanced through them.

Global economic growth remained subdued at 3.6% in 2018 as against 3.8% in 2019. The year 2018was impacted
by weaker performance in the European Union and China. As a consequence thereof, global trade also weakened
towards the middle 0f2018, partly due to impact of tariff war between United States of America and Chinaand higher
energy prices.

Indian economy remained the fastest growing major economy in the world in 2018-2019. The Gross Domestic Product
was 6.8%, driven by strong private consumption growth at 8.1%.

However, due to economic weakness in Europe and China, India cannot remainimmune. The Indian economy has
too, started slowing down. This will have pernicious adverse impact on a number of sectors, particularly auto, steel,
reality and mining.

In light of the foregoing, your company has started taking effective steps to safeguard the topline and bottomline of
the company. In this regard, you should be happy to note that your company recognizes that continuous innovation
across products, processes and systems will be the springboard to catapult your company to higher profits and
growth. Yourdirectors are confidentthatthese steps will protect your company from the adverse impact of slowdown
in Indian economy.

The company’s netrevenue forthe yearended 31stMarch, 2019 stood atRs. 2020.83 Crores as againstRs. 1735.77
Crores for the Financial Year 2017-18. Profit after tax, for the year under review, stands at Rs. 25.62 Crores, as
against Rs. 21.97 Crores in the previous financial year. The Company’s EPSis Rs. 2.72 as against Rs. 2.34 in the
previous financial year.

| am proud to inform the shareholders that your company has a dominant place in plastic industry in India. The
products of your company are well received by the consumers. Your company has also made inroads in foreign
markets.

Your directors recommended a dividend of 12% per equity share of Rs. 2/- each for the Financial Year ended 31stMarch,
2019. The payoutis expectedtobe Rs. 2,71,73,752.28 (inclusive of dividend distribution tax of Rs.45,96,249.08).
Letus all hope that the directors of your company will leave no stones unturned for upward journey of operation and
revenue.

To conclude, | extend my appreciation and gratitude to all stakeholders of the company alongwith the valued
customers, committed employees and directors for their persistence support and unstinted trust. Yourdirectors are
also grateful to financial institutions for their continued co-operation and guidance.

Thankyou.
With Best Regards,
@
Date: 28" May, 2019 Narrindra Suranna
Kolkata DIN:00060127

Chairman & Managing Director



Five Years at a Glance Rs. In Crores

Year 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018  2018-2019
Net Revenue 1729.26 1876.58 2137.08 1765.33 2009.03
PAT 04.41 11.39 26.28 21.97 25.62
EPS (Rs.) 0.37 1.21 2.79 2.34 2.72
Net Worth 230.31 241.75 274.01 295.80 318.53
Dividend (%) 0 0 0 12 12
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KKALPANAINDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 34" (Thirty-fourth) Annual General Meeting of the Members of
KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED will be held at Gyan Manch, 11, Pretoria Street, Kolkata —
700 071 on Friday, the 27" day of September, 2019, at 10.00 A.M. to transact the following Businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the standalone and consolidated Audited Balance Sheets as at 31
March, 2019, the Statement of Profit & Loss Accounts and Cash Flow Statements for the year ended
as on that date and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

To declare dividend of Rs. 0.24p per Equity Share of Rs. 2/- each (i.e @ 12%)

To appoint a Director in place of Dr. Pranab Ranjan Mukherjee (DIN 00240758), who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Approval of the Remunerati
Year ended 31* March, 2020

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

A

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s)
or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the Company hereby approves the remuneration
of Rs.25000/- plus taxes, as applicable, and out-of-pocket expenses payable to M/s. D.Sabyasachi
& Co., Practicing Cost Accountant, who are appointed as Cost Auditors of the Company, as
recommended by the Audit Committee of the Board and also the Board of Directors of the Company,
at their respective meetings held on 28" May, 2019, to conduct Audit of the cost accounting records
pertaining to plastic compounds and other related manufacturing items of the Company for the year
ending 31%*March, 2020.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby authorized to
do all such acts ,things, deeds and matters which are connected therewith or incidental thereto and
take all necessary steps, as may be necessary, proper or expedient, to give effect to this resolution.”

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mrs. Ramya Hariharan (DIN 06928511), who was appointed by the Board of
Directors, pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, at their
respective meetings held on 11" February, 2019, as an Additional Director of the Company, with effect
from 11" February, 2019, under provisions of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and
the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 read with Regulation 17 of
SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Article 122 of the Articles
of Association of the Company, who holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting but who
is eligible for appointment as Director and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice, in
writing, from a Member under Section 160(1) of the Act and Article 142(1) of the Articles of Association
of the Company, signifying his intention to propose the candidature of Mrs. Ramya Hariharan (DIN
06928511) for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150 and 152 and all other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule IV to the Act (including
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KKALPANAINDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

any statutory modification(s) or reenactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, Regulation
17 and other applicable regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Article 123 and Article 124 of the Articles of
Association of the Company and as per other relevant Articles of the Articles of Association, Mrs.
Ramya Hariharan (DIN 06928511), who has submitted a declaration pursuant to Section 149 (7) of
the Act and Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations that she meets the criteria of independence
under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations, and who is
eligible for appointment as an Independent Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent
Director of the Company for a period of five (5) consecutive years up to the fifth consecutive AGM
of the of the Company to be held in the year 2024, whose period of office shall not be liable to
determination by retirement of directors by rotation.”

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:

‘RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board of Directors and provisions of Section 196,197 and 198 and other applicable
provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), read with Schedule V to the Act and the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, including any
statutory modification(s) or reenactment thereof, for the time being in force, and all other applicable
guidelines relating to managerial remuneration, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, from
time to time, and subject to such other approvals, as may be necessary, and as per Articles 126(1),
126(3) and 145 of the Articles of Association of the Company and as per other relevant Articles of
the Articles of Association, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to
the reappointment of Dr. Pranab Ranjan Mukherjee (DIN — 00240758) as Whole-Time-Director of
the Company, for a period of 1 (One) year with effect from 01 October, 2019, upon the terms and
conditions as are set out in the Statement annexed hereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the
“Board”, which term shall be deemed to include any Committee thereof and any person authorized
by the Board in this behalf) shall, in accordance with the statutory limits/ approvals, as may be
applicable for the time being in force, be at full liberty to revise/alter/modify/amend/change the terms
and conditions of the reappointment and remuneration, from time to time, as may be agreed to by the
Board and Dr. Pranab Ranjan Mukherjee (DIN: 00240758), subject to the approval of Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company, provided, however, that
the remuneration payable to Dr.Pranab Ranjan Mukherjee (DIN: 00240758) shall be within the limits
set out in section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V to the said Act, or any
amendments thereto or any modification(s) or statutory re-enactment(s) thereof and /or any rules or
regulations framed there under.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby authorized to
do all such acts, things, deeds and matters which are connected therewith or incidental thereto and take
all necessary steps, as may be necessary, proper or expedient, to give effect to this special resolution.”

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Dev Krishna Surana (DIN 08357094) , who was appointed by the Board of
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KKALPANAINDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

Directors as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 11" February, 2019, pursuant
to the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, at its meeting held on 11"
February, 2019 and under provisions of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Article 122 of the Articles
of Association of the Company, who holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and
is eligible for appointment as Director and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in
writing from a Member under Section 160 of the Act and Article 142(1) of the Articles of Association
of the Company, signifying his intention to propose the candidature of Mr. Dev Krishna Surana for the
office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in accordance with the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors, vide Resolution by Circulation dated 20" May,
2019, duly passed on 22" May, 2019, and provisions of Section 196,197 and 198 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), read with Schedule V to the Act and the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, including any
statutory modification(s) or reenactment thereof, for the time being in force, and all other applicable
guidelines relating to managerial remuneration, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, from
time to time, and subject to such other approvals, as may be necessary, and as per Articles 126(1),
126(3) and 145 of Articles of Association of the Company and other relevant Articles of the Articles of
Association, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the appointment
of Mr. Dev Krishna Surana (DIN - 08357094) as Whole-Time-Director of the Company, for a period
of 5 (Five) year with effect from 28" May, 2019, upon the terms and conditions as are set out in the
Statement annexed hereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the
“Board”, which term shall be deemed to include any Committee thereof and any person authorized
by the Board in this behalf) shall, in accordance with the statutory limits/ approvals, as may be
applicable for the time being in force, be at full liberty to revise/alter/modify/amend/change the terms
and conditions of the reappointment and remuneration, from time to time, as may be agreed to by
the Board and Mr. Dev Krishna Surana (DIN: 08357094), subject to the approval of Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company, provided, however, that the
remuneration payable to Mr.Dev Krishna Surana (DIN: 08357094) shall be within the limits set out in
section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V to the said Act, or any amendments
thereto or any modification(s) or statutory re-enactment(s) thereof and /or any rules or regulations
framed there under.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby authorized to
do all such acts, things, deeds and matters which are connected therewith or incidental thereto and take
all necessary steps, as may be necessary, proper or expedient, to give effect to this special resolution.”

Registered Office: By Order of the Board of Directors
2B, Pretoria Street, For Kkalpana Industries (India) Limited
Kolkata-700071

Date: 28" Day of May, 2019 Tanvi Panday (ACS- 31176)
Place: Kolkata Company Secretary
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KKALPANAINDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes:

1.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (THE
‘MEETING” OR “AGM”) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A
POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT TO BE A MEMBER
OF THE COMPANY. MEMBERS ARE REQUESTED TO NOTE THAT PURSUANT TO SECTION
105 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, A PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF
MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING 50 AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN 10%
OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. IN CASE,
A PROXY IS PROPOSED TO BE APPOINTED BY A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN 10% OF
THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS, THEN SUCH
PROXY SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER. IF A
PROXY IS APPOINTED FOR MORE THAN 50 MEMBERS, THE PROXY SHALL CHOOSE ANY
FIFTY MEMBERS AND CONFIRM THE SAME TO COMPANY NOT LATER THAN 48 HOURS
BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. IN CASE, THE PROXY FAILS TO DO SO,
THE FIRST 50 PROXIES RECEIVED BY THE COMPANY SHALL BE CONSIDERED AS VALID.

THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING PROXY, DULY COMPLETED, IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE,
MUST BE DEPOSITED, AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN
48 HOURS BEFORE THE TIME OF HOLDING THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (i.,e. ON
OR BEFORE 25™ SEPTEMBER, 2019, 10:00A.M. IST). A PROXY FORM FOR THE AGM IS
ENCLOSED.

Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting are
required to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution, pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies
Act, 2013, or upload it on the e-voting portal (for e-voting), authorizing their representative to
attend and/or vote, on their behalf, at the AGM.

For convenience of the members and proper conduct of the meeting, entry to the meeting venue will
be regulated by Attendance Slip. The members/proxies/authorized representatives are requested
to bring duly filled attendance slip (as enclosed herewith) along with their copy of Annual Report
at the AGM and hand it over at the counter at the venue.

The Statement, pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the Special
Business to be transacted at this AGM, is annexed.

Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their respective
shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) will be available
for inspection by the members at the AGM.

The Register of Contracts and Arrangements in which the Directors are interested, maintained
under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the members at
the AGM.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard
on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, the Company
is pleased to provide to its members, facility to exercise their right to vote on all resolutions set forth
in the Notice convening the 34" Annual General Meeting(AGM), electronically, through electronic
voting (e-voting) services facilitated by the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and all
items of the business may be transacted through remote e- voting (facility to cast vote from a place
other than the venue of the AGM) services provided by National Securities Depositories Limited
(“NSDL”). Instructions and other information relating to remote e-voting are given in the notice
under note no.21.
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KKALPANAINDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

The Company shall also arrange for the physical voting by use of ballot or polling paper at the
AGM for the members who have not cast their vote through remote e-voting. Members, who cast
their votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM, may attend the meeting but will not be entitled
to cast their votes once again. In case votes are cast by such members at the meeting, then
votes cast through e-voting will only be considered. The Board of Directors of the Company has
appointed Mr. Ashok Kumar Daga, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS-2699,
C.0.P No 2948) as the Scrutinizer for this purpose.

Voting rights will be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of the Members
as on Friday, 20" September, 2019 (cut-off date). Only those Members whose names are recorded
in the Register of Members of the Company or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained
by the Depositories as on the cut-off date will be entitled to cast their votes by remote e-voting or
ballot voting at the AGM.

Incase of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in order of
names, will be entitled to vote at the meeting.

In accordance with the provisions of section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of
Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday, 21¢
September, 2019 to Friday, 27" September, 2019 (both days inclusive).

Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules
made thereunder, companies can serve Notice and Annual Report and other communication
through electronic mode to those members who have registered their e-mail addresses either
with the Company or with Depository Participant(s). Members who have not registered their e-mail
addresses may now register the same. Members holding shares in demat form are requested to
register their e-mail address with their Depository Participant(s) only. Members holding physical
shares may register their e-mail address with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the
Company. Members of the Company who have registered their e-mail address are also entitled to
receive such communication in physical form, upon sufficient prior written request.

Notice of the 34" AGM, details and instructions for remote e-voting and the Annual Report of
the Company for the year ended 31t March, 2019 along with attendance slip and proxy form
are uploaded on the Company’s website www.kkalpanagroup.com and may be accessed by the
members. The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company’s
registered office for inspection between 10:00am (IST) to 1:00pm (IST) on all working days except
Saturday upto the date of meeting and also at the venue during the meeting.

Copies of the above documents are being sent by electronic mode to the members whose email
addresses are registered with the Company/ Depository Participant(s) for communication purposes
unless any member has requested for a physical copy of the same, in writing, in advance. For
the members who have not registered their email addresses, physical copies of the aforesaid
documents are being sent by the permitted mode.

Members, holding shares in physical mode are requested to notify the change in their address /
mandate/ bank account to M/s. CB Management Services (P) Limited, P-22, Bondel Road, Kolkata
— 700 019, the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company (RTA). Members holding shares
in demat form, are requested to intimate any change in their address and/or bank mandate to
their Depository Participant(s). The Company cannot act on any request received directly from
members holding shares in demat form for any change in their particulars.

Members are requested to address all correspondences, including those on dividends, to the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, as mentioned above.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent
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16.

17.

18.

19.

Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in
electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN details to their Depository Participants
with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form
can submit their PAN details to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, M/s. CB
Management Services Pvt. Limited.

Dividend for the financial year ended 31%March, 2012, which remains unpaid or unclaimed, will
be due for transfer to Investors’ Education and Protection Fund of the Central Government (‘IEPF’)
on 03 November, 2019, pursuant to the provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013
corresponding to Section 205C of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 . In respect of the said
dividend, it will not be possible to entertain claims received by the Company after 02" November,
2019.

Members, who are yet to encash their dividend warrants for the financial year 2011-12 or any
subsequent financial year(s), are requested to correspond/ lodge their claims with the Company’s
Registrar & Share Transfer Agents without delay. The details of dividend unclaimed by the members
for the past years which have not yet been transferred to the Central Government are readily
available for view by the members on the website of the Company (www.kkalpanagroup.com), as
also on the website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (www.mca.gov.in). Further, the members
are advised to glance through the database and lodge their claim for dividend, which has remained
unclaimed, with the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified provisions relating to unpaid / unclaimed dividend
under Sections 124 and 125 of Companies, Act, 2013 and Investor Education and Protection Fund
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (including amendments from time to time).
As per these, members are requested to note that dividends that are not encashed/claimed within
seven years from the date of transfer to the Company’s Unpaid Dividend Account, will as per
Section 124 of the Act, be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). Shares
on which dividend remains unpaid/ unclaimed for seven consecutive years will be transferred to
demat account of IEPF Authority as per section 124 of the Act, and applicable rules, notifications,
if any (as amended from time to time). Hence the Company urges all the shareholders to encash/
claim their respective dividend during the prescribed period. The shareholders whose dividend/
shares are transferred to the IEPF Authority can claim their shares from the Authority by following
the Refund Procedure as detailed on the website of IEPF Authority http://iepf.gov.in/IEPFA/refund.
html.

In accordance with the aforesaid IEPF Rules, the Company has sent notice to all shareholders
whose shares are due to be transferred to the IEPF Authority and has also published newspaper
advertisement. The Company is required to transfer all shares, as above, to demat account of the
IEPF Authority, in accordance with IEPF Rules as and when notified.

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, facility for making nomination is
available for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Nomination forms can be
obtained from the Company’s Registrars and Share Transfer Agents by Members holding shares
in physical form. Members holding shares in electronic form, may obtain Nomination forms from
their respective Depository Participant.

As per the amendment made to Regulation 40 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Recquirements) Regulations 2015 by SEBI Circular No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated 8th
June, 2018, read with press release (2018 PR No. 49/2018) dated 03.12.2018, it is now mandated,
w.e.f. 15 April, 2019, that except in case of transmission or transposition of securities, requests
for effecting transfer of securities shall not be processed unless the securities are held in the
dematerialized form with a depositor. Further, as per SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOP1/
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CIR/P/2018/73 dated April 20, 2018, the Shareholders, who are still holding shares in physical
form are requested to take immediate action to demat their shares to avail easy liquidity and to
update their Bank details with the Company to enable direct credit of dividends, if any declared,
as per SEBI Regulations.

The Dividend, as recommended by the Board of Directors, if declared at the Annual General
Meeting will be credited/dispatched between 02™ October, 2019 to 26" October, 2019 to those
members or to those mandates -

a.

Whose name appear as Beneficial Owners as at the end of 20" September, 2019 in the
statements of beneficial owner furnished by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)
and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL), in respect of shares held in
electronic form and

Whose names appear as Members in Register of Members of the Company, after giving
effect to all valid share transfers/transmissions in physical form lodged with the Company/
RTA on or before the 20" September, 2019.

Process and manner for members opting for remote e-voting are as under:

The remote e-voting period commences on 24" September, 2019 (9:00 a.m) and ends
on 26" September, 2019 (5:00 pm). During this period members of the Company, holding
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 20"
September, 2019, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module
shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the
member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. The rights of members
shall be proportionate to their share of the paid-up equity share capital of the company as
on the cut-off date. E-voting rights cannot be exercised by a proxy, though corporate and
institutional shareholders shall be entitled to vote through their authorized representatives
with proof of their authorization.

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are
mentioned below:

Step 1 : Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

Step 2 : Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 11


http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

KKALPANAINDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

Details on Step 1 is mentioned below:

. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.

i R . PR

nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholders’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verification Code as
shown on the screen.
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices ie. IDEAS, you can log-in af
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using
your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or Your User ID is:

CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in demat account |8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

with NSDL. For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is

12****** then your user ID is IN30Q***12******,

b) For Members who hold shares in demat account |16 Digit Beneficiary ID
with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12*****xxrriire

then your user ID g q2%****mrrweeess

c)

For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered
with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is
101456 then user ID is 101456001***

© o~

Your password details are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast
your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’
which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial
password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox.
Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8
digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares
held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(i) If your email ID is not registered, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your postal
address [ mentioned at the bottom of Attendance Slip for the AGM, in the following format:

EVEN [ (Remote E-voting Event Number) USERID PASSWORD/PIN ]

(iii) Any person who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company after
dispatch of the notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 20th September, 2019, may obtain
the login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or RTA at rta@cbmsl.com

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. (If you are
holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL)

b) Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. (If you are holding
shares in physical mode)

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@
nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN,your name and your

registered address.
After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.
Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.
After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.
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Details on Step 2 is given below:

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting. Click on e-Voting.
Then, click on Active Voting Cycles.

2. Atter click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are
holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

3. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote.

4. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

5. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares
for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

6. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

7. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation
page.

8. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to
daga.ashok@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. They may also upload the same in
the e-voting module in their login. The scanned image of the above mentioned documents should be in
the naming format “Corporate Name EVEN NO.”

2 ltis strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to
keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful
attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to
reset the password.

3 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-
voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or
call on toll free no.: 1800-222-990 or send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in

4 You can also update your mobile no. and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which may be
used for sending future communication(s)

5 A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-voting but
shall not be allowed to vote again at the AGM

6 A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners
maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote
e-voting as well as voting at the AGM through ballot paper.

7 Mr. Ashok Kumar Daga, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS-2699, C.O.P No. 2948)
has been appointed as the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of the Company and to
scrutinize the ballot voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner

8 The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be
held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of “Ballot Paper” or “Polling Paper” for
all those members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-
voting facility.

9 The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, first count the votes cast at
the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least
two witnesses who are not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three
days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or
against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same
and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

10 The Results declared alongwith the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the
Company www.kkalpanagroup.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of
result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately
forwarded to concerned stock exchanges where the company’s shares are listed.
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22. The Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of Annual General Meeting, subject to

23.

24.

25.

26.

receipt of sufficient votes.

A route map along with prominent landmark for easy location to reach the venue of AGM is annexed
to the Notice.

We urge members to support our commitment to environment protection by choosing to receive
their shareholding communication through email. You can do this by updating your email address
with your depository participants (in case of demat holdings) or with the RTA (in case of physical
holdings)

Members desiring any information/clarification relating to the accounts and operations of the
company or intending to raise any query are requested to write to the Company atleast 10 days in
advance of the meeting, to the Company Secretary at the registered office address, so as to enable
the management to keep the information ready.

Additional Information, pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation, 2015, in respect of Directors seeking appointment / re appointment at the
AGM, is as under. Requisite declarations have been received from Directors seeking appointment/
re-appointment.

14 ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19



KKALPANAINDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / REAPPOINTMENT AT THE

FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(In Pursuance of Regulation 36(3) of SEBI Listing Regulations)

Name of Director

Mrs. Ramya Hariharan

Dr. P.R.Mukherjee (DIN

Mr. Dev Krishna Surana

Organic Reactions.

(DIN: 06928511) 00240758) (DIN: 08357094)
Date of Birth 27.08.1978 10.10.1945 31.12.1992
Date of Appointmenton |11.02.2019 01.10.2014 11.02.2019
the Board
Qualification LLB, Company Secretary B.Sc(Hons.), M.Sc (Spl|B. Com(Hons), MSc-
Organic), Ph.D in Stereo | Management for
Chemical Studies in|Buisness Excellence

(UK), MBA (CAM)-(USA)

Expertise

Mrs. Ramya Hariharan has more than
16 years of experience in dealing with
general corporate matters, mergers
and acquisitions, projects, banking and

Dr.Mukherjee has over
41 years of experience
in corporate arena
particularly, in Plastic

He has deep exposure
in project management,
particularlyin Information
Technology, marketing,

finance andinsolvency matters. Sheis | and Polymer Industries.| Human Resource &
also a qualified Company Secretary. administration and
She is the partner in charge of the operations
eastern region of a reputed national
law firm.
Directorships held in Tayo Rolls Ltd. None None
other public companies | Al Champdany Industries Ltd.
including private SMIFS Capital Markets Ltd.
companies which are The Indian Steel and Wire Products
subsidiaries of public Ltd.
companies # Neo Metaliks Ltd.
Visa Energy Ventures Ltd.
Memberships / Member of Audit Committee in Tayo| None None
Chairmanships of Rolls Ltd., Al Champdany Industries
Committees across other | Ltd.,
companies in which he/ | SMIFS Capital Markets Ltd.,
she is a Director The Indian Steel and Wire Products
Ltd., Neo Metaliks Ltd. , Visa Energy
Ventures Ltd., Bhubaneswar Power
Pvt Ltd.
Memberships / Member of Nomination and|Chairman of CSR|None
Chairmanships of Remuneration Committee and | Committee and member
Committees in the Stakeholders Relationship Committee | of Stakeholders

Directors

company Relationship Committee

Shareholding in the NIL NIL 683850 (0.73%)-
Company Promoter
Relationship with other | NIL NIL Son of Chairman and

Managing Director.

# Excludes Directorships in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Government
Companies

Registered Office:
2B, Pretoria Street,
Kolkata-700071

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Kkalpana Industries (India) Limited

Date: 28" Day of May, 2019
Place: Kolkata

Tanvi Panday (ACS- 31176)
Company Secretary
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Statement pursuant to Section 102 of The Companies Act, 2013
ltem No.4

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, at its meeting held on 28" May, 2019, has
approved the appointment and recommended the remuneration of M/s D.Sabyasachi & Co, Cost Auditors
for conducting the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year 2019-20.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the relevant provisions of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration of Rs. 25,000/- plus taxes, as applicable, and out
of pocket expenses as payable to the Cost Auditors, was finally recommended by the Board, on the
recommendation of Audit Committee, at their respective meetings held on 28" May, 2019. The shareholders
of the Company are requested to confirm and approve the said remuneration.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Special
Business under ltem No. 4 of the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting, for approval of
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 31*March, 2020.

The Board recommends the resolution No. 4 of the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting for
approval by the members.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, and their relatives are, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the aforesaid resolution except to the extent of their
respective shareholdings in the Company. The Proposed Special Business does not relate to or affects
any other company (financially or otherwise).

ltem No.5

Based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors
appointed Mrs. Ramya Hariharan (DIN 06928511) as Additional Director of the Company, in the
recommended category “Independent Director”, with effect from 11" February, 2019, pursuant to the
provisions of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 read with Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Listing Regulations) and Article 122 of the Articles of Association
of the Company.

As an additional director, Mrs. Ramya Hariharan (DIN 0692851 1) will hold office only upto the date of this
Annual General Meeting and is eligible to be appointed as Director. The Company has, in terms of Section
160(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Article 142(1) of Articles of Association of the Company, received,
in writing, a notice from member, proposing her candidature for the office of Director.

Mrs. Ramya Hariharan (DIN 06928511) has also given declaration to the Board, pursuant to Section
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, that she meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and has also given her consent to act as Director.

Mrs. Ramya Hariharan (DIN 06928511), aged 40 years, is qualified company secretary and has also
completed LLB. She has over 16 years of experience in dealing with general corporate matters, mergers
and acquisitions, projects, banking and finance and insolvency matters. She is also partner in-charge
for the eastern region in a reputed national law firm. She is also on Board of various listed and unlisted
companies. The Board is of the opinion that she is a person of integrity, possesses the relevant expertise/
experience and also fulfills the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for appointment as Independent Director
and is independent of the management and that her induction into the Board will be of benefit to the
Company and that it will lend an independent and fair view to the decision making process.
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Mrs. Ramya Hariharan is not related to any other Director of the Company. A brief profile of Mrs. Ramya
Hariharan (DIN: 06928511), including nature of expertise, is provided in the annexure to the Notice,
pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Given her experience and the Company’s adherence to policy on Board Diversity, the Board considers it
desirable and in the interest of the Company to have Mrs. Ramya Hariharan (DIN: 06928511) on the Board
of Directors of the Company and accordingly recommends the appointment of Mrs. Ramya Hariharan
(DIN: 06928511) as Independent Director of the Company for a period of five(5) consecutive years, up to
the fifth consecutive AGM of the of the Company to be held in the year 2024, whose period of office shall
not be liable to determination by retirement of directors by rotation, as proposed in the resolution no. 5 of
the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting, for approval by members.

The terms and conditions of appointment of the above Director shall be open for inspection by the Members,
at the Registered Office of the Company, between 10:00am (IST) to 1:00pm (IST) on any working day
except Saturday upto the date of meeting and also at the venue during the meeting.

Save and except Mrs. Ramya Hariharan (DIN: 06928511) , none of the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company, and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise in the aforesaid resolution except to the extent of their respective shareholdings in the Company.
The Proposed Special Business does not relate to or affects any other company (financial or otherwise).

ltem No.6

On recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on 11" February,
2019, the Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on 28" May, 2019, approved re-
appointment of Dr. Pranab Ranjan Mukherjee (DIN —00240758), aged 73 years, as Whole- Time- Director
of the Company for a period of 1 (One) year with effect from 01 October, 2019, on the following main
terms and conditions:

1. The appointment shall be for a period of One year commencing from 01 October, 2019 as Whole —
Time Director.

2. Dr. Pranab Ranjan Mukherjee will be liable to retire by rotation while he continues as a Whole Time
Director of the Company.

3. As Whole time Director, Dr. Mukherjee shall perform such duties and exercise such powers as may be
entrusted to him, from time to time, by the Managing Director and /or the Board of Directors.

4. In consideration of the performance of his duties to the Company, Dr. Mukherjee shall be entitled to the
following remuneration:

A.  Remuneration:

Salary of Rs. 1,42,857/- (Rupees One Lac Forty Two Thousand Eight Hundred Fifty Seven only) per
month.

B. Perquisites:
I.  One month’s salary as Ex-gratia per year.

Il. One month’s paid leave per year, which may be encashable in part or in full, as per the Company
Rules.

C. Gratuity:
As per Company Rules.

5. Minimum Remuneration:
Notwithstanding anything herein contained, where in any financial year during the continuance of the
tenure of office of the Whole-Time Director the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate,
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the Company will pay remuneration by way of salary and perquisites, as specified above, as minimum
remuneration, subject to the ceiling specified in Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 or any
amendments thereto.

6. Within the overall ceiling on managerial remuneration prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,
or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to
as the “Board” which term shall include any Committee thereof and/or any person authorized by the
Board of Directors in this regard) shall in accordance within the statutory limits/ approvals as may
be applicable for the time being in force, be at full liberty to add, alter/ revise/modify/amend/change
or vary any of the foregoing terms and conditions of the appointment and remuneration, benefits or
perquisites, from time to time to which Dr. Pranab Ranjan Mukherjee may be entitled and as may be
agreed to by the Board of Directors and Dr. Pranab Ranjan Mukherjee

Mr. Mukherjee (aged 73 years) has been associated with the Company since 2009 and has over 40 years’
experience in Plastic and Polymer Industry. He was appointed as Whole Time Director (Technical) for a
period of 3(three) years from 01.10.2014 to 30.09.2017 and thereafter for a period of 1 year from 01.10.2017
to 30.09.2018 and as Whole Time Director from 01.10.2018 to 30.09.2019. Pursuant to provisions of
Section 196(3), the company cannot appoint/continue the appointment of a Whole Time Director who has
attained the age of 70 years unless such appointment is made by passing special resolution. The Board
of Directors of your company is of the opinion that his employment with your company will be technically
and financially a sound proposition.

Dr. Mukherjee is not related to any other Director of the Company. A brief resume of Mr. Mukherjee as
required under Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 is set out as Annexure to this Notice.

The special resolution, being Iltem No. 6 of the notice convening the Annual General Meeting, is intended
for the purpose.

The Board of Directors recommend the special resolution for approval of members and accordingly the
approval of the members is sought pursuant to the provisions of Section 196,197,198 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V thereto and rules made thereunder and
relevant provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, for the above reappointment of Dr.
Mukherjee as Whole — Time- Director of the Company and payment of remuneration to him.

Save and except Dr. Mukherjee (DIN 00240758), none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company, and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the
aforesaid resolution except to the extent of their respective shareholdings in the Company. The Proposed
Special Business does not relate to or affects any other company (financial or otherwise).

ltem No.7

The Board of Directors had appointed Mr. Dev Krishna Surana (DIN 08357094) as Additional Director
of the Company with effect from 11" February, 2019, pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014 and Article 122 of the Articles of Association of the Company.

As an additional director, Mr. Dev Krishna Surana (DIN 08357094) will hold office only upto the date of this
Annual General Meeting. In terms of Section 161 and applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
Mr. Dev Krishna Surana (DIN 08357094) being eligible has offered himself for appointment, is proposed
to be appointed a director of the Company. Further, On recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee vide Resolution by Circulation dated 20" May, 2019, duly passed on 22" May, 2019, the Board
of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on 28" May, 2019, approved the appointment of Mr. Dev
Krishna Surana (DIN: 08357094), aged 26 years, as Whole- Time- Director of the Company for a period of
5 (One) year with effect from 28" May, 2019, on the following main terms and conditions:
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. The appointment shall be for a period of 5 years commencing from 28" May, 2019 as Whole — Time
Director, subject to approval of members of the Company.

. Mr. Dev Krishna Surana will be liable to retire by rotation while he continues as a Whole — Time Director
of the Company.

. As Whole time Director, Mr. Dev Krishna Surana shall perform such duties and exercise such powers
as are entrusted to him, from time to time, by the Managing Director and /or the Board of Directors.

. He shall report to the Managing Director and be in charge of Marketing, Information Technology (IT),
General Administration and Human Resource (HR) functionalities of the Company.

. In consideration of the performance of his duties to the Company, Mr. Dev Krishna Surana (DIN-
08357094) shall be entitled to the following remuneration:

A Salary:

Rs. 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lac only) per month in the scale of Rs. 1,00,000- Rs. 25,000-Rs.
2,00,000.

The annual increment, which will be merit based, will be effective from 015t April each year, and the
same will be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors
of the Company.

B. Perquisites:
I.  One month’s salary as Ex-gratia per year.

Il. One month’s paid leave per year, which may be encashable in part or in full, as per the Company
Rules.

C. Gratuity:
As per Company Rules.
. Minimum Remuneration:

Notwithstanding anything herein contained, where in any financial year during the continuance of the
tenure of office of the Whole-Time Director, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate,
the Company will pay remuneration by way of salary and perquisites, as specified above, as minimum
remuneration, subject to the ceiling specified in Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 or any
amendments thereto.

. Within the overall ceiling on managerial remuneration prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,
or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to
as the “Board” which term shall include any Committee thereof and/or any person authorized by the
Board of Directors in this regard) shall in accordance within the statutory limits/ approvals as may
be applicable for the time being in force, be at full liberty to add, alter/ revise/modify/amend/change
or vary any of the foregoing terms and conditions of the appointment and remuneration, benefits or
perquisites, from time to time to which Mr. Dev Krishna Surana may be entitled and as may be agreed
to by the Board and Mr. Dev Krishna Surana.

Mr. Dev Krishna Surana (aged 26 years) has been associated with the Company in a number of projects
in the past and has been working closely with various departments of the Company. He has been actively
involved in marketing of company’s products and has represented the company in various international
marketing events and seminars. He holds experience in Human Resource, Administration and Operational
matters and has been the forerunner in implementation of various Information Technology projects in
the company on PAN India basis. The Board of Directors of your company is of the opinion that his
employment with your company will be technically and financially a sound proposition.
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Mr. Dev Krishna Surana is son of Mr. Narrindra Surana, Chairman and Managing Director of the Company
and is also a promoter of the Company. A brief resume of Mr. Surana as required under Regulation 36 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is set out as Annexure to this
Notice.

The special resolution, being Item No. 7 of the notice convening the Annual General Meeting is intended
for the purpose.

The Board of Directors recommend the special resolution for approval of members and accordingly the
approval of the members is sought pursuant to the provisions of Section 196,197,198 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V thereto and relevant provisions of the Articles
of Association of the Company, for the above appointment of Mr. Dev Krishna Surana (DIN: 08357094) as
Whole — Time- Director of the Company and payment of remuneration to him.

Save and except Mr. Dev Krishna Surana (DIN 08357094), and Mr. Narrindra Suranna (DIN: 00060127),
Chairman and Managing Director and their relatives none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company, and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the
aforesaid resolution except to the extent of their respective shareholdings in the Company. The Proposed
Special Business does not relate to or affects any other company (financially or otherwise).

Registered Office: By Order of the Board of Directors
2B Pretoria Street For Kkalpana Industries (India) Limited
Kolkata-700 071

28" May, 2019 Tanvi Panday (ACS 31176)
Place: Kolkata Company Secretary
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Directors’ Report

Dear Members,

KKALPANAINDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

On behalf of the Board of Directors, it is our pleasure to present the 34" Annual Report on the affairs of the
Company together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2019.

Summarized Financial Results

(Rs. In Lacs)

Standalone Consolidated
2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18

Net Turnover and other Income 202082.84| 177352.37| 199479.35| 176397.94
Profit before Depreciation, Interest & Tax 11433.63| 10702.09| 11,764.11 10539.04
Less : Depreciation 1647.35 1725.66 1667.14 1732.91
Interest 5743.98 5526.60 5994.39 5526.62
Profit before Tax 4042.29 3449.83 4102.58 3279.51
Less: Exceptional Iltem - - - -
Less : Provision for Tax 1480.54 1252.59 1501.24 1252.59
Profit After Tax 2561.75 2197.24 2601.34 2026.91
Add: Profit brought forward from previous year. 18144.26 15947.02 18022.7 15978.32
Non — Controlling Interest 0 0 1.69 17.47
Amount Available for Appropriation 20706.01 18144.26] 20625.73 18022.70
Appropriation

Proposed final dividend on Equity Shares (225.78) 0 (225.78) 0
Corporate Dividend Tax (45.96) 0 (45.96) 0
Transfer to General Reserve 0 0 0 0
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet 20434.27 18144.26|] 20353.98 18022.70

Indian Accounting Standards

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide its notification in the Official Gazette dated 16" February,
2015, notified the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) applicable to certain classes of companies. IndAS
has replaced the existing Indian GAAP prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. For your Company, Ind AS became applicable from 1%
April, 2017 and the financials for Financial Year 2017-18 and 2018-19 have been prepared accordingly.

Industrial Scenario

Your directors feel that your company’s approach in operational areas and particularly in regard to supply
chain should be judicious. The year 2019-20 and also 2020-2021 are very challenging, particularly, because
world economic scenario will definitely be gloomy and India will also face headwinds in its economy.

Operations and State of Company’s Affairs

During the year under review, your Company achieved total revenue of Rs. 2,020.83 Crores as against
total revenue of Rs. 1,773.52 Crores in the previous financial year. The Profit after Tax is Rs. 25.62 Crores
as against Rs. 21.97 Crores in the previous year.

Future Prospects

Your directors are of the firm view that your company’s Research and Development, which is of a very
high standard, will enable your company to make inroads in new markets, both domestic and international.
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Dividend

Your directors have pleasure in recommending payment of dividend @ 12% (Rs. 0.24p per equity share
of face value Rs. 2/- each) to the equity shareholders of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31¢
March, 2019. The total outgo will be Rs. 271.74 lacs inclusive of Dividend Distribution Tax.

Transfer of Amount to Investor Education and Protection Fund

Dividend for the financial year ended 31%March, 2012, which remains unpaid or unclaimed for a period of
seven years, will be due for transfer to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) on 03 November,
2019. Members who have not yet enchased their dividend warrants for the financial year ended 31¢
March, 2012 or any subsequent financial years, are requested to lodge their claims without any delay.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Investor Education and Protection Fund (Uploading of information
regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has already
filed the necessary form and uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the
Company, as on the date of last AGM (i.e.27.09.2018), with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

The related data is available on the Company’s website.
Share Capital

There is no change in the Share Capital of the Company. As on 31s*March, 2019, the paid up equity share
capital of the company stood at Rs. 1881.46 lacs divided into 94072930 equity shares of face value Rs.
2/- each.

Fixed Deposits

Your Company has not accepted any deposits from public and /or shareholders during the year under
review, within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposit) Rules, 2014 and accordingly as of 31s*March, 2019, there were no unpaid fixed deposits with
the Company.

Transfer to General Reserve

The Company proposes not to transfer any funds out of its total profit of Rs. 25.62 Crore for the financial
year to the General Reserve.

Research and Development

Your Company recognizes that Research & Development plays a vital role in supporting current operations
as well as future growth. Your Company has focused its attention on development of Products that have
wide industrial applications, particularly in cable, piping, packaging and footwear industries.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Dr. Pranab Ranjan
Mukherjee (DIN -00240758), Whole Time Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment.

The Board, on recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, at its meeting held on 11"
February, 2019, approved the reappointment of Dr. Pranab Ranjan Mukherjee as Whole Time Director
for a period of one year w.e.f 015! October, 2019, subject to the approval of the members. Accordingly,
approval of the members is sought for reappointment of Dr. Pranab Ranjan Mukherjee at the forthcoming
AGM, as observed from Item No. 6 of the Notice convening this Annual General Meeting.

Mrs. Ramya Hariharan (DIN: 06928511) was also appointed as the Additional Director in the category
of Independent Director of the Company, w.e.f. 11th February, 2019. She holds office upto the date of
ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible has offered herself for appointment as an Independent
Director. The Board of Directors of your company has sought approval from members in accordance with
Item No. 5 of the Notice convening this Annual General Meeting.

Further, Mr. Dev Krishna Surana (DIN: 08357094) was also appointed as Additional Director, w.e.f 11%
February, 2019. He holds office upto the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible has
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offered himself for appointment as Director of the Company. The Board, on recommendation of Nomination
& Remuneration Committee, at its meeting held on 28" May, 2019, designated Mr. Dev Krishna Surana
(DIN: 08357094), as Whole Time Director of the Company, w.e.f. 28" May, 2019, subject to approval of
the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, upon such terms and conditions as annexed to
the Notice convening this Annual General Meeting. The Board of Directors of your company has sought
approval from members in accordance with Iltem No. 7 of the Notice convening this Annual General
Meeting.

The disclosures about Directors required pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations (hereinafter referred as “SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Clause
1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standard are given in the Notice of AGM, forming part of the Annual Report.
Consent for appointment, as required, from respective Directors have been received.

None of the Independent Directors are due for reappointment.
Committees of the Board
The Board of Directors has the following Committees:

1. Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The details of the Committees along with their respective composition, number of meetings and attendance
at the meeting are provided in the Corporate Governance Report, which also forms part of this Annual
Report.

Declaration by Independent Directors

All Independent Directors of the Company have given declarations under Section 149(7) of the Act and
Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down
under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. In terms of
Regulations 25(8) of the Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors have confirmed that they are not
aware of any circumstance or situation, which exists or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair
or impact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective independent judgement and without any
external influence.

Code of Conduct for Directors, Senior Management Personnel and Employees

Your Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Directors and Senior Management. It also has in
place an HR Policy for its employees at all levels. In terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed
compliance with respective codes. The CEO and Managing Director has also affirmed and certified the
same, which certification is provided in the Report on Corporate Governance.

Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

The Company had organized a familiarization programme for the Independent Directors as per the
requirement of Schedule 1V to the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(7) of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. All independent directors inducted into the Board
attended the orientation programme. The Company has familiarized the Independent Director with the
company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the company, nature of the Industry in which the company
operates and business model of the company through various programmes. Further, at the time of the
appointment of an Independent Director, the company issues a formal letter of appointment outlining his/
her role, function, duties and responsibilities. The format of the letter of appointment is available under the
head draft letter of appointment on our website (www.kkalpanagroup.com/investor-relations.php)

Board Evaluation

The Board of Directors has devised a policy for performance evaluation, which includes criteria for
performance evaluation. It accordingly carries out an annual evaluation of its performance, and the
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performance of its Committees as well as Individual Directors (both Executive and Non — executive/
Independent Directors). This involves receiving inputs from all Directors.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the formal annual evaluation was carried out for the Board’s own
performance, its committees & Individual Directors.

A structured performance evaluation form was prepared after taking into consideration inputs received
from the Directors and on the basis of the evaluation criteria laid down by Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning including adequacy of the composition of
the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations
and governance, the effectiveness of its processes, information, flow and functioning.

A separate meeting of Independent Directors is held to review the performance of Non-Independent
Directors, the performance of the Board of Directors and the performance of Chairman. The Directors
evaluation was broadly based on parameters such as, meeting the expectation of stakeholders, guidance
and review of corporate strategy/ risks, participation, Director’s contribution to the Board of Directors and
Committee meetings, including preparedness on the issues to be discussed as well as meaningful and
constructive contribution and inputs during the meeting and attendance at Board / Committee meetings,
interpersonal skills. The performance evaluation of the Chairman of the Company was undertaken by the
Independent Directors taking into account the views of Executive Directors and Non —Executive Directors.
The Chairperson is evaluated on the key aspects of their role, their contribution to ensuing corporate
governance, leadership qualities, decision implementation, understanding of market and industry scenario
etc. The Independent Directors also assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information
between the Company’s management and the Board.

Observation of the Board in regard its own performance

In regard to Financial Year ended 31% March, 2019, the Board of Directors of the Company, after an
exhaustive discussion on the captioned subject matter, was of the opinion that operationally, the Board, as
whole, had issued effective instructions, from time to time, and the same were duly carried out.

However, it asked for certain additional documents to be placed in the Board Meeting for further toning up
the operational efficiency of the Company. The Chairman and Managing Director assured that necessary
departments will submit the documents, as required, from time to time, for consideration of the Board of
Directors of the Company.

As regards Financial Year ended 2018 the Board of Directors of the Company expressed full satisfaction
on the performance of the Board as a whole and did not call for any further documents/information for
improving the quality of work of the Company.

Policy on Director’s appointment and remuneration

The current policy is to have an appropriate mix of executive and non-executive/ independent directors to
maintain the independence of the Board, and separate its functions of governance and management. As of
31stMarch, 2019, the Board had 8 members, 3 of whom were executive and 5 were non-executive directors.

The Company’s Policy for selection and appointment of Directors and their remuneration is based on its
Nomination and Remuneration policy which, inter alia, deals with the manner of selection of the Directors
and Senior Management Personnel and such other matters as provided under section 178(3) of the Act
and 19(4) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, including any
amendment thereto.

The policy of the Company on directors’ appointment and remuneration, including the criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters, as required
under section 178(3) of Companies Act, 2013 is available on the company’s website under the head Policy
at www.kkalpanagroup.com/investor-relations.php.

Your Directors affirm that the remuneration paid to the directors is as per the terms laid out in the Nomination
and Remuneration Policy of the Company.
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Core Skills of the Board

Your Directors posses adequate skills/ expertise/ competencies in the areas of marketing, research and
development, finance and accounts, HR/administration, Legal and Operations for smooth operation of the
company.

Board meetings

The Board met Five times during the financial year under review, the details of which are given in the
Corporate Governance Report which is annexed and forms a part of this report. The intervening gap
between two consecutive Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013,
your Directors confirm that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively ; and

(f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Auditors & Audit

The Statutory Auditors of the Company, M/s. B.Mukherjee & Co, Chartered Accountants, Kolkata (Firm
Registration No.302096E), were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company, at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company held on 23 September, 2017, for a period of 5 consecutive years, subject to
ratification by members of the Company at every subsequent Annual General Meeting. However, as per
the recent amendment of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, which have been made effective from
07" May, 2018, ratification of the appointment of the auditor is no longer required. Hence the same is
not proposed at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Statutory Auditors have given a certificate of
eligibility and consent that they are eligible and willing to continue as Statutory Auditors of your company
for the Financial Year 2019-20.

Further, the Auditors have confirmed that they have undergone the peer review process of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and hold a valid certificate issued by the ‘Peer Review Board’
of ICAI. The Auditors’ Report on the accounts for the year ended 31s*March, 2019 does not contain any
qualification, adverse remark or observation.

Internal Auditors

The Board of Directors of your Company has re-appointed M/s. DKD & Associates, Chartered Accountants,
Kolkata (Firm Registration No.322657E) as Internal Auditors pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of
the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year 2019-2020.

Cost Auditors

Pursuant to section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and subject to notification of rules thereunder, the
board of directors, on the recommendation of the audit committee, has appointed M/s. D. Sabyasachi &
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Co. (Membership NO. 00369), Cost Accountants, Kolkata, as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the
financial year 2019-20. M/s. D. Sabyasachi & Co. have confirmed that their appointment is within the
prescribed limits and they are free from any disqualifications as provided in section 141 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

Secretarial Audit

The Board had appointed Mr. Ashok Kumar Daga (Membership No.-FCS- 2699, C.O.P No. 2948),
Practicing Company Secretary, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year 2018-19. The report of
the Secretarial Auditors for the Financial Year 2018-19 in Form MR-3 is annexed herewith as Annexure
1 to this report. The report is self-explanatory and does not call for any further comments. The company
does not have any material subsidiary company and hence the provisions of Secretarial Audit for material
unlisted company, as notified by SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 08.02.2019, vide
which Regulation 24A of SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 was
amended, is not applicable to your Company.

Annual Secretarial Compliance Audit

SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 08.02.2019 introduced that listed companies shall
additionally, on an annual basis, require a check by Practicing Company Secretary (“PCS”) on compliance
of all applicable SEBI Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, consequent to which, the
PCS shall submit a report to the listed entity. Mr. Ashok Kumar Daga (Membership No.-FCS- 2699, C.O.P
No. 2948), Practicing Company Secretary, was appointed by the Board for the said purpose who has since
submitted his report to the Board, which was placed for consideration of Board members, at their meeting
held on 28" May, 2019 and subsequently submitted to the Stock Exchange as per the requirement of said
circular. The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report issued by Mr. Ashok Kumar Daga, (Membership No.-
FCS- 2699, C.O.P No. 2948), Practicing Company Secretary for the year ended 31s*March, 2019 does
not contain any qualification, observation or adverse remark.

Policies

The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 mandated the formulation
of certain policies for all listed companies. All applicable policies are available under the head Policy
on the Company’s website:www.kkkalpanagroup.com/investor-relations.php. The policies are reviewed
periodically by the Board and updated based on need and new compliance requirement.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, constitution of which is detailed in the
Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Report. In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company has
adopted a CSR policy which is available under the head policy at: http://www.kkalpanagroup.com/investor-
relations.php. The Annual Report on CSR expenditures for the FY 2018-19 is annexed herewith and forms
part of this report and marked as Annexure - 2.

Related party transactions

Your Company has formulated Policy on Related Party Transaction (RPT) which is available on Company’s
website www.kkalpanagroup.com. There were no transactions that required disclosure under section
134(3)(h) of the Companies Act,2013, in Form AOC-2, and hence your company has not provided any
details of such related party transactions. Further, there are no material related party transactions during
the year under review with the Promoters, Directors or any Key managerial Personnel which may have a
potential conflict of interest with the Company at large. All Related Party Transactions were entered into
by the company in its ordinary course of business and were at an arm’s length.

Subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures / Associate Companies

M/s. Plastic Processors & Exporter Private Limited is a Subsidiary of your Company and M/s Kkalpana
Plastick Limited is the Associate company of your company. The financial position of these two companies
is given in Form AOC- 1 and forms part of the report marked as ‘Annexure — 3’.
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Your company holds 99.99% of equity in the paid up capital of M/s Plastic Processors and Exporter Private
Limited and holds 36.23% of equity in the paid up capital of M/s Kkalpana Plastick Limited.

Performance of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture Companies and their contribution to
the overall performance of the Company during the period

Name of the Entity Share in Profit and Loss
Particulars PAT (Rs.| As a.% age of Amount
Inlacs) | Profit or Loss | (Rs. In Lacs)
Kkalpana Plastick Limited- Associate Company 6.96 36.23% 2.52
PlasticProcessors and Exporter PvtLtd - Subsidiary Company| 37.06 99.99% 37.06

Change in nature of Business, if any

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company. Your Company continues to be one
of the leading manufacturers of Polymer compound in the Country.

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments

The Company has not given loans, guarantees or made investments exceeding sixty per cent of the
aggregate of its paid-up share capital, free reserves and securities premium account or one hundred per
cent of its free reserves and securities premium account, whichever is more, as prescribed in Section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013.

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are provided in the financial statement (please refer to Note 8 and 9 to the financial
statement).

Risks and Concerns:
Risk factor is ingratiated to all business activities of all companies, though in varying degrees and forms. As
far as your company is concerned, it has an approved risk management policy by the Board of Directors.

Risk evaluation and its management is ongoing process within your company and is periodically reviewed
by the Board of Directors of your company.

The main risks of your company are as under:
Business risks

Your company has to face intense competition from unorganized sector pertaining to plastic compounds.
Further, the raw material prices remain volatile. It is very difficult to estimate the near future raw material
cost.

Technology risks

Quality up gradation and product obsolation risks are intertwined with your company’s business
management. However, the high standard of in-house research and development fortifies the technological
risks to some extent.

Financial risks

Currency war is looming on the horizon of global economy. This will make the interest rates of banks
rise progressively, a factor which will squeeze rate margin of your company. Moreover, it is feared that
obtaining bank finance will also be difficult because nearly all the Public Sector Banks (PSB) are already
having large NPAs. Availability of finance will be a crucial factor for your company in the near future, if the
financial situations, referred above, do not take a positive turn.

Risk Management Policy

The Board takes responsibility for the overall process of risk management throughout the organization. In
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terms of requirement of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has developed and implemented the Risk
Management Policy and the Audit Committee of the Board reviews the same periodically. The Compay’s
business units and corporate functions address risk through an institutionalized approach, aligned to
Company’s objective. This is further facilitated by Internal Audit which is reviewed by the Board.

Significant and material orders passed by the regulators

During the year under review, no significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or courts
or tribunals impacting the going concern status and the company’s operations:

Disclosure as per Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

The Company has in place Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) which has been setup to redress
complaints regarding Sexual Harassment. The following is the summary of Sexual Harassment complaints
received and disposed off during the year under review:

No. of Complaints at the beginning of the Financial Year (i.e. 01.04.2018) - Nil
No. of Complaints received during the Financial Year (i.e. 2018-19) - Nil
No. of Complaints disposed off during the Financial Year (i.e. 2018-19) - Nil
No. of pending at the end of the Financial Year (i.e. 31.03.2019) - Nil

All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary & trainees) are covered under the captioned Act. Your
directors are pleased to state that working atmosphere of your company is very healthy for male and
female employees/ workers.

Particulars of Employees

None of the employees, employed during the year, was in receipt of remuneration, in aggregate of Rupees
1,02,00,000 or more per annum for the financial year 2018-19, or Rs. 8,50,000 or more per month for any
part of the Financial Year, as set out in the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, Therefore, no such details have been provided as required under section
197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

The ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median employee’s remuneration and other details
in accordance with sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the Act, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended, forms part of this
report and is marked as ‘Annexure 4’

Extract of Annual Return

Pursuant to the provisions of section 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and
rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, extract of annual return is
annexed and is marked as ‘Annexure 5’.

Vigil mechanism

Pursuant to the requirement of the Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
established vigil mechanism which also incorporates a whistle blower policy in terms of the SEBI Listing
Regulations. Protected disclosures can be made by a whistle blower through an e mail or phone or letter
to the chairman of Audit Committee.

Internal financial controls

The Board has adopted policies and procedures for governance of orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, safeguarding its assets, prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and timely preparation of
reliable financial disclosures. .The internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements
are commensurate with the size and nature of business of your Company. The Internal Auditor reviews the
Internal Financial Control system periodically.
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Green Initiatives in Corporate Governance

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has permitted companies to send electronic copies of Annual Report, notices,
etc. to the registered E-mail addresses of shareholders. Your Company has accordingly arranged to send
the electronic copies of these documents to shareholders whose email addresses are registered with the
Company/ Depository Participant(s), wherever applicable. In case any shareholder would like to receive
physical copies of these documents, the same shall be forwarded upon receipt of written request from
the shareholder. For members who have not registered their e-mail addresses, physical copies are sent
in permitted mode.

Human Resources and Industrial Relations

The Industrial relations of the Company with its personnel has continued to be cordial and amicable. Your
Directors acknowledge and appreciate the efforts and dedication of employees to the Company. Your
directors wish to place on record the co-operation received from the Staff and Workers, at all levels and
at all units.

Particulars of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings
and Outgo.

Your Company has directed its efforts to reduce energy costs by focusing on energy savings through the
best optimization of operations on day to day basis. The Company has used fuels in appropriate mix to
attain maximum savings.

As required under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the particulars of energy conservation, Technology
Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo is given in the prescribed format as an Annexure
to the Report and marked as Annexure ‘6°.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report

In accordance with Regulation 34 (e) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 , the Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, is
presented in a separate section forming part of the Annual Report and marked as Annexure ‘7°.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to good corporate governance practices. The report on Corporate Governance
for the financial year ended March 31, 2019, as per regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, forms part of this Annual Report.
The requisite Certificate from the Statutory Auditors of the Company confirming compliance with the
conditions of Corporate Governance is annexed to this Report and marked as Annexure ‘8’

Compliance with applicable Secretarial Standards

Your company has complied with the applicable provisions of Secretarial Standard-1, Secretarial Standard-
2 and Secretarial Standard-3 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Acknowledgement

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank the Financial Institutions, Banks, Central and State Government
authorities, Regulatory authorities, Stock Exchanges and all the various stakeholders for their continued
co-operation and support to the Company.

Your Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation to all of the Company’s employees and
workers at all level for their enormous efforts as well as their collective contribution to the Company’s
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Narrindra Suranna
(DIN: 00060127)
Chairman & Managing Director
Place: Kolkata
Date: 28.05.2019
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Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3157, MARCH, 2019.

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
2B PRETORIA STREET

KOLKATA - 700071

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED (hereinafter called
the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s, books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my
opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31°T, March, 2019
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31°,
March, 2019, according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange ManagementAct, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009; Not applicable, since the company has not raised share capital during the
year.

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

Not applicable, since the company has not issued shares as per (Employee Stock Option
Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 during the year.

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
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Not applicable, since the company has not issued any debt securities as per (Issue and Listing
of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(9) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

Not applicable, since the company has not applied for delisting of its shares from any stock
exchange during the year.

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;Not applicable,
since the company has not bought back of shares during the year

(vi) Other specifically applicable laws to the Company.

(a) Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 and Air(prevention and Control of
pollution) Act, 1981.

(b) Factories License under Factories Act, 1948 for its units situated in different places.
| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, and

(i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above:

| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The following changes occurred in the Directors and
KMP, however the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review remains the same:

SL NO.|NAME OF THE DIRECTOR / KMP PARTICULARS OF CHANGES
1. MR. RAMYA HARIHARAN (ADDITIONAL DIRECTOR) APPOINTMENT
2. MR. DEV KRISHNA SURANA (ADDITIONAL DIRECTOR) |APPOINTMENT
3. MR. INDAR CHAND DAKALIA (CFO) APPOINTMENT
4. MR. NARRINDRA SURANNA (ALSO APPOINTED AS CEO) |APPOINTMENT

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.

Maijority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as
part of the minutes.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

Place: KOLKATA
Date: 23.05.2019

ASHOK KUMAR DAGA
FCS No0.2699, C P No: 2948
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(1)

()

@)
(4)
()
(a)

FORMAT FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE
INCLUDED IN THE BOARD’S REPORT
[Pursuant to Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]

A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or
Programmes.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, which encompasses the company’s philosophy for
delivering its responsibility as a corporate citizen and lays down the guidelines and mechanism for
undertaking socially useful programmes for welfare & sustainable development of the community at
large, is titled as the “Kkalpana Industries (India) Limited CSR Policy”. This policy shall apply to all
CSR initiatives and activities taken up at the various work-centers and locations of the Company,
for the benefit of different segments of the society, specifically the deprived, under-privileged and
differently abled persons.

CSR Vision— Providing assistance in the development of weaker sections of the society, promoting
health care and zeal of education in every spirit and ensuring environmental sustainability.

The CSR policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company under the head policy at
www.kkalpanagroup.com/investor-relations.php .

The Composition of the CSR Commiittee.

Dr. P.R.Mukherjee - Chairman

Mr. Narrindra Suranna - Member

Mr. Rajesh Kothari - Member

Mr. Samir Kumar Dutta - Member

Average net profit of the company for last three financial years: Rs. 3654.14 Lacs

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent. Of the amount as in item 3 above) Rs.73.08 Lacs
Details of CSR spent during the financial year.

Total amount to be spent for the financial year ; Rs. 83.08 Lacs

(b) Amount unspent, if any : Rs. 0.00

(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below

(1) ) (3) 4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Sl. |CSR project |Sector in |Projects or pro- |Amount Amount spent Cumulative  |Details of Imple-
No |or activity which the |gramme outlay on the project or |expenditure |menting Agency
identified project is |(1) Local area or |(budget programme up to the re-
(relevant covered other project or |Sub Heads; porting period
clause prescri (2) Specify the programme |(1) Direct ex-
bed under the state and wise) penditure on
Act) district where projects or
projects or programmes
programmes (2) Overheads
was under-
taken
Clause(i) of |Promoting |Local area i.e. Rs. Rs. 3,08,463 Rs. 3,08,463 |Institute of
1 |Schedule VIl |healthcare |Kolkata- West 3,08,463 Neurosciences,
of the Act. including Bengal Kolkata
preventive
healthcare
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(1) (2) 3) 4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
SI. |CSR project |Sector in |Projects or pro- |Amount Amount spent Cumulative |Details of Imple-
No |or activity which the |gramme outlay on the project or |expenditure |menting Agency
identified project is |(1) Local area or |(budget programme up to the re-
(relevant covered other project or |Sub Heads; porting period
clause prescri (2) Specify the programme |(1) Direct ex-
bed under the state and wise) penditure on
Act) district where projects or
projects or programmes
programmes (2) Overheads
was under-
taken
Clause(i) of |Promoting |Local area i.e. Rs. Rs.10,00,000 Rs.10,00,000 |Rajda Founda-
2 |Schedule VIl |healthcare |Kolkata- West 10,00,000 tion
of the Act. including Bengal
preventive
healthcare
Clause(i) of |Promoting |Local areai.e. Rs. Rs.70,00,000 Rs.70,00,000 [Mahara-
3 |Schedule VII |healthcare |Siliguri- West 70,00,000 ja Agrasen
of the Act. including  |Bengal Research and
preventive Service Foun-
healthcare dation

6. The reasons for not spending two (2) % of the average net profit of the last three (3) years or any
part thereof:

Not Applicable.

7. Responsibility statement:

The CSR Committee of the Board confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in line
with the CSR Objectives and Policy of the Company.

(Narrindra Suranna, Managing Director )

(Dr. P.R.Mukherjee, Chairman, CSR Committee)
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AOC — 1

[Pursuant to first proviso to sub section (3) of section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries/associate
companies / joint ventures

Name of the Subsidiary PLASTIC PROCESSORS AND
EXPORTERS PRIVATE LIMITED
1. | Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different 01.04.2018 to 31.03.2019
from the holding company’s reporting period
2. |Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of Rupees
the relevant Financial Year in the case of foreign subsidiaries
3. | Share Capital 5,00,000
4. |Reserves & surplus 16,117,096
5. | Total assets 3,41,88,480
6. |Total liabilities 3,41,88,480
7. |Investments -
8. | Turnover -
9. |Profit before taxation 37,06,314
10. | Provision for taxation -
11. | Profit after taxation 37,06,314
12. | Proposed Dividend -
13. | % of shareholding 99.99%
Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement
1 | Names of Subsidiaries which are yet to commence opera- N.A.
tions
2 | Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold N.A.
during the year

For B. Mukherjee & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 302096E
Narrindra Suranna Rajesh Kothari
(DIN: 00060127) (DIN: 02168932)
Chairman and Managing Director Whole Time Director
B. Mukherjee
Partner
Membership No. 002941 Tanvi Panday Indar Chand Dakalia
Date: 28.05.2019 (Membership No. ACS 31176) Chief Financial Officer
Place: Kolkata Company Secretary
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates

KKALPANA PLASTICK LIMITED

1. |Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2019
2. |Shares of Associate held by the company on the year end
i. Number 2002920
ii. Amount of Investment in Associates (Rs. In lacs) 200.29
iii. Extend of Holding % 36.23
3. |Description of how there is significant influence By way of ownership
4. |Reason why the associate is not consolidated N.A.

5. |Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited
Balance Sheet (Rs. In lacs)

Rs. 666.73 lacs

6. |Profit / Loss for the year

i.Considered in Consolidation

Rs.2.52 lacs

ii.Not Considered in Consolidation (Rs. In lacs)

Rs.4.44 lacs

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations.-N.A.

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year-N.A.

For B. Mukherjee & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 302096E
Narrindra Suranna
(DIN: 00060127)

Rajesh Kothari
(DIN: 02168932)

Chairman and Managing Director Whole Time Director
B. Mukherjee
Partner
Membership No. 002941 Tanvi Panday Indar Chand Dakalia
Date: 28.05.2019 (Membership No. ACS 31176) Chief Financial Officer
Place: Kolkata Company Secretary
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ﬁl' Requirements of Rule 5(1) Name & De§|gnatlon of Key Details
0 Managerial Personnel

1 |The ratio of remuneration of each director to|Mr. N.Suranna, Managing 21.40:1
the median remuneration of the employees of|Director
the Company for the financial year. Mr. Rajesh Kothari, Whole 12931

Time Director T
Dr.P.R.Mukherjee, Whole
Time Director (Technical) 5.81:1

2 |The percentage increase in remuneration of  |Mr. N.Suranna, Managing 66.67%
each director, CFO, CEO, CS or manager, if |Director
any, in the financial year. Mr. Rajesh Kothari, Whole ~ |No change

Time Director

Dr.P.R.Mukherjee, Whole 5.56%
Time Director(Technical)

Mr. I.C.Dakalia, Chief 9.84%
Financial Officer

Ms. Tanvi Panday 11.45%
Company Secretary

3 |The percentage increase in the median|The median remuneration of the employees in the
remuneration of employees in the financiallfinancial year was increased by 20.22%.
year.

4 |The number of permanent employees on the |There were 383 Employees as on 31.03.2019.
rolls of Company

5 |The explanation on the relationship between|Omitted by Companies (Appointment and
average increase in remuneration and company|Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)Amendment
performance. Rules, 2016 dated 30.06.2017.

6 |Comparison of the remuneration of the KMP  |Omitted by Companies (Appointment and
against the performance of the Company. Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)Amendment

Rules, 2016 dated 30.06.2017.

7 |Variation in the market capitalization of the|Omitted by Companies (Appointment and
company, price earnings ratio as at the closing|Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)Amendment
date of the current financial year and previous|Rules, 2016 dated 30.06.2017.
financial year and percentage increase over
decrease in the market quotations of the shares
of the company in comparison to the rate at
which the company came out with the last
public offer in case of listed companies, and in
case of unlisted companies, the variations in
the net worth of the company as at the close of
the current financial year and previous financial
year.
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Sl. Requirements of Rule 5(1) Name & De_3|gnat|on of Key Details

No Managerial Personnel

8 |Average percentile increase already made|Average salary increase of non-managerial
in the salaries of employees other than thelemployees is 56.33%.
manggerial perlsonnellin the Iastlfinlancial year Average salary increase of managerial employees
and its comparison with percentile increase in|. o

. . s 18.70%
the managerial remuneration and justification
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional| There are no exceptional circumstances for increase
circumstances for increases in the managerial|in the managerial remuneration and the increase is
remuneration. commensurate to market standards

9 |The key parameters for any variable component|Omitted by Companies (Appointment and
of remuneration availed by the directors. Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)Amendment

Rules, 2016 dated 30.06.2017.

10 |Comparison of the each remuneration of|Omitted by Companies (Appointment and
the Key Managerial Personnel against the/Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)Amendment
performance of the Company. Rules, 2016 dated 30.06.2017.

11 |The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid|Omitted by Companies (Appointment and
director to that of the employees who are not|Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)Amendment
directors but receive remuneration in excess of|Rules, 2016 dated 30.06.2017.
the highest paid director during the year.

12 |Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the |lt is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as

remuneration policy of the Company.

per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, KMP and
other employees.

Note : Managing Director & Whole Time Directors are Whole Time Directors & Other Directors are Non
—Executive Independent Directors , who are paid only sitting fees for attending the Board and Committee
meetings. Hence, ratios provided are only for Managing Directors & Whole Time Directors.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 28.05.2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Narrindra Suranna

(DIN: 00060127)

Chairman & Managing Director
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Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31%March, 2019
of
KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
[Pursuant to Section 92(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

L19202WB1985PLC039431

i Registration Date 03.09.1985

i Name of the Company KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

iv  Category/Sub-category of the PUBLIC COMPANY / LIMITED BY SHARES
Company

v Address of the Registered
office & contact details

i CIN

2B PRETORIA STREET, KOLKATA — 700 071
Phone : 033 2282 3744 /45, Fax :- 033 2282 3739
E Mail :- Kolkata@kkalpana.co.in

Website: www.kkalpanagroup.com

Yes

M/S C.B. Management Services (P)Ltd

P-22, Bondel Road, Kolkata-700019

Phone: 033 2280 6692 / 93/ 94/ 2486 / 4011 6700
Fax: 033 4011 6739

Email:rta@cbmsl.com

Website: www.cbmsl.com

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

vi  Whether listed company

vii Name, Address & contact
details of the Registrar &
Transfer Agent, if any.

Sl. No. Name and Description NIC Code of the % to total turnover
of main products / Product/ service of the company
services
1. Polyethylene 20131 61%
2. Poly Vinyl Chloride 20131 24%
3. Others 20131 15%

ll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

S. NAME AND CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % of Applicable
NO | ADDRESS OF THE SUBSIDIARY/ shares Section
COMPANY ASSOCIATE held
1. |Plastic Processors U25209WB2005PTC228791 |Subsidiary 99.99 2(97)(ii)
& Exporter Private
Limited
Address: 2B, Pretoria
Street, Kolkata —
700071
2. |Kkalpana Plastick L25200WB1989PLC047702 |Associate 36.23 2(6)
Limited Company
Address- 2B, Pretoria
Street,
Kolkata — 700 071
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held atthe beginningof | No. of Shares held at the end of the %
Shareholders the year (As on 01.04.2018) year (As on31.03.2019) change
Demat | Physical| Total % of | Demat | Physical| Total | % of| during
Total Total | theyear
Shares Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF 764860 0 764860 0.81 764860 0 764860 | 0.81 0.00

b) Central Govt.or

State Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

c) Bodies Corporates |68503515 0 68503515| 72.82 |69571685| 70000 |69641685| 74.03 | +1.20

d) Bank/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

e) Any other 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1) |69268375 0 69268375| 73.63 |70336545| 70000 |70406545| 74.84 | +1.20

(2) Foreign

a) NRI- Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

b) Other Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

d) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

e) Any other... 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

SUB TOTAL (A) (2) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Total Shareholding of
Promoter
(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2) 69268375 0 69268375| 73.63 |70336545| 70000 |70406545| 74.84 | +1.20

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds 0 2500 2500 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
b) Banks/FI 1125 0 1125 0.00 |125 0 125 0.00 0.00
C) Central govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
d) State Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
e)Venture Capital Fund 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
f)Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
g) FIIS 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
h) Foreign Venture

Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
SUB TOTAL (B)(1): 1125 2500 3625 0.00 125 0 125 0.00 0.00
(2) Non Institutions

a) Bodies corporate

i) Indian 14290812 2400000| 14530812 15.44/ 13167991 139500( 13307491| 14.15 -1.29
i) Overseas 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00{ 0.00
b) Individuals

i) Individual

shareholders holding

nominal share capital

upto Rs.2 lakhs 4338672| 1378390 (5717062 6.08 | 5001542 | 977525 | 5979067 | 6.36 +0.28
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Category of No. of Shares held atthe beginningof | No. of Shares held at the end of the %
Shareholders the year (As on 01.04.2018) year (As on31.03.2019) change
Demat |Physical| Total % of | Demat |Physical| Total | % of| during
Total Total | theyear
Shares Shares
i) Individuals
shareholders holding
nominalshare capitalin
excess of Rs. 2 lakhs | 3391394 0 3391394 | 360 |2866934 0 2866934 | 3.05 -0.55
c) Others (specify)
c)(i) Non-Resident
Individuals 128749 | 305500 | 434249 0.46 136031 | 156000 | 292031 | 0.31 -0.15
c)(ii) Clearing Members| 14403 0 14403 0.01 4087 0 4087 0.00 -0.01
c)(iii) IEPF 713010 0 713010 0.76 1195133 0 1195133 | 1.27 +0.51
c)(iv) LLP 0 0 0 0.00 21517 0 21517 0.02 +0.02
SUB TOTAL (B)(2): 22877040(1923890(24800930| 26.36 |22393235|1273025(23666260| 25.16 | -1.20
Total Public
Shareholding
(B)= (B)(1)*+(B)(2) 22878165|1926390(24804555| 26.36 |22393360|1273025(23666385| 25.16 -1.20
C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Grand Total (A+B+C) (92146540 1926390(94072930| 100.00 |92729905|1343025|94072930|100.00| 0.00
(ii) Shareholding of Promoters
Shareholding at the Shareholding at the 9
beginning oftheyear(Ason |endoftheyear(Ason31.03.2019) o
01.04.2018) change
S| |nshfare
No. Shareholders Name . % of shares % of shares holqlng
% oftotal % oftotal during
No. of | shares pledged No. of | shares pledged theyear
shares | ofthe encumbered shares | ofthe encumbered
to total to total
company | shares company | shares
1 |Tara Devi Surana 75505 0.08 0.00 75505 0.08 0.00 0.00
2 |Narrindra Suranna 2000 0.00 0.00 2000 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 |Dev Krishna Suranna 683850 0.73 0.00{ 683850 0.73 0.00 0.00
4 |Surendra Kumar Surana 3505 0.00 0.00 3505 0.00 0.00 0.00
5 |Shyambaba Trexim Pvt. Ltd. * 15551680 16.53 0.00| 15602530 16.59 0.00f +0.06
6 |SriRamFinancial Consultants Pvt. Ltd.* | 44785170 47.61 0.00| 45845640 48.72 0.00f +1.11
7 |Inbara Holdings Pvt. Ltd. * 7250000 7.7 0.00| 7275750 7.73 0.00f +0.02
8 |Krishna Commodeals Pvt. Ltd. * 916665 0.97 0.00f 917765 0.98 0.00 +0.01

*Pursuant to a scheme of amalgamation sanctioned by the NCLT vide order dated 18.12.2018, the shares
of the Kkalpana Industries (India) Limited held by Inbara Holdings Private Limited, Krishna Commodeals
Private Limited, Shyambaba Trexim Private Limited and Sri Ram Financial Consultants Private Limited
have been transferred to and acquired by Bbigplas Poly Private Limited.
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lll. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding

Sl. Share holding atthe beginningof | Cumulative Share holding during the
No. the Year (As on 01.04.2018) year (As on 31.03.2019)
No. of Shares | % of total shares| No. of Shares | % of total shares of]
of the company the company

At the beginning of the year 69268375 73.63 69268375 73.63

Date wise increase/decrease in| 1138170shareswere acquired by the Promoters ofthe Company during

Promoters Share holding during the FY 2018-19.

the year specifying the reasons for

increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/

transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year 70406545 | 74.84 70406545 74.84

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders
of GDRs and ADRs)

Sl. No. Shareholding as on |Transactions during Shareholding as on
01.04.2018 the year 31.03.2019
For Each of the top ten shareholders No. of | % of total | Purchase | Sale No. of % of total
Shares shares Shares |[shares of the
of the company
company
1. Almond Polytraders Private Limited 7750000 8.24 0 0 7750000 8.24
2. Liable Textiles Private Limited 4465969 4.75 0 0 4465969 4.75
3. Sree Polytraders Private Limited 1068170 1.14 1068170 | 1.14 0 0.00
4. Dilip Kumar H Parmar 682711 0.73 163462 | 94587 751586 0.80
5. Kedar Dattatraya Borgaonkar 609383 0.65 153058 | 160381 602060 0.64
6. Meghdoot Arvind Thakkar 600355 0.64 14078 0 614433 0.65
7. Dattatraya Shankar Borgaonkar 346603 0.37 0 0 346603 0.37
8. Rajasthan Global Securities Pvt. Ltd. 294675 0.31 7491 24369 277797 0.30
9. Dheeraj Kumar Lohia 257106 0.27 0 58612 198494 0.21
10. Misrilall Mines Pvt. Ltd. 250000 0.27 0 0 250000 0.27
11. RCL Securities Pvt. Ltd. 118000 0.13 0 0 118000 0.13
(v). Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sl. Shareholding atthe Cumulz tive Share holding during
No. beginning ofthe Year the year
For Each of the Directors & KMP No. of % oftotal No. of | % oftotalshares of the
Shares| sharesofthe | Shares company
company
Narrindra Suranna, Managing Director (Executive)| 2000 0.0021 2000 0.0021
Rajesh Kothari, Whole Time Director 0 0
Pranab Ranjan Mukherjee, WTD (Technical) 0 0
Samir Kumar Dutta, NED & ID 0 0
Ramakant Mishra, NED & ID 0 0
Mamta Binani, NED & ID 0 0
Dev Krishna Surana, Additional Director,NED 683850 0.73 683850 0.73
Ramya Hariharan, NED & ID 0 0
|.C.Dakalia, CFO 0 0
Tanvi Panday, Company Secretary 0 0
(From 01.06.2017)

Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share
holding during the year specifying the reasons for NO CHANGE DURING THE YAER
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year 2000 |  0.0021 | 2000 | 0.0021
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

(Amt. Rs. In Lacs)

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year 33418.7 1603.82 0.00 35022.51
i) Principal Amount 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ii) Interest due but notpaid 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii) 33418.7 1603.82 0.00 35022.51
Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year
+ Addition 793,922.82 430.18 0.00 794,353.00
* Reduction 804,385.34 0 0.00 804,385.34
Net Change (10,462.52) 430.18 0.00 (10,032.34)
Indebtedness at the
end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 10,080.71 1,977.10 0.00 12,057.81
ii) Interest due but not paid 25.67 233.35 0.00 259.02
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total (i+ii+iii) 10,106.38 2,210.45 0.00 12,316.83
VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
Sl. Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total
No. Particulars of Remuneration Narrindra | Rajesh | Pranab Ranjan | Amount(Rs.InLacs)
Suranna | Kothari Mukherjee
1. | Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 70.00 40.00 19.00 129.00
section17(1)ofthe Income-taxAct, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under u/s 17(3) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961
2. | Stock Option 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3. | Sweat Equity 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4. | Commission 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5. | Others, please specify 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total (A) 70.00 40.00 19.00 129.00
Ceiling as per the Act Within the ceiling mentioned in part —ii of schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013
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B. Remuneration to other directors:
,?(I,'_ Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total
Samir Kumar| Ramakant Mamta Ramya Amount
Dutta Mishra Binani | Hariharan |(Rs-Inlacs
1. Independent Directors
+ Feeforattending board/ committee meetings 1.20 1.50 0.50 0.10 3.30
« Commission
* Others, please specify
Total (1) 720 750 0.50 0.10 3.30
2. Other Non-Executive Directors
+ Feeforattending board/ committee meetings
« Commission 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
* Others, please specify Sitting fee @ 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.00 0.30
attendingAGMheldon27.09.2018
Total (2) 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.00 0.30
Total (B)=(1+2) 730 T.60 0.60 0.00 3.60
Total Managerial Remuneration (A+B) 132.60
Overall Ceiling as per the Act Within the ceiling mentioned in part —ii of schedule V of the Companies
Act,2013
C. Remuneration of Key managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager /WTD:
Sl. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total
No. Mr. I.C. Dakalia,| Ms. Tanvi Panday,| Amount
CFO CSs (Rs.In
(from01.06.2017)| Lacs)
1. | Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the | 22.96 7.23 30.19
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) ofthe Income-taxAct, 1961 | 0.00 0.00 0.00
(c) Profitsinlieu of salary u/s 17(3) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 | 0.00 0.00 0.00
2. | Stock Option 0.00 0.00 0.00
3. | Sweat Equity 0.00 0.00 0.00
4. |.Commission 0.00 0.00 0.00
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5. | Others, please specify 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total (C) 22.96 7.23 30.19

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 43




KKALPANAINDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Appeall
SectionoftheCompa- | Brief De- Details of Penalty/Punishment/ Authority (RD/ made if

nies Act scription Compounding fees imposed NCLT/Court) any (give
details)

Type

A. COMPANY
Penalty

Punishment No Penalties, Punishments or Compounding of Offences
Compounding

B. DIRECTORS
Penalty

Punishment No Penalties, Punishments or Compounding of Offences
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment No Penalties, Punishments or Compounding of Offences
Compounding

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Narrindra Suranna
(DIN: 00060127)
Chairman & Managing Director
Place: Kolkata
Date: 28.05.2019
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Annexure-‘6’

Particulars of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo as per section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules,2014 for the year ended 31%*March, 2019.

1. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY.
A) ENERGY CONSERVATION MEASURES TAKEN:
In addition to the existing measures being practiced, the following steps were taken:-

i. Education of workforce at the Head Office regarding use of various office equipments,
especially computers in a manner that uses less energy.

ii. Installation of energy efficient equipments, such as Compact Fluorescent Light Bulbs (CFLs)
and Battery Charging Systems at all offices.

iii. Adoption of policy of having our heating and cooling equipment serviced regularly.

B) ADDITIONAL INVESTMENTS AND PROPOSALS, IF ANY, BEING IMPLEMENTED FOR
REDUCTION OF CONSUMPTION OF ENERGY.

i. Rationalization of Plants to save and optimize use of energy.
ii. Means of conservation of energy currently being utilized in process plants is being studied.
C) IMPACT OF MEASURES AT (A) AND (B)ABOVE.

Energy usage has been controlled due to above mentioned efforts being undertaken by the
company.

D) TOTALENERGY CONSUMPTIONAND ENERGY CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION.
The particulars are furnished in prescribed Form -A annexed hereto.
2. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
Efforts made in technology absorption are furnished in prescribed Form-B annexed hereto.
3. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO.

A) ACTIVITIES RELATING TO EXPORT, INITIATIVES TAKEN TO INCREASE EXPORTS,
DEVELOPMENT OF NEW EXPORT MARKETS FOR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES AND
EXPORT PLANS:

Company is making serious efforts for marketing of its products in global markets. With India’s
growing importance as a low cost manufacturing base with good health, safety and environment
practices, your company sees a great export potential in many of its products. Effective steps have
been taken in this regards and the company is receiving good responses to its efforts.

B) TOTAL FOREIGN EXCHANGE USED AND EARNED

(Rs. In Lacs)
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Total Foreign Exchange earned 29,686.29 32,409.19
Total Foreign Exchange used 49,265.09 60,997.86
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FORM - A

Disclosure of Particulars with respect to Conservation of Energy

A. Power and Fuel Consumption Unit FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18
1. Electricity

a) Purchased

Unit KWH 52,323,065.00 44,081,092.00
Total amount Rs. 293,378,446.46 225,878,130.13
Rate / Unit RS./KWH 5.61 5.12

b) Own generation (through diesel generator)

Unit KWH 268,508.00 90,721.38
Total amount Rs. 4,837,212.83 1,679,941.00
Rate / Unit (Average) RS./KWH 18.02 18.52

2. Coal

3. Furnace Ol

4. Other/Internal Generation

B. Consumption per unit of Production of

PVC, XLPE compounds & Master Batches &

Agglomerates, Ink etc

Net saleable production MT 242,860.08 222881.32
Electricity KWH / MT 216.55 198.19
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FORM-B
DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION.
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
a) Specific areas in which R & D is carried out by your company.
i) Horizontal and vertical expansion of Company’s product profile.
i) New & Improved Product Development.

iil) Up gradation of R&D lab, efforts are being made to develop state of the art R&D centre at Daman
works to cater to the growing demand for Hi- Tech products.

b) Benefits derived as a result of R & D.

Efficiency and yield improvement, loss reduction and modernization programme.

i) Import Substitution

ii) Increased Market share for various products.

iii) Better market penetration of various products.

iv) Developments of various grades of PVC & XLPE compounds to meet changing market needs.
c) Future Plan of Action.

The R & D Centre has undertaken development of various grades of PVC Compound to meet the
changing conditions.

d) Expenditure on R&D.

(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars FY ended 31%March,2019 FY ended 31March,2018
Capital 89.51 102.17
Recurring 36.93 16.08
Total R & D Expenditure 126.44 118.25

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADOPTION AND INNOVATION.
a) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adoption and innovation as above.

b) Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts: New Products are being developed for polymer mixing
by up gradation and innovation as enumerated above.

c¢) No import of technology was carried out during the last 5 years from the beginning of financial year.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Narrindra Suranna
(DIN:00060127)
Chairman and Managing Director
Place: Kolkata
Date: 28.05.2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

GLOBAL OVERVIEW:

Global Economy was more or less stagnant in the year 2018. The economic growth was 3.6% in 2018 as
against 3.8% in 2017.

Further, the tariff war between United States of America (USA) and China will have pernicious effect and
global economy. If this continues, global trade will be definitely weakened.

The spin off of the above referred trade war may result in currency war also. Moreover, Britain coming out
of European Union will also have adverse effect on growth trajectory.

INDIAN ECONOMY

The GDP for 2018-19 has been 6.8%. It is, however, surmised that the GDP for 2019-20 will be 7%. But if
the Indian economy has to be a $5 trillion economy by 2024-25, this growth rate will not suffice. Moreover,
there must be credit growth of 17-18% in the next 3 — 4 years for the Indian economy to achieve the
targeted $5 trillion market.

Industry Overview
Kkalpana Industries (India) Limited mainly caters to cable and wires companies which are mainly in the

unorganized sector. However, after introduction of Goods and Services Tax (GST), the organized sector
will find it easy to market their products.

Industry Structure and Developments

India will need to generate 0.5KW of electricity per person to provide reasonable level of living opportunity
to its population. Based on current population, projection for 2025 will be 710GW as against 280GW
presently. Therefore, the capacity increase for generating power/electricity must be 2.5 approximately.

The above scenario will benefit your company immensely. Since, it mainly operates in cable and wire
industry.

Company’s Performance;

Critical financial figures for 2018-19 are as under:-

e Gross turnover for the year is Rs. 2,020.83 Crore against Rs. 1,773.52 Crore in 2017-18.
e PBIDT for the year Rs.114.33 Crore as against 107.03 Crore in 2017-18.

o Profit before Tax for the year Rs. 40.42 Crore against Rs.34.50 Crore in 2017-18.

e Capital Structure of the Company as at 31st March 2019 is Rs. 18.81 Cr comprising of 94072930 nos.
of equity shares of Rs. 2/- each.

B. Product wise operational performance:-

Product wise, your company is engaged in manufacturing of the following products, the performance of
which is discussed below-

Poly Vinyl Chloride

The turnover from Poly Vinyl Chloride is Rs 48,310.54 lacs as against Rs 43,326.23 lacs in the previous
year.

Polyethylene

Turnover from Polyethylene is Rs. 122,807.20 lacs in the year under review year as against Rs. 88,372.83
lacs in the previous year.

Agglomerates, Reprocessed Granules, Scraps & Others
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Turnover from these items is Rs. 29,785.45 lacs as against Rs. 44,322.01 lacs in the previous year.

Euture Outlook

Since the overall picture of Indian economy in 2019-20 and also 2020-21 is not rosy, industries in general

are bound to face slowdown in demand. However, the company has started taking effective steps to

safeguard its topline and bottomline. In this regard, you should be happy to note that your company

recognizes that continuous innovation across products, processes and systems will be the springboard to

catapult your company to higher profits and growth. The directors of the company are confident that these

steps will protect the company from the adverse impact of slowdown in Indian economy.

SWOT Analysi

Strength Weakness

e Large scale of operation allows economies of scale | ¢ The weakness will mainly flow from slow down in Indian
of production economy

e Geographical spread of operation in India allows | ¢ The global tariff was and probably currency war will affect
access to a large and diversified customer base both demand and supply

String financials credentials
Skilled and diversified work force with considerable

experience

Threat Opportunities

o It is expected that there will be liquidity crisi in | ¢ The Central Government’s mission for electricity in all
Indian Financial market. Stiffterms and conditions houses and particularly in rural areas will require demand of
may be imposed for borrowings. As it is, the cost the Company’s product from cable and wire industry.
of capital has increased thereby affecting the | ¢ The Central Government can convert the tariff war and
bottomlines of Industry, ingeneral. currency war into opportunity for demand growth of Indian

Industry, if it lays down proper economic policies
Risks and Concerns;

The company has comprehensive risk management framework in place, which consists of
a) Process to identity, prioritize and formulate mitigation plans for risks and

b) Aframework of rules and regulations for various officials/ employees and the Board, in discharging the
risk management process, periodicity of reporting risk management.

As a part of this risk management framework, the company has identified for each conceivable risk and
corresponding mitigation plan to ensure continuous risk monitoring and risk mitigation.

Internal Control System,

The Company always strives to strengthen Internal Control Systems and processes for smooth and
efficient conduct of business and complies with applicable relevant laws and regulations. A comprehensive
delegation of power exists for smooth decision making. Elaborate guidelines for preparation of accounts are
followed for uniform compliance. Further, all the key functional areas are governed by respective operating
manuals. In order to ensure that all checks and balances are in place and all Internal Control Systems are
in work, regular and exhaustive internal audits are conducted by experienced firm of accountants in close
co-ordination with the company’s concerned accredited officials.

The Internal Financial Control are reviewed periodically and in particular the Internal Auditors ensure
that the company has in all material aspects, laid down Internal Financial Controls including operational
controls and that such controls are adequate and operating efficiently.

H R | Industrial Relati

The Company appreciates performance of the employees for the year and anticipates much more for the
years to come. Your Company believes in employee empowerment across the entire organization in order
to achieve organizational effectiveness. The Human Resource policies are soundly drafted for all levels
of employees to serve them motivation, transfer & promotions and to retain the skills. Over a period of
time, your company has built and nurtured a dedicated and excellent workforce who consists of engineers,
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CAs, CSs, MBAs, and advance degree holders like PhDs having a big business portfolio. The Industrial
relations of the Company was cordial and there were no instances of employee disputes arising during
the year.

Your company has sufficient pool of talents in various operational fields. The Human Resource environment
has been very smooth throughout the year.

The company takes special care about the safety, which is core value of the company and all necessary
actions are taken in the company to keep safety as priority.

Cautionary Statement

Certain statements made in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report relating to the Company’s
objectives, projections, estimates, and expectations and others may constitute ‘forward looking statements’
within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those
expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the Company’s operations include
economic conditions affecting demand/supply and price conditions in the domestic and overseas markets

in which the Company operates, changes in the Government regulations, tax laws, natural calamities and
so on over which the company does not have any direct control.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
NarrindraSuranna
(DIN: 00060127)
Chairman & Managing Director
Place: Kolkata
Date: 28.05.2019
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1.

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Corporate Governance refers to a set of laws, regulations and good practices that enable an
organization to perform efficiently and ethically generate long term wealth and create value for all
its stakeholders. It provides structure to set the objectives, the means to attain them and monitor the
performance. It is a commitment to the business ethics and values and not limited to compliances
and transparency. Since Large Corporations employ a vast quantum of societal resources, Kkalpana
believes that the governance process should ensure that these resources are utilized in a manner that
meets stakeholders’ aspirations and societal expectations.

Corporate Governance helps to serve corporate purpose by providing a framework within which
stakeholders can pursue the objectives of the organization most effectively. Corporate governance
signifies acceptance by management of the inalienable rights of shareholders as the true owners of
the organization and of their own role as trustees on behalf of the shareholders.

The Philosophy of the Company in relation to Corporate Governance is to ensure transparent
disclosures and reporting that conforms to laws, regulations and guidelines and continue focusing
on its resources, strengths and strategies to achieve its vision of becoming a market leader in
plastics industries, while upholding the core values of excellence, integrity, responsibility, unity and
understanding, which are fundamental to Kkalpana Group.

Corporate Governance is an integral part of value, ethics and best business practices followed by the
Company. The core values of the Company are commitment to excellence & customer satisfaction
and maximizing long term shareholder’s value. In a nutshell, the philosophy can be described as
observing of business practices with the ultimate aim of enhancing long term shareholder’s value and
commitment to high standard of business ethics.

Some of the major initiatives taken by the Company towards strengthening its corporate governance
systems and practices include the following:

Secretarial Audit:

The Company has appointed an independent practicing Company Secretary to conduct Secretarial
audit. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2018-19 forms part of Directors Report.

The Company Secretary plays a key role in ensuring that the Board procedures are followed and
regularly reviewed. The Company Secretary ensures that all relevant information, details and
documents are made available to the directors and senior management for effective decision making
at the meetings.

The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) is one of the premiere professional bodies in
India. ICSI has issued Secretarial Standards on important aspects like Board Meetings (SS1), General
Meetings (SS2), Payment of Dividend (SS3), Maintenance of Registers and Records, Minutes of
Meetings and Transfer / Transmission of Shares. The observance of Secretarial Standards SS1, SS2
and SS3 are mandatory. Rest are recommendatory in nature, the company adheres to the applicable
standards voluntarily.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board of Kkalpana has an appropriate mix of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. The Non-
Executive Directors include Independent Directors and a women Director and is in conformity with
Regulation — 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
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The composition of the Board and Category of Directors is as follows:

a) As on 31**March, 2019, the Board comprises Chairman & Managing Director, two Whole Time
Directors, one non executive non independent director and four non executive independent
directors including two Women Director. The Chairman is an Executive Director.

b) None of the Directors on the Board are Members of more than ten Committees or Chairman of
more than five Committees across all the Companies in which they are Directors. Necessary
disclosures regarding Committee positions in other public Companies have been made by the
Directors.

c) The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings held
during the year and at the last (AGM), as also the number of Directorship and Committee positions
held by them in other Companies are given herein below.

Name Designation Category Attendance Outside Directorships & Committee Position
Particulars (excluding Kkalpana Industries (India) Limited)

Board | Last | Other Director ships** | Committee | Committee
Meeting | AGM Member- | Chairman-
ships# ships#

Narrindra Suranna |Chairman & Executive & 5 Yes |- - -
Managing Director |Promoter
Rajesh Kothari Whole Time Executive 3 Yes |- 2 -
Director
Dr.P.R.Mukherjee |Whole Time Executive 5 Yes |- 1 -
Director (Technical)
Dev Krishna Surana| Director Non Executive & |0 N.A. |- - -
Non Independent
Samir Kumar Dutta | Director Non Executive & |5 Yes |1. Plastic Processors |1 1
Independent and Exporter Private
Limited*
2. Kkalpana Plastick
Limited
Ramakant Mishra|Director Non Executive & |5 Yes |Kkalpana Plastick Limited |3 3
Independent
Mamta Binani Director Non Executive & |4 Yes |1. GPT Infraprojects 5 2
Independent Limited

2. Century Plyboards
(India) Limited

3. Emami Cements
Limited

4. Magma Housing
Finance

5. Skipper Limited

6. Vikram Solar Limited

7. Anmol Industries

Limited
Ramya Hariharan |Director Non Executive & |1 N.A. |1. Tayo Rolls Limited |7 -
Independent 2. Al Champdany

Industries Limited

3. SMIFS Capital Markets
Limited

4. NeoMetaliks Limited
5. Visa Energy Ventures
Limited

* Plastic Processors and Exporter Private Limited is a subsidiary of M/s Kkalpana Industries (India) Limited
and hence considered as deemed public company.

** Directorship includes only Public Companies.

# Committees includes Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee across all companies.
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Details of the Directors Seeking appointment / re- appointment at the Annual General Meeting, pursuant to
Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 have been
given along with the Notice of Annual General Meeting.

As required under the Accounting Standard 18 transaction with related parties are furnished under note

41 of notes on financial statement. There was no transactions of material nature with Promoter Directors

or their relatives, etc. that may have potential conflict with the interest of the company. With regards to

disclosure received from Directors and senior management there was no transaction with the company

which might have potential conflict with the interest of the company at a large.

Shareholdings of directors as on 31.03.2019 are as under:

Name of the Director

No. of Ordinary Shares held

% of Paid — up Capital

Narrindra Suranna 2000 0.002%
Rajesh Kothari - -
Dr.P.R.Mukherjee - -
Dev Krishna Surana 683850 0.73%

Samir Kumar Dutta

Ramakant Mishra

Mamta Binani

Ramya Hariharan - -

3. BOARD AGENDA,

Scheduli | Selecti
Meetings are governed by a structured agenda. The Board members, in consultation with the Chairman,
may bring up any matter for the consideration of the Board. All departments of the Company schedule
their work plans in advance, particularly with regard to matters requiring consideration at the Board/
Committee Meetings. All such matters are communicated to the Company Secretary in advance so
that the same could be included in the agenda for the Board/ Committee Meetings.

Inf i . to the B |

The dates for the Board Meetings for the ensuing year are decided well in advance and communicated
to the Directors. Additional meetings of the Board are held when deemed necessary. Board members
are given agenda papers along with necessary documents and information in advance of each meeting
of the Board and Committee(s). However, in case of business exigencies or urgencies, few resolutions
are passed by way of circulation and if required same is supported by an audio call to explain the
rationale. The Board periodically reviews compliance reports with respect to laws and regulations
applicable to the Company. The recommendations of the Committees are placed before the Board for
necessary approvals. The information as enumerated in Part A of Schedule Il of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI
Listing Regulations’) is made available to the Board of Directors for discussions and considerations

Post Meeting follow up System:
The Governance processes in the Company include an effective post meeting follow-up, review
and reporting process for action taken / pending on decisions of the Board. Decisions are promptly

communicated to the concerned departments. Action taken report on decisions / minutes of previous
meetings is placed at the succeeding meetings of the Board/ Committee for noting.

DETAILS OF BOARD MEETINGS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

The Meetings of the Board of Directors are normally held at the Company’s Registered Office at
Kolkata. During the financial year 2018-2019, 5(Five) meetings of the Board were held and the gap
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between two meetings did not exceed four months (120 days). The dates on which the said meetings
were held are as follows:

SI.No Date SI.No Date
1 30.05.2018 4 01.01.2019
2 08.08.2018 5 11.02.2019
3 14.11.2018
Board Independence.

Based on the confirmation/ disclosures received from the Directors, all Non-Executive Directors are
Independent in terms of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the
SEBI Listing Regulations. There are no material pecuniary relationships or transactions between the
Independent Directors and the Company, except for sitting fees and commission drawn by them for
attending the meeting of the Board and Committee(s) thereof. None of the Non-Executive Directors
hold any shares or convertible instruments in the Company. None of the Directors are related to each
other.

None of the Independent Directors have resigned before expiry of his/her tenure.

A separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 14" February, 2019 to discuss inter
alia:

1. The performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive
and Non- executive Directors;

2. The performance of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;

3. The quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

Board Familiarizati | Induction P

The Company has adopted a well-structured induction policy for orientation and training of the Non-
Executive Directors to provide them with an opportunity to familiarise themselves with the Company,
its management, its operations and the industry in which the Company operates. The induction
programme includes one-to-one interactive sessions with the Executive Directors, Senior Management
including the Business CEQOs and also includes visit to Company and plant sites and locations. The
details of familiarization programmes imparted to independent director is available under the head
policy at www.kkalpanagroup.com/investor-relations.php

Code of Busi Conduct | Ethi
The Company has laid down a Code of Conduct (COC) which is applicable to all the Board members
and Senior Management of the Company. The COC is available on the website of the Company
www.kkalpanagroup.com under the head Policies. The Code has been circulated to all members of

the Board and Senior Management and they have affirmed compliance with the Code. A declaration
signed by the Managing Director (CEO) to this effect is attached to this Report.

Certificati

The certificate required under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations duly signed by the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer was placed before the Board and the same is
provided in this report.

Core Skills of Board
Your Directors posses adequate skills/ expertise/ competencies in the areas of marketing, research and

development, finance and accounts, HR/administration, Legal and Operations for smooth operation of
the company.
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5. BOARD COMMITTEES:

The Board has constituted Committee(s) of directors, with adequate delegation of powers. The
Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to the Committees. The Board is responsible
for constituting, assigning and co-opting the members of the Committees. Each Committee has
its own charter which sets forth the purposes, goals and responsibilities of the Committees. These
Committees comprise mainly of Independent Directors who as per the terms of reference oversee the
Committee’s function and executes its duties and responsibilities.

Presently, there are Four Committees—the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The Board
periodically reviews the minutes of the meetings of above mentioned Committees. Composition,
terms of reference, number of meetings and related attendance etc., of these committees are detailed
below:-

5.1 AUDIT COMMITTEE:

As on March 31, 2019, the Audit Committee of the Board comprises of two (2) Non-Executive
Directors and one (1) executive Director. The Chairperson of the Audit Committee is a Non-Executive
Independent Director. The composition of the Committee is in compliance with the provisions of
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“hereinafter referred as “SEBI Listing Regulations” or
“Listing Agreement”)

The CEO, CFO, Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors also attend the meeting of the Audit Committee
as invitees. Other invitees are invited on need basis to brief the Audit Committee on important matters.

The role and terms of reference of the Audit Committee are set out in Regulation 18(3) read with Part
C of Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, besides
other terms as may be referred to by the Board of Directors of the Company. The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee broadly are:

1. Approval of annual internal audit plan;
2. Review and approval of related party transactions (including Omnibus approval, if any);
Review of financial reporting systems;

3

4. Ensuring compliance with regulatory guidelines;

5. Reviewing the quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results;
6

Discussing the annual financial statements and auditors report before submission to the Board with
particular reference to the (i) Director’s Responsibility Statement; (ii) changes, if any, in accounting
policies (iii) major accounting entries; (iv) significant adjustments in financial statements arising
out of audit findings; (v) compliance with listing requirements; (vi) disclosure of related party
transactions, if any; (vii) modified opinion, if any, in audit report etc.;

7. Interaction with statutory, internal and cost auditors;
8. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors; and

9. Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of audit
process etc.

Further the Audit Committee also mandatorily reviews the following information:

1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

2. Statement of significant related party transactions submitted by management;

3. Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

4. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;
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5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the internal auditor shall be subject to
review by the audit committee; and

6. Statement of deviations:

(a) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable,
submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations;

(b) Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/
prospectus/ notice in terms of Regulation 32(7) of SEBI Listing Regulations.

In addition to the above, the Audit Committee also reviews the financial statements, minutes and
details of investments made by the subsidiary companies.

All the Members of the Committee have good knowledge of finance, accounts and company law within
the meaning of Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing Regulations. During the year under review, the committee
met four (4) times on 30.05.2018, 08.08.2018, 14.11.2018 and 11.02.2019. The Composition of the
Committee and the attendance at each Committee Meetings are as follows:-

. Attendance of Directors

Name of Director Category 30.05.2018 | 08.08.2018 | 14.11.2018 | 11.02.2019

Ramakant Mishra —| Non Executive Independent Yes Yes Yes Yes
Chairman

Samir Kumar Dut- | Non Executive Independent Yes Yes Yes Yes
ta-Member

Rajesh Kothari — | Executive, Whole Time Di- Yes No No Yes
Member rector
P f Audit C itt

The audit committee shall have powers which should include the following:

1. Toinvestigate any activity within its terms of reference.

2. Toseek information from any employee.

3. Toobtain outside legal or other professional advice.

4. Tosecure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.
5.2 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE :

The composition of the Committee is in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The role
of Committee inter-alia includes:

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of
a Director and recommend to the Board of Directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees;

2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board of
Directors;

3. Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors;

4. Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board of Directors
their appointment and removal;

5. To consider and evaluate whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent
Directors, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of Independent Directors.

As on 31.03.2019, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises of Four (4) members all of
whom are Non-Executive Independent Directors. The Chairman of the Committee is a Non-Executive
Independent Director
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During FY 2018-19, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met two (2) time i.e. on 30" May,
2018 and 11" February, 2019.

The composition and attendance of members at the meetings held during FY 2018-19, are given
below

C iti | Attend :
Sl Name of Director Composition Meeting(s) attended
No 30.05.2019 11.02.2019
1 Samir Kumar Dutta Chairman Yes Yes
2 Ramakant Mishra Member Yes Yes
3 Mamta Binani Member Yes No
4 Ramya Hariharan Member (wef11.02.2019) | N.A N.A

Perf Evaluation Criteri

The Company believes in conducting its business affairs in a fair and transparent manner; giving
highest regard to good Corporate Governance practices and ensuring transparency, accountability
and equity across all facets of operation and in all interactions with Stakeholders.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee had laid down the evaluation criteria for performance
evaluation of every director including Independent director and the Board pursuant to the Corporate
Governance norms prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations.

R ion Policy:

Nomination and Remuneration Committee recommends the remuneration for the Executive Directors,
key managerial personnel and employees one level below the Board. The recommendation is then
approved by the Board and if required then also by Shareholders. The remuneration paid to Executive
Directors is determined keeping in view the industry benchmark, the relative performance of the
Company to the industry performance. Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for their
professional expertise in their individual capacity as individual Professionals/ Business Executives.
Since Independent Non-Executive Directors receive only sitting fees for attending Board and
Committee Meetings, therefore, no criteria for making payments, other than sitting fees, is determined.

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company have a crucial role to play in the independent functioning
of the Board. They bring in an external and wider perspective to the deliberations and decision-making
by the Board. The Independent Directors devote their valuable time to discussions in the course
of the Board and Committee meetings of the Company. They also help to ensure good corporate
governance norms.

The responsibilities and obligations imposed on the Non- Executive Directors have recently increased
manifold owing to new legislative initiatives. Contribution of the Non-Executive Directors in Board and
Committee Meetings, time devoted by them, participation in strategic decision making, performance of
the Company and industry practices and benchmarks forms the main criteria for determining payments
to Non- Executive Directors.

The remuneration of the Non- Executive Directors (NEDs) of the Company is decided by the Board of
Directors. The Non- Executive Directors of the Company are being paid sitting fees of Rs. 10000 /- for
attending each meeting of Board and Committees of Directors. Besides sitting fees, the Non Executive
Directors of the company were not paid any other remuneration or commission.

The Company pays remuneration to its Managing Director and Whole Time Directors by way of
salary, perquisites and allowances, based on the recommendation of the Committee, approval of the
Board and shareholders. The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, approves the annual increments (effective from 1%t April each year).
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Details of Remuneration Paid to Executive & Non- Executive Directors:
(Amount in Rs.)

Name Position Sitting | Salary & | Commission|  Total
Fees Perks
Narrindra Suranna Chairman & Managing Director Nil| 70,00,000 Nil| 70,00,000
Rajesh Kothari Whole Time Director Nil| 40,00,000 Nil| 40,00,000
Dr. P.R.Mukherjee Whole Time Director Nil| 19,00,000 Nil| 19,00,000
Dev Krishna Surana | Non Executive Non Independent Director Nil Nil Nil Nil
Samir Kumar Dutta Non Executive Independent Director 1,30,000 Nil Nil|  1,30,000
Ramakant Mishra Non Executive Independent Director 1,60,000 Nil Nil|  1,60,000
Mamta Binani Non Executive Independent Director 60,000 Nil Nil 60,000
Ramya Hariharan Non Executive Independent Director 10,000 Nil Nil 10,000

5.3. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE :
The main function of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is to strengthen the investor relations.

The Committee looks into redressal of shareholders’ complaints and proper and timely attendance
on the investors grievances. The key responsibilities of the Committee are as under:

(i) Redressal of Shareholders’/Investors’ complaints;

(ii) Non-receipt of declared dividends, annual reports of the Company; and

(iii) Recording of Share Transfer(s)/ Transmission(s) and Issue of Duplicate Share(s).
(iv) Carrying out any other function as prescribed under in the SEBI Listing Regulations.

c i
Shri Ramakant Mishra -Non Executive Independent Director—Chairman
Shri Rajesh.Kothari — Executive Director - Member

Dr.P.R.Mukherjee — Executive Director- Member

The Committee meets 4 times in the year 2018-19.

SI.No Name Meeting Attendance
29.05.2018| 08.08.2018| 14.11.2018 | 14.02.2019
1 Shri Ramakant Mishra Yes Yes Yes Yes
2 Shri Rajesh Kothari Yes No No Yes
3 Dr.P.R.Mukherjee Yes Yes Yes Yes

The Company Secretary of the Company is the Compliance Officer. No complaints were received nor
were any complaints pending to be resolved during the financial year 2018-19

5.4. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The prime responsibility of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is to assist the Board in
discharging its social responsibilities by way of formulating and monitoring implementation of the
framework of ‘Corporate Social Responsibility Policy’.

JTerms of Reference

Terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee includes the following:

1. Toformulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy and any
amendments thereof, indicating activities to be undertaken by the Company in compliance with
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under;

2. Torecommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities as per CSR Policy;

3. Tomonitor the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time;

4. Toinstitute a transparent monitoring mechanism for implementation of the CSR projects or
programmes or activities undertaken by the Company;

5. Any other matter/ thing as may be considered expedient by the members in furtherance of and to
comply with the CSR Policy of the Company.
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c iti
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises the following four members:
Dr. P.R.Mukherjee —Chairman

Shri Narrindra Suranna — Member

Shri Rajesh Kothari — Member

Shri Samir Kumar Dutta - Member

The Committee met 1 time i.e. on 14.02.2019 during the year 2018-19, wherein all its members were
present.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee’s composition meets the requirements of Section 135
of the Companies Act, 2013.

6. DETAILS OF GENERAL MEETING :

Annual General Meeting :
The last Three Annual General Meetings were held as under :
Financial Year| Date Time Venue Special Business, if any.
2017-2018 27" 10:00 AM Gyan Manch, Ratification of Remuneration payable to Cost Auditor;
September, 11 Pretoria Street, | Re-appointment of Dr. Pranab Ranjan Mukherjee as
2018 Kolkata—700071 | Whole Time Director of the Company
Ratification of appointment of Mr. Samir Kumar
Dutta as Non Executive Independent Director of the
Company.
2016-2017 23 10:00 AM Gyan Manch, Ratification of Remuneration payable to Cost Auditor;
September, 11 Pretoria Street, | Re-appointment of Mr. Narrindra Suranna as Manging
2017 Kolkata—700071 | Director of the Company
Re-appointment of Dr. Pranab Ranjan Mukherjee as
Whole Time Director (Technical)ofthe Company
Appointment of Mr. Samir Kumar Dutta as Independent
Director of the Company.
2015-2016 29t 12.15 P.M Gyan Manch, Ratification of Remuneration payable to Cost Auditor;
September, 11 Pretoria Street, | Determination of fees to be charged for service of
2016 Kolkata—700071 | documentstomembersthroughany particularmode;
Re-appointmentof Mr. Rajesh Kotharias Whole Time
Director.

None of the businesses proposed to be transacted in the ensuing Annual General Meeting require
passing a special resolution through Postal Ballot.

6.1 Extraordinary / other General Meeting: No extraordinary General Meeting of the Shareholders

was held during the year.

6.2 Postal Ballot: During the year under review no postal ballot was held
6.3 Pledge of Shares

No Pledge has been created over the Equity Shares held by the Promoters and/or Promoters Group
Shareholders during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2019.

6.4 Review of legal compliance reports

During the year, the Board periodically reviewed reports placed by the management with respect
to compliance of various laws applicable to the Company. The Internal Auditors also review the
compliance status and report to the Audit Committee.
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7. DISCLOSURES:
7.1 Di

There are no materially significant transactions made by the company with its promoters, Directors
or Management or relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company
at large.

However, attention of the members is drawn to the disclosure of transactions with the related
parties and transactions as required under Accounting Standard (AS) 18 on Related Party
Disclosures issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, set out in Notes to financial
statement no 41 , forming part of the Annual Report.

The policy on dealing with related party transactions is available under the head policy in https://
www.kkalpanagroup.com/investor-relations.php.

The policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is available under the head policy in https://www.
kkalpanagroup.com/investor-relations.php.

7.2 Details of Non compliance:-

The company has complied with the requirements of the stock exchanges, SEBI and other
authorities on all matters relating to capital market during last three years. No penalties or strictures
have been imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other authorities relating
to the above.

7.3 Disclosure of Risk Management :-

The company has laid down procedures to inform the Board Members about the risk assessment
and risk mitigation mechanism, which is periodically reviewed and reported to the Board of
Directors by Senior Executives.

7.4 Proceeds from Issues. if any :- Not Applicable.
7.5 Whistle Bl Policy / Viail Mechani

The Audit Committee of the Company have formulated certain procedures to govern the receipt,
retention, and treatment of complaints regarding the Company’s accounting, internal accounting
controls or auditing matters, and to protect the confidential, anonymous reporting of director(s) or
employee(s) or any other person regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters.

During the year, no concerns have been reported under this mechanism. It is also affirmed that no
personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee.

7.6 Discretionary Requirements

Disclosure details of some of the Discretionary Requirements, as per Part E of Schedule Il to
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, are as below:

Ihe Board

The Board of the Company is chaired by an Executive Director who maintains the Chairman’s
office at the Company’s expense.

Modified opinion(s) i i

There was no qualification, observation or adverse remark by the auditors on the financial
statements of the Company.

S I ts of Chai | Chief E tive Offi

The office of Chairman and Chief Executive officer of the Company are held by same individual.
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R ing of i Laudi

As per the requirements, the internal auditor may report directly to the Audit Committee. The same
is reported by briefing the Audit Committee through discussion.

The Company has made all disclosures regarding compliance with corporate governance
requirements specified in regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of subregulation (2) of regulation
46 of SEBI Listing Regulations, in the section on corporate governance of the annual report.

7.7.0ther Disclosures

Brief profile and other information , pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation ,2015, in respect of Directors seeking appointment / re
appointment at the AGM, is given elsewhere in the Annual Report;-

Management Discussion and Analysis Report are given separately and forms part of Annual
Report.

7.8 CEO and CFO Certification :-

The Chairman and Managing Director (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) have certified to
the Board in accordance with Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015)pertaining to CEO / CFO certification for the financial year
ended 31%*March, 2019. The same is reproduced below;

Chief E ive Officer (CEQ) / Chief Fi ial Officer (CEO) Certificati

To,

The Board of Directors,
Kkalpana Industries (India) Ltd,
2B, Pretoria Street,

Kolkata — 700 071

Sub: CEO & CFO Certificate

(Issued in accordance with provisions of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

Shri Narrindra Suranna , CEO and Shri I.C.Dakalia, CFO heading the finance function have certified to
the Board that :

A. They have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best
of their knowledge and belief:

(1) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

(2) these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed entity
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed entity’s code of conduct.

C. They accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and
that they have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the listed entity pertaining to
financial reporting and they have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the
design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which they are aware and the steps they have
taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D. They have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee

(1) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
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(2) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

(3) that they are not aware of any instances of significant fraud and the involvement therein, if any,
of the management or an employee having a significant role in the listed entity’s internal control
system over financial reporting.

Date: 28.05.2019 |.C.Dakalia Narrindra Suranna (DIN:00060127)
Place: Kolkata Chief Financial Officer CEO
8 CODE OF CONDUCT FOR BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT.

10

11

The Company has adopted the code of conduct for Senior Management and Directors. The code has
been circulated to all the members of the Board and senior management and the same has been put
on the Company’s website (http://kkalpanagroup.com/investor-relations.php) under the head Code of
Conduct. The Board members and senior management have affirmed their compliance with the code
and a declaration signed by the Managing Director and CEO of the Company appointed in terms of
the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed separately to this report.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION :

Ei ial Resul

In compliance with the requirements of SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has intimated the
financial results to the stock exchanges immediately after they are taken on record by the Board.
Further coverage has been given for the benefit of the shareholders and investors by publication of
the financial results in the leading national dailies like Economic Times / Financial Express / Business
Standard etc., and a local vernacular newspaper (Arthik Lipi) circulated in the state of West Bengal.

Up-to-date financial results, annual reports, shareholding patterns and other general information about
the Company are available on the Company’s website http://www.Kkalpanagroup.com.

{3 B H LAY

The Listing Centre of BSE is a web based application designed by BSE for corporates. All periodical
compliance filings like shareholding pattern, corporate governance report, media releases, etc. are
also filed electronically on the Listing Centre and readily available on their website www.bseindia.com.

SEBI Online Complaints Red System (SCORES):

The investor complaints are processed in a centralized web based complaints redressal system. The
salient features of this system are:

Centralized database of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by the concerned
companies and online viewing by investors of actions taken on the complaint and its current status.
Your Company is registered on SCORES.

CODE OF INSIDER TRADING:

In pursuance of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992, the Board has laid down
“Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading” with objective of Preventing purchase and or
sale of shares of the company by an insider on the basis of unpublished price sensitive information.
Further the Trading Window has been closed for the Directors and Employees of the Company as
per Insider Trading Code in force in the Company. The code of conduct for insider trading is available
on the Company’s website (http://kkalpanagroup.com/investor-relations.php) under the head Code of
Conduct.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION :

(i) Annual General Meeting (AGM)
Day, Date & Time : Friday, the 27" September, 2019 at 10:00 A.M.
Venue : Gyan Manch, 11- Pretoria Street, Kolkata — 700 071
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(i) Date of Book Closure : Saturday, 215 September, 2019 to Friday, 27"September, 2019
(both days inclusive)

(iii) Dividend (for FY 2018-19) payment date: 02.10.2019.
(iv) Financial Calendar for Year 2019-2020 (tentative)

The Company follows the financial year from April to March.

For the quarter ending 30" June ,2019 Within 45 days of
For the quarter & half year ending 30" September ,2019 the end of the
For the quarter & nine months ending 31stDecember, 2019 quarter.
With in 60 days of
For the quarter & year ending 31stMarch ,2020 (Audited) the end of the
Quarter/Year.

(v) Listing on Stock Exchanges: The Share of the Company is listed in the following Exchanges.

Name of the Stock Exchanges Stock Code
The Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.(BSE) 526409
The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd. (CSE) 10029050

The Company has paid the annual listing fees for the financial year 2018-19 to all the exchanges and
has paid the custodial fees to National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for the financial year 2018-19.

(vii) Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity:

Trading in the Equity Shares of the Company is permitted only in dematerialised form. Shareholders
may therefore, in their own interest, dematerialise their holdings in physical form, with any one of
the Depositories namely National Securities Depository Ltd (NSDL) and Central Depository Services
(India) Ltd (CDSL). The ISIN No. for the Equity Shares of the Company is INE301C01028. As on 31¢
March, 2019, 92729905 shares representing 98.57% of the Equity Shares stand dematerialised. It
may be noted that in respect of shares held in demat form, all the request of shares held in demat
form, all the requests for nomination, change of address, NECS, Bank Mandate and rematerialisation
etc. are to be made only to the Depository Participant (DP) of the Shareholders.

(viii)Registrar & Transfer Agent:

All communications related to share matters of the Company should be made to M/s. C B Management
Services (P) Limited. Address of which is given below:

M/s. C B Management Services (P) Limited

P-22- Bondel Road, Kolkata — 700 019

Phone: 033 2280 6692 / 93/ 94/ 2486 / 4011 6700
Fax: 033 2287 0263

E mail: ta@cbmsl.com

(ix) Share Transfer System:

The Board has authorised Registrar and Share Transfer Agents for processing of share transfers/
transmissions, which are taken on record and ratified by the Company’s Stakeholder Relationship
Committee.

This Committee meets as and when required for approving the share transfers/transmissions
except those rejected on technical grounds.

Pursuant to Regulation 40(9) of the SEBI Listing Regulation, certificate has been issued by a
Company Secretary-in-Practice for due compliance of share transfer formalities by the Company.
Also, pursuant to Regulation 55A of SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996,
certification is done by a Company Secretary-in-Practice regarding timely dematerialisation of the
shares of the Company.
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The Company has appointed M/s. CB Management Services (P) Limited as a common agency
for share registry work (both physical & electronic) in compliance of circular No. D&CC/FITTC/
CIR15/2002 dated 27" December, 2002 issued by SEBI, for all matters connected with transfers
and transmissions of shares and also dematerialization of shares and other related functions.

(x) Investor Grievance Redressal System.

The investor grievances against the company are handled by the Company’s Registrar and Transfer
Agents (RTA), in consultation with the Secretarial Department of the Company. The Registrars
have adequate skilled staff with professional qualifications and advance computer systems for
speedy redressal of investor’s grievances. The total process of settlement of a complaint right from
its receipt to disposal is fully computerized to ensure timely settlement. It normally takes 15 days
from the date of receipt of complaint for disposal of investor grievances.

ONE Investor’s complaint / queries was received and resolved during the year under review or
were required to be resolved.

(xi) Unpaid / Unclaimed Dividend.

Pursuant to section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, unpaid or unclaimed dividend upto the
financial year 2010-11 have been transferred to the General Revenue Account of the Central
Government.

The unpaid / unclaimed dividend for the financial year ended 31 March, 2012 and thereafter ,
which remains unpaid / unclaimed for a period of seven years will be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government. Members, who
have not yet enchased their dividend warrants for the financial year 31 March, 2012 or any
subsequent financial years, are requested to lodge their claims without any delay. It is important
to note that once the unclaimed dividend is transferred to the aforesaid, no claim shall lie in
respect of thereof on the company. Then the shareholders have to claim dividend from the Central
Government.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Investor Education and Protection Fund (Uploading of information
regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has
already filed the necessary form and uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying
with the Company, as on the date of last AGM (i.e.27.09.2018), with the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs.

(xii) Market Price Data :

The shares of the company are currently traded at BSE. The Stock Market data from 1=*April, 2018
to 31stMarch , 2019 are given below :

Months Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
Monthly High Price | Monthly Low Price Sensex Highest Sensex Lowest

April 18 39.95 33.00 35213.30 32972.56
May 18 39.80 29.00 35993.53 34302.89
June 18 34.15 26.70 35877.41 34784.68
July 18 30.40 24.15 37644.59 35106.57
August 18 37.00 25.50 38989.65 37128.99
September 18 33.25 27.00 38934.35 35985.63
October 18 29.95 23.60 36616.64 33291.58
November 18 34.80 26.00 36389.22 34303.38
December 18 35.90 28.10 36554.99 34426.29
January 19 32.40 23.10 36701.03 35375.51
February 19 25.05 18.50 37172.18 35287.16
March 19 24.50 18.65 38748.54 35926.94
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(xiii) Distribution Schedule as on 31.03.2019

Range of Shares No of Share % of Total Share No of Shares % of Total Share
Holders Holders Holdings

1 to 500 4375 74.98 1490458 1.58
501 to 1000 644 11.04 598412 0.64
1001 to 2000 296 5.07 472358 0.50
2001 to 3000 171 2.93 436305 0.46
3001 to 4000 60 1.03 219015 0.23
4001 to 5000 69 1.18 333337 0.35
5001 to 10000 98 1.68 739036 0.79
10001 to Above 122 2.09 89784009 95.45

TOTAL 5835 100.00 94072930 100.00

(xiv) Share Holding Pattern as on 31.03.2019

Category No. of Shares Held % of holding
Promoter’s Holding
i) Individual / HUF 764860 0.81
ii) Bodies Corporate 69641685 74.03
Total Promoter’s Holdings 70406545 74.84
Non Promoter’s Holding
Mutual Funds / UTI 0 0.00
Financial Institutions / Banks 125 0.00
Private Body Corporate 13307491 14.15
IEPF 1195133 1.27
Indian Public 8846001 9.41
Non-Resident Indian 292031 0.31
Clearing Members 4087 0.00
LLP 21517 0.02
Total Non Promoters Holdings 23666385 25.16
Total 94072930 100%

(xv) Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants / Convertible Instruments and likely impact on Equity :

The Company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any other convertible instruments to be
converted into equity shares.

(xvi) Corporate Identification Number (CIN)

The Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Kolkata, West Bengal. The Corporate
Identity Number (CIN) allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is
L19202WB1985PLC039431.

(xvii) Credit Rating

CRISIL has given the following credit rating for outstanding debt instruments/facilities to your company:

Long Term Rating CRISIL A-/ Stable
Short Term Rating CRISIL A2+

(xviii)Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

A Qualified Practicing Company Secretary carried out the Quarterly Reconciliation of Share Capital
Audit to reconcile the total admitted equity capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)
and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) of the total issued and listed Equity Share
Capital. The Report on Reconciliation of Share Capital confirms that the total issued/paid up capital is
in agreement with the total number of shares.
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(xix) Green Initiative In Corporate Governance

One of the most important components of Corporate Governance is to communicate with the
shareholders through effective means. Being a responsible corporate citizen, the Company supports
the ‘Green Initiative’ undertaken by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India. The
Company, sends Annual Reports, Intimation for dividend payment, Notices related to General Meetings
and Postal Ballot by email to those shareholders whose email ids are registered with the Company.
Physical copies of the documents are sent to those shareholders whose email ids are not registered
and to those who have requested the same to be sent in physical copies.

Your Company strongly urges our shareholders to support the Green Initiative by giving positive
consent by registering/ updating your email addresses with your respective Depository Participants or
the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company, CB Management Services Private Limited for the
purpose of receiving soft copies of various communications including the Annual Report.

(xx) Share Capital History of the Company:

Security Description Aﬁzzr‘:\:;t S":l(;.l?efs Issue Price I?\;zﬂr':\;(:;\;e ISIN Code
Value | Premium

Subscribers to the Memorandum 03.09.1985 200 10 - 1-200 INE301C01028

FurtherAllotmenttopromotersandothers| 24.03.1987 | 200 10 - 201-400 INE301C01028

FurtherAllotmenttopromotersandothers| 11.11.1987| 500 10 - 401-900 INE301C01028

FurtherAllotmentto promoters and others| 29.03.1988 | 399100 | 10 - 901-4,00,000 |[INE301C01028

Public Issue 27.10.1988 | 600000 | 10 - 4,00,001-10,00,000| INE301C01028

Public Issue 03.12.1993 | 4144000| 10 5 10,00,001- INE301C01028
51,44,000

Right Issue 28.12.1993 | 2456000 10 5 51,44,001- INE301C01028
76,00,000

Amalgamation 27.06.2006 | 3953600| 10 - 76,00,001- INE301C01028
1,15,53,600

Conversion of Warrants 12.08.2010 | 3000000 10 70 1,15,53,601- |INE301C01028
1,45,53,600

Conversion of Warrants 17.09.2010 | 3000000 10 70 1,45,53,601- |INE301C01028
1,75,53,600

Amalgamation 22.09.2010(9,40,986| 10 - 1,75,53,601- |INE301C01028
1,84,94,586

Amalgamation 29.09.20113,20,000| 10 - 1,84,94,587- |INE301C01028
1,88,14,586*

* The face value of shares has been reduced from Rs.10/- to Rs. 2/- in the year 2015. Hence, Number
of equity Shares at present is 94072930.

(xxi) Plant Locations :

1. Kolkata Works -
Village — Bhasa, No.14,P.0.& P.S. Bishnupur, Diamond Harbour Road, South 24
Parganas, W.B.- 743503, India.
2. Daman Works —
168/151-158, Dhabel Industrial Co- Operative Soceity Ltd, Dhabel, Daman — 396210, India
3. Dadral & Il Works -
Survey No.24/3, Village — Demini, Demini Road, Dadra, Dadra & Nagar Haveli — 396193, India.

4. Surangi Works - Survey No. 320/1/1/2/2, Vill - Surangi, Chikhali Road, Silvassa - 396 240 (Dadra
& Nagar Haveli)

5. Falta Works —

Falta Special Economic Zone, Plot No- 29, Sector — |, Village — Simulberia, Mouza — Bisra, Dist.-
South 24 PGS.
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(xxii)Address for correspondence :

The shareholders may contact the Company / RTA on the following addresses :

General Correspondence : Correspondence related to shares / queries/requests :
1. Kkalpana Industries (India) Limited 2. M/s. C B Management Services (P) Limited
Secretarial Department, P-22- Bondel Road, Kolkata — 700 019
2B, Pretoria Street, Phone: 033 2280 6692 / 93/ 94/ 2486 / 4011 6700
Kolkata — 700 071 Fax: 033 2287 0263
Phone : 033 2282 3744 /45 E mail: ta@cbmsl.com

Fax : 033 2282 3739
E mail : kolkata@Kkalpana.co.in

Declarati ling Affirmation of Code of Cond

| hereby declare that, all the members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management personnel have
affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct, applicable to them as laid down by the Board of Directors
in terms of Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 entered into with Stock Exchanges, for the year ended 31**March, 2019.

For Kkalpana Industries (India) Limited

Place: Kolkata
Date: 28.05.2019 Narrindra Suranna
DIN:00060127
Chairman & Managing Director
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AUDITORS’ COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
To, the Members of
Kkalpana Industries (India) Limited.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Kkalpana Industries (India)
Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2019 as per the relevant provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by company for ensuring the
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on
financial statements of the company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify
that the company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above
mentioned Listing Agreement / Listing Regulations, as applicable.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place : Kolkata For B.Mukherjee & Co
Dated : 28.05.2019 Chartered Accountants
(B.Mukherjee)

Partner

Membership No.002941
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of KKALPANA INDUSTRIES
(INDIA) LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31s*March, 2019, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement

and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the
Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2019, its profits (including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significant in our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters

Auditor’'s Response

Information Technology (IT) Systems and Controls

During the year the Company has implemented
SAP, a new Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP)
System. The new system is fully integrated financial
accounting and reporting system.

The implementation of ERP has a risk of loss of
integrity of key financial data being migrated and
elimination of traditional controls without replacing
them with the new effective controls measures,
monitoring of IT controls which are relating to critical
business processes such as purchase, production,
sales, inventory and including recording of
transactions, which could lead to financial errors or
mis-statements and inaccurate financial reporting
and also there is risk that automated accounting
procedures and related IT manual controls might
not work.

We have accordingly designated this as a focus

Audit Procedures Performed

We have performed procedures to ensure the
migration of financial data between old system and
new system.

Our audit approach consisted testing of design and
operating effectiveness of internal controls and
substantive testing around the new ERP system.
We also performed sufficient test of details as a part
of our audit.

We have performed the test of details for areas
where the Management has implemented manual
controls during the year including the continuing
manual controls as at the year end.

We have performed the test of controls regarding
the appropriateness of system access and an
effective maker and checker system builtin the ERP
system for proper authorizations of transactions

area in the audit. and posting of accounting entries.

The combination of these tests of controls and
procedures performed, gave us a sufficient
evidence to enable us to rely on the operations
of ERP system for the purpose of the audit of the
financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The Other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s
Report including Annexures to the Board report, Business responsibility Report, Corporate Governance
report and Shareholder’s information, but does not include the standalone financial statement and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
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judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, wigdue
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design ad
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial control
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of amig
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of amigand,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a
going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, rtdy
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that individually or
in aggregate makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) Planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work and (ii) To
evaluate the effect of ant identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report,to the extent applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of ouraudit.

b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014

d) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31stMarch, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31s*March,
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

e) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls refer to our
separate Reportin “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company.

f)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, asamended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

g) Withrespectto the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements.
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For B.Mukherjee & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No : 302096E

B.Mukherjee
Place: Kolkata (Partner)
Date: 28" day of May, 2019 Mem No : 002941
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ANNEXURE “A” REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” SECTION OF OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED OF EVEN DATE:

Vi.

Vi

In respect of its fixed assets:

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

b) As per the information and explanations given to us, physical verification of fixed assets have
been carried out in terms of the phased program of verification of its fixed assets adopted by the
Company and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to size of the Company and nature of its
business.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the
Company.

As per the information and explanations given to us, the inventories have been physically verified at
reasonable intervals during the year by the management and no material discrepancies between book
stock and physical stock have been found.

According the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted unsecured loan
to a subsidiary, covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the companies Act,2013, in
respect of which:

(a) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loan are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial
to the Company’s interest.

(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and repayments
or receipts of principal amounts and interest have been regular as per stipulations.

(c) There is no amount overdue.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
given any loan, not made any investment and have not provided any guarantee in respect of which
Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable. Accordingly, the paragraph 3(iv) of
the Order is not applicable.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
from public during the year.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by Company in respect of product,
where pursuant to the rule made by the Central Government of India the maintenance of cost records
has been prescribed under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act 2013 and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed records have been maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

. (@) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, goods
and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues
with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income tax,
sales tax, service tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31*March 2019 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the dues of Income Tax , sales tax,
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duty of excise, service tax and value added tax which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute and the forum where the dispute is pending as on 31%*March, 2019 are as under :-

Name of the Amount Forum where dispute is
Nature of dues . Assessment Year .
statute Rs. in Lacs pending
Income Tax 25.46* 2012-13 CIT(A)
'”Corq%gf XACt 1 come Tax 123.02* 2011-12 oA
Income Tax 153.16 2010-11 CIT(A

*Net of amounts paid under protest.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to Financial Institutions or Banks or Government
or Debenture holders.

. The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer including debt

instruments during the year. However the Company has raised Term Loan during the year and has
applied the same for the purpose for which term loans are raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on
the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

1934.

For B.Mukherjee & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No : 302096E

B.Mukherjee

Place: Kolkata (Partner)
Date: 28" day of May, 2019 Mem No : 002941
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ANNEXURE “B” REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2(F) UNDER “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL
AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” SECTION OF OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED OF EVEN DATE:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KKALPANA INDUSTRIES
(INDIA) LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31*March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and
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(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at 31*March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

For B.Mukherjee & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No : 302096E

B.Mukherjee

Place: Kolkata (Partner)
Date: 28" day of May, 2019 Mem No : 002941
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KKALPANAINDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2019

(Rs. In Lacs)
Note As at As at
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
A ASSETS
1 Non-current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 4 24,282.70 23,120.03
Capital Work-in-Progress 5 - 410.14
Investment Property 6 1,281.68 1,281.68
Other Intangible Assets 7 18.98 23.45
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 8 236.79 236.29
(i) Other Financial Assets 10 390.66 254.21
Other Non-Current Assets 11
26,288.82 25,797.59
2 Current Assets
Inventories 12 15,714.37 15,543.90
Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 13 31,030.91 33,498.54
(ii) Cash & Cash Equivalents 14 1,692.07 1,687.83
(i)  Loans 9 - 741.39
(iv)  Other Financial Assets 10 469.26 346.18
Other Current Assets 15 5,176.20 6,016.55
54,082.81 57,834.39
Total T 80,371.63  83,631.98
B EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1 Equity
Equity Share Capital 16 1,881.46 1,881.46
Other Equity 17 29,971.96 27,698.53
31,853.42 29,579.99
2 Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 5,029.86 6,488.50
Provisions 19 163.88 93.98
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 20 2,910.24 2,420.17
8,103.98 9,002.65
3 Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 21 7,027.95 14,441.10
(ii) Trade Payables 22
- Micro & Small Enterprises 314.32 -
- Others 28,688.96 26,791.84
(i)  Other Financial Liabilities 23 3,158.13 2,653.11
Other Current Liabilities 24 447.57 460.25
Provisions 25 122.53 88.96
Current Tax Liabilities (net) 26 654.77 614.08
40,414.23 45,049.34
1otal 80,3/1.63 83,631.98
Significant Accounting Policies and other information 1-3

Contingent liabilities and Other notes to the financial statements.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For B. Mukherjee & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No:302096E

B. Mukherjee

Partner

Membership No.002941
Date : 28th May, 2019
Place : Kolkata
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(DIN: 00060127)

Chairman and Managing Director

Tanvi Panday

(Membership No. ACS 31176)

Company Secretary

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Rajesh Kothari
(DIN: 02168932)
Whole Time Director

Indar Chand Dakalia
Chief Financial Officer



KKALPANAINDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019

(Rs. In Lacs)
Note As at As at
No. 31st March 2019 31st March 2018
I INCOME
Revenue from Operations 27 200,903.19 176,533.15
Other Income 28 1,179.65 819.22
Total Income 202,082.84 177,352.37
I EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 29 176,433.05 151,072.69
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods 30 (917.30) (79.64)
& Work-in-Progress & Stock-in-Trade
Excise Duty = 3,775.43
Employee Benefits Expense 31 4,167.60 2,765.15
Finance Costs 32 5,743.98 5,526.60
Depreciation & Amortization Expense 4-7 1,647.35 1,725.66
Other Expenses 33 10,965.86 9,116.64
Total Expenses 198,040.55 173,902.54

Il PROFIT BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS & TAXATION
Exceptional items

Il PROFIT BEFORE TAX 4,042.29 3,449.83
Tax expense 34

Current tax 1,319.06 688.62

Deferred tax 161.49 563.97

Total Tax expense 1,480.54 1,252.59

IV PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AFTER TAX 2,561.75 2,197.24
V OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 35

i Items that will not be classified to profit and loss (25.36) (27.81)

ii Income tax relating to items that will not be 8.78 9.62

classified to profit and loss
Total Other Comprehensive Income For The Year (16.58) (18.18)
VI TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 2,545.17 2,179.06

EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE
(Face value of Rs 2/- each)

Basic (Rs.) 2.72 2.34
Diluted (Rs.) —— 2.34
Significant Accounting Policies and other information 1-4
Contingent liabilities and Other notes to the financial statements
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For B. Mukherjee & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No:302096E
Narrindra Suranna Rajesh Kothari
(DIN: 00060127) (DIN: 02168932)
Chairman and Managing Director Whole Time Director
B. Mukherjee
Partner
Membership No.002941 Tanvi Panday Indar Chand Dakalia
Date : 28th May, 2019 (Membership No. ACS 31176) Chief Financial Officer
Place : Kolkata Company Secretary
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KKALPANAINDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019

(Rs. In Lacs)
As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax from continuing operations 4,042.29 3,449.83
Adjustment for:
Depreciation & amortization expense 1,647.35 1,725.66
Loss/(Profit) on sale of fixed assets 18.85 10.94
Unwinding of Interest on security deposit (5.96) (4.62)
Finance cost 5,743.98 5,526.60
Interest income (75.60) (137.50)
(Gain)/Loss on remeasurement of Investment at . 0.01
fair value )
Other comprehensive income (25.36) (27.81)
Provision for Doubtful debts 12.81 (376.31)
Bad debts written off 3.44 27.57
Notional rent on Security deposit 6.90 5.28
7,326.41 6,749.82
Operating profit before Working Capital changes 11,368.70 10,199.65
Adjustments for Working Capital changes
Decrease/(increase) in non current financial
assets

Loans

Other financial assets (12.91) (79.14)
Decrease/(increase) in other non current assets 386.88 (323.56)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories (170.47) 1,812.43
Decrease/(increase) in current financial assets

Trade receivables 2,451.38 846.87

Loans 741.39 (667.86)

Other financial assets (123.08) (77.46)
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets 840.35 (2,526.72)
Increase/(decrease) in non current provisions 69.89 39.57
Increase/(decrease) in current financial liabilities

Trade payables 2,211.44 12,064.07

Other financial liabilities 345.98 (168.97)
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities (12.68) 150.67
Increase/(decrease) in short term provisions 33.57 (79.01)

6,761.74 10,990.89
Cash generated from operations 18,130.44 21,190.54
(Tax paid) / refund received (net) (941.00) (779.99)
Net cash from operating activities 17,189.44 20,410.55
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, CWIP and (2,425.73) (2,862.02)
Intangible assets
Sale proceeds of Property, Plant and Equipment 11.47 104.89
Interest receipt on investments 75.60 137.50
Increase in investment in Term deposit (117.58) 504.70
Purchase of current investments (net) (0.50) 0.01
Net cash generated / (used) in investing activities (2,456.74) (2,114.92)
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KKALPANAINDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019

(Rs. In Lacs)
As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
C. CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long term borrowings
Repayment of long term borrowings (1,654.57) (338.95)
Increase/(decrease) in short term borrowings (7,260.07) (12,511.45)
Dividend paid (225.78) -
Taxes on dividend Paid (45.96) -
Finance cost (5,542.09) (5,316.24)
Net cash from financing activities (14,728.47) (18,166.64)
Net changes in Cash and Bank balances 4.24 128.99
Net Increase / (-) Decrease in Cash and Bank balances
Balance at the end of the year 1,692.07 1,687.83
Balance at the beginning of the year _ 1.687.83 __1,558.84
Net changes in Cash and Bank balances 4.24 128.99
Notes:
The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 7, Statement of Cash Flows.
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
For B. Mukherjee & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No:302096E

Narrindra Suranna Rajesh Kothari
(DIN: 00060127) (DIN: 02168932)
Chairman and Managing Director Whole Time Director
B. Mukherjee
Partner
Membership No.002941 Tanvi Panday Indar Chand Dakalia
Date : 28th May, 2019 (Membership No. ACS 31176) Chief Financial Officer
Place : Kolkata Company Secretary
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KKALPANAINDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019

(Rs. In Lacs)
A 1E(%UITY SHARE CAPITAL (Refer Note No.

As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018

Balance at the year beginning 1,881.46 1,881.46
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balance at the year end 1,881.46 1,881.46
B. OTHER EQUITY (Refer Note No.17)
For the year ended 31st March, 2019
Reserve & Surplus Other Com-
. prehensive
| o o
Particulars Securities General Retained Remeasure-  Total
& Amal- . -
. Premium Reserve Earnings ment of de-
gamation fined benefit
Reserve
plan

Balance as at 1st April, 2018 852.96 5,322.45 3,400.00 18,144.26 (21.15) 27,698.53
Add : For the Year - - - 2,561.75 (16.58) 2,545.17
Less: Equity Dividend - - - (225.78) - (225.78)
Less: Corporate Dividend Tax - - - (45.96) - (45.96)
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 852.96 5,322.45 3,400.00 20,434.27 (37.73) 29,971.96

The accompanying notes form anintegral part ofthe financial statements
This is the Statement of Equity referred to in our report of even date.

For B. Mukherjee & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No:302096E

Narrindra Suranna Rajesh Kothari
(DIN: 00060127) (DIN: 02168932)
Chairman and Managing Director Whole Time Director
B. Mukherjee
Partner
Membership No.002941 Tanvi Panday Indar Chand Dakalia
Date : 28th May, 2019 (Membership No. ACS 31176) Chief Financial Officer
Place : Kolkata Company Secretary
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3.1

KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the yearended 31stMarch, 2019
COMPANY INFORMATION

Kkalpana Industries (India) Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in India on 03rd of September 1985. The Company
is domiciled in Indiawhose shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). The registered office is located at
2B Pretoria Street. Kolkata The Company is engaged in the manufacturing of Plastic Compounds. Plastic Processors
and Exporters Pvt Limited is a subsidiary of the Company.

Thefinancial statements of the Company forthe yearended 31stMarch, 2019 were authorised forissue in accordance
with a resolution of the Board of Directors as on 28.05.2019

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred
toas the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016.

Thefinancial statements have been prepared onaccrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied
consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

All Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and
othercriteriaas setoutinthe Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and
the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company
has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and
liabilities.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is the Company's functional currency and
transactions and balances with values belowthe rounding off norm adopted by the Company have beenreflectedas "0"
in the relevant notes in these financial statements.

Basis of Measurement

Thefinancial statements have been prepared onahistorical costbasis (whichincludesdeemedcostas perind AS 101),
except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:
(i) Derivative financial instruments

(i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

(iii) Defined benefits plans - Plan assets measured at fair value

Key Accounting Estimates And Judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in the
application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent
assetsandliabilities atthe date of financial statements and reported amount ofrevenue and expenses during the period.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.
Informationaboutcriticaljudgmentsinapplyingaccountingpolicies, aswell as estimates andassumptionsthathave the
most significant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are included in the
following notes.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue, whenever control over distinct goods or services is transferred to the customer;

i.e. when the customer is able to direct the use of the transferred goods or services and obtains substantially all of the
remaining benefits, provided a contract with enforceable rights and obligations exists and amongst others collectability
of consideration is probable taking into account customer’s creditworthiness.

Revenue is the transaction price the Company expects to be entitled to. In determining the transaction price, the Company
considers effects of variable consideration, the existence of significantfinancing contracts, noncash consideration and
consideration payabletothe customer, ifany. The Company considers whetherthere are other promisesinthe contract
that are separate performance obligations to which the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g. warranties etc.).
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KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the yearended 31st March, 2019
Variable Consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the company estimates the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled to in exchange for transferring goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contractinception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant reversal of revenue will not occur once
associated uncertaintiesareresolved. Some contracts withthe customers providethemwitharighttoreturnandvolume
rebates. The right to return and volume rebates gives rise to variable consideration.

The amount of variable consideration is calculated by either using the expected value or the most likely amount depending
onwhichis expected to better predict the amount of variable consideration. Consideration is also adjusted for the time
valueofmoneyifthe period betweenthe transferofgoods orservicesandthereceiptofpaymentexceedstwelve months
and there is a significant financing benefit either to the customer or the Company. If a contract contains more than one
distinctgood orservice, the transaction priceiis allocated to each performance obligation based on relative stand-alone
selling prices. If stand-alone selling prices are not observable, the Company reasonably estimates those.

Revenue is recognized for each performance obligation either at a point in time or over time.

Sale of goods: Revenues are recognized ata pointin time when control of the goods passes to the buyer, usually upon
either at the time of dispatch or delivery. In case of export sale, it is usually recognised based on the shipped-on board
date as per bill of lading. Revenue from sale of goods is net of taxes and recovery of charges collected from customers
like transport, packing etc.

Contract balances:

Trade Receivables:

Areceivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. only a passage of
time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabilities:

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
company transfergoods and services tothe customer, acontractliability is recognised whenthe paymentis made orthe
paymentis due, whicheveris earlier. Contractliabilities are recognised as revenue when the company performs under
the contract.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cashpayments orreceipts throughthe expected|life ofthe financialinstrument orashorter period, where appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend Income
Revenue is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established by the reporting date.

Other Claims / Receipts
Insurance claims and otherreceiptsincluding exportincentives, where quantumofaccruals cannotbe ascertained with
reasonable certainty, these receipts are accounted on receipt basis.

Commission Income
When the Compnay Acts in the capacity of an agent rather than as the princpal in a transaction the revenue recognised
is the net amount of the commission earned by the Company.
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KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the yearended 31stMarch, 2019

3.2 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plantand Equipmentare stated at costnet ofaccumulated depreciationand accumulatedimpairmentlosses,
if any. Cost comprises purchase price including import duties and other non-refundable duties and taxes, borrowing
costif capitalization criteria are metand other directly attributable cost for bringing the Assets toits presentlocation and
condition.

The cost of replacing part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item
only when it is probable that future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and the cost
oftheitem/part can be measuredreliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profitand
Loss during the period in which they are incurred.

When parts of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Gains orlosses arising on retirement or disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Property, Plant and Equipment which are not ready forintended use as on the date of Balance sheet are disclosed as
"Capital Work-in-progress".

Items of Property, Plantand Equipmentacquired through exchange of non-monetary assets are measured atfairvalue,
unlessthe exchangetransactionlacks commercial substance orthefairvalue of eitherthe assetreceived orassetgiven
upis notreliably measurable, in which case the asset exchanged is recorded at the carrying amount of the asset given
up.

The Assets which are held for Sale shall be reclassified to Current Assets only if its carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction (within one year) rather than through continuing use.

Depreciation and Ammortization:-
Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight line method based on estimated useful life prescribed in Part
- C under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

Particulars Years
Factory Building 30
Plant & Machinery 25
Electrical Installation 10
Lab Equipments 10
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Motor Car 8
Air Conditioner 15
Scooter, Mopedand Cycle 10
Office Equipment 5
Computer 3

Useful life of Plantand Machinery has been considered 25 years as against 15 years as prescribed in Shedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013 which is based on the prevailing practices of the comparable industries and our past experience
for last 30 years.

3.3 Intangible Assets :
Separately purchased intangible assets are initially measured at cost.Subsequently, intangible assets are carried at cost

less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairmentlosses, ifany. The useful lives ofintangible assets are
assessed as either finite or indefinite.Finite-life intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period
of their expected usefullives.

The Intangible Assets are derecognised either when they are being disposed off or no future economic benefit is expected
from its use or disposal, the difference net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of Assets is recognised in the
statement of Profit and Loss in the period of dereognition.

Intangible assets are amortised as follows:

Technical Know How and Computer Software is ammortized over a period of 10 years except SAP, a new Enterprise
Resource Planning (ERP) System which has been implemented and ammortised during the year.
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KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the yearended 31st March, 2019

34

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

A)

Non CurrentAssets held for Sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities are classified as 'held for sale' when all of the
following criteriaare met: (i) decision has beenmade tosell. (i) the assets are available forimmediate sale inits present
condition (i) the assets are being actively marketed and (iv) sale has been agreed oris expected to be concluded within
12 months of the Balance Sheet date.

Subsequently, such non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of its
carryingvalue andfairvaluelesscoststosell. Non-currentassetsheld forsale are notdepreciated oramortised.

Investment Property

InvestmentProperty comprises Free-Hold Lands thatare heldfor Capital Appreciationasithas beenheldforacurrently
undetermined future use and are recognised at cost.

An Investment Property are derecognised either when they are disposed off or when they are permanently withdrawn
fromuse andnofuture economicbenefitis expected. The difference between the netdisposal proceeds andthe carrying
amount of the asset is recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period of derecognition.

Lease

The determination of whether an arrangementis, or contains, alease is based on the substance of the arrangement at
the inception date, whether fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the
arrangementconveys arightto use the asset evenifthat rightis not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Leases in which a substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments and receipts under such leases are recognised to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless the lease payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line
with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases, in which case the
same are recognised as an expense in line with the contractual term.

Leases are classified as finance leases wheneverthe terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership to thelessee.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Asateachbalance sheetdate, the Company assesseswhetherthereisanindicationthatanassetmaybeimpaired and
also whether there is an indication of reversal of impairment loss recognised in the previous periods. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, if any, the Company determines the recoverable
amount and impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is determined:-

a) In the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value in use ; and

b) Inthe case of cash generating unit (a group of asset that generates identified, independent cash flow), at the higher
of the cash generating unit’s fair value less cost to sell and the value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discounting
rate thatreflectthe currentmarket assessment of the time value of the money and the risk specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transaction is taken into account. If no such transaction can
be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted
share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Financial Instruments

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and measurement of Financial Assets

Allfinancial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus or minus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
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Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, in the same manner as described in subsequent measurement.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
conventioninthe marketplace (regularwaytrades)arerecognised onthetrade date, i.e. the datethe Company commits
to purchase or sell theasset

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
(a) Financial assets at amortised cost

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

(d) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost
Afinancial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for
impairment) unless the assetis designated at fair value through profit orloss under the fair value option.

i) Business modeltest: The objective ofthe Company's business modelis to hold the financial assetto collect the
contractual cashflows (ratherthantosellthe instrument priortoits contractual maturity torealize its fairvalue changes).

ii) Cash flow characteristics test : The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Amortised costis calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are anintegral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) methodis amethod of calculating the amortised cost of adebtinstrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received thatform anintegral part of the effective interestrate, transaction
costs and other premiums ordiscounts ) through the expected |ife of the debtinstrumentorwhere appropriate, ashorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Afinancial assetthatmeets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

i) Businessmodeltest: Thefinancial assetisheldwithinabusiness modelwhose objectiveis achievedbybothcollecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

ii) Cashflow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

FVTPLisaresidual category forfinancial assets. Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteriafor categorization
as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate afinancial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria,as atFVTPL. However, such electionis allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurementor
recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’) that would otherwise arise from measuring financial
assets and financial liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on different bases.

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

(d) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Equity instruments which are held fortrading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company
may make anirrevocable electionto presentin other comprehensiveincome subsequentchangesinthe fairvalue. The
Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition
and is irrevocable.

Ifan equity investmentis not held for trading, an irrecoverable election is made at initial recognition to measure it at fair
value through other comprehensive income with only dividend income recognised in the statement of profitand loss.
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If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excludingdividends, arerecognizedinthe OCI. Thereis norecycling ofthe amounts from other comprehensiveincome
to statement of profitand loss, even on sale ofinvestment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or
loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit andloss.

Derecognition
Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of afinancial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)is primarily

derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s financial statement) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
receivedcashflowsinfullwithoutmaterial delaytoathird party undera‘pass-through’arrangement; and either:

(i) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(i) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred norretained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset,
the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In
that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carryingamount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to

repay.

Write Off
An entity shall directly reduce the gross carrying amount of a Financial Asset when the entity has no reasonable
expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirity or for a portion thereof.

Investment in joint ventures associates and subsidiaries:
The Company has accounted for its investment in joint ventures associates and subsidiaries at cost.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies expected creditlosses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition ofimpairmentloss on the
following financial assets:

(a) Financial assets measured at amortisedcost

(b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Expected Credit Losses are measured through either 12 month ECL or lifetime ECL and it is assessed as following:

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant
increase inthe creditrisk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to
provide forimpairmentloss. However, ifcreditrisk has increased significantly, lifetime ECLis used. If,inthe subsequent
period, credit quality of the instrument improves, such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, then the entity reverts torecognisingimpairmentloss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL arethe expected creditlossesresultingfromall possible defaultevents overthe expected life of afinancial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within
12 months after the reportingdate.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.

Theapplicationofsimplifiedapproachdoes notrequirethe Companytotrack changesincreditrisk. Rather, itrecognises
impairmentloss allowance based on lifetime ECLs ateach reporting date, right fromits initial recognition.

The Company follows a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables.
The provision matrix is based onits historical observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and
is adjusted forforwardlooking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.
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For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial liabilities

Allfinancial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, trade and other payables and derivative financial
instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financiallliabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasinginthe near
term. This category alsoincludes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

(b) Loans and borrowings

Afterinitial recognition, interest-bearingloans and borrowings are subsequently measured atamortised cost using the
effective interestrate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profitand loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised costis calculated by takinginto accountany discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs thatare an
integral partofthe EIR. The EIRamortisationis included as finance costs in the statement of profitand loss.

(c) Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for aloss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debtinstrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as aliability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction coststhatare directly attributable totheissuance ofthe guarantee. Subsequently, theliabilityis measuredat
the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount
recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition
Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When

an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognisedin
the statement of profit andloss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the netamountis reported in the balance sheetifthereis a

currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
The Company enters into derivative contracts such as forward currency contract, option contract and cross currency

and interest rate swaps to hedge foreign currency risks and interest rate risks. Such derivative financial instruments
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measuredatfairvalue. Derivatives are carried as financial assets whenthefairvalueis positive and as financialliabilities
when the fair value isnegative.
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Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for
the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other comprehensive income and later reclassified to
statement of profit and loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss.

3.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalentin the balance sheet comprises cashin hand, cash atbanks and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Forthe purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, cash at banks and
short-termdeposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts, ifany, as they are considered anintegral part
of the cash management.

3.10 Foreign currency Transactions
The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.) which is also Company's functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency, using the exchange rates
prevailing on the date of transaction. At each balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are reported using
the closing exchange rate. Exchange rate differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on translating of
monetary items at each balance sheet reporting date at the closing rate are recognised as income or expense in the
periodinwhich they arise except exchange difference on monetary items that qualify as a hedginginstrumentin acash
flow hedge are recognised initialy in OCI to the extent the hedge is effective.

Non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the
exchangeratesprevailingatthe date ofthetransaction. Non-monetaryitems measured atfairvalueinaforeigncurrency
are reported using the exchange rates prevailing at the date when fair value is determined.

When a gain or loss on non-monetary items is recognised in OCl any exchange component of that gain/ loss shall be
recognised in OCI, conversaly when a gain orloss on a non-monetary item is recognised in Profit/ loss any exchange
component of that gain/loss shall be recognised in Profit / Loss.

3.11 Fair Value Measurement:
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fairvalue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
(a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(b) Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal orthe mostadvantageous market mustbe accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

Afairvalue measurementofanon-financial assettakesintoaccountamarket participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

Allassetsandliabilitiesforwhichfairvalueismeasuredordisclosedinthefinancial statements are categorised withinthe
fairvalue hierarchy, described asfollows, basedonthelowestlevelinputthatis significanttothe fairvalue measurement
as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level2—Valuationtechniquesforwhichthelowestlevelinputthatis significanttothe fairvalue measurementis directly
or indirectly observable

Level 3—Valuation techniques forwhich the lowestlevel inputthat s significant to the fair value measurementis
unobservable
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For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on arecurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
levelinputthatis significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Forthe purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

3.12 Inventories

Raw materials : Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value whicheveris lower. Cost is determined by using
the Weightedaveragemethod. Netrealisable valueis the estimated selling priceinthe ordinary course of business, less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Finished Goods and Traded Goods: Inventories are valued atlower of cost and net realisable value. Finished goods
include costof conversion and othercostincurredforbringing the inventories totheir presentlocation and conditionand
Traded Goodsincludes purchase prise and other costincurred for bringing the inventories to their presentlocation and
condition.

Stores & Spareparts : Store and Spare Parts are valued at Cost.

3.13 Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount
expectedtobesettledwholly before twelve months afterthe yearend, ifthe Company has apresentlegal orconstructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated
reliably. Itincludes Salary, wages, paid annual leave.

Post Employement Benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

Retirement benéfits in the form of contribution to Provident fund are defined contribution plans. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit and loss as and when due monthly and are paid to the Government administered
Providend Fund towards which the Compnay has no further obligation beyond its monthly contribution. Superannuation
benefit scheme is not exsisting in the Company.

Defined benefit plans:

The Company operates definedbenefitplanviz., gratuity. The costs of providing benefits underthis plan are determined
on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end. Actuarial valuation is carried out for the plan using the projected
unit credit method.

Defined benefit costs are comprised of:

a ) service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements);

b ) Net interest expense or income; and

c) Re-measurement.

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee
benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs. Re-measurement of net
defined benefit liability/ asset pertaining to gratuity comprise actuarial gains/ losses (i.e. changes in the present value
resulting from experience adjustments and effects of changesin actuarialassumptions) andis reflectedimmediately in
the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not
reclassified to profit orloss.

3.14 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which it is incurred.

Borrowing costsincludeinterestexpense calculated usingthe effective interestrate method as describedinInd AS 109-
Financial Instruments, finance charges in respect of finance leases are recognised in accordance with Ind AS 17- Leases
and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest costs.
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3.15 Income Taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. Itis recognised in statement of
profitand loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, oritems recognised directly in equity orin
other comprehensive income.

Current Tax
Currentincometaxrepresentsthetaxcurrently payable onthe taxableincomeforthe yearand any adjustmenttothetax
inrespect of the previous years. Itis measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reveiwed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the assetis
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside the statement of profit and loss.
Deferred taxitems are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:
(i) entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and
(i) deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to the income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity. In this case, tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence
thatthe Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such assetis reviewed at each balance sheet
date and the carrying amount of MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence
to the effect that the Company will pay normal tax during the specified period.

3.16 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions arerecognised whenthe Company has apresentobligation (legal orconstructive) as aresultofapastevent,
itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision
to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursementis virtually
certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities and Assets

Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made
where there is a possible obligation arising out of past event, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company ora
present obligation arising out of past event where itis either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
tosettle orareliable estimate of the amount cannotbe made.Contingent Assets are notrecognised butdisclosed inthe
financial statements when economic inflow is probable.
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3.17 Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit orloss for the period after deducting any attributable tax
thereto for the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose
of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weightedaverage numberofshares outstanding duringthe periodis adjustedforthe effects ofall dilutive potential equity
shares.

3.18 Current and Non-current
Classification

The Company presents assets andliabilities inthe balance sheetbased on current/non current classification.

An asset is currentwhen:

- Itis expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle (twelve months),

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading,

- Itis expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period,

- Itis cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle (twelve months),

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading,

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period,

Or

- Thereisnounconditional rightto deferthe settiementoftheliability for atleasttwelve months afterthe reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

3.19 Business Combination

Business combinations, if any, are accounted for using the acquisition accounting method as at the date of the acquisition,
whichisthe date atwhich controlis transferredtothe Company. The considerationtransferredinthe acquisitionand the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recognised at fair values on their acquisition date. Goodwill is
initiallymeasuredatcost, beingthe excess ofthe aggregate ofthe consideration transferredandtheamountrecognised
for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. Ifthe Goodwillcomputed as perIND AS 103 is negative, the acquirer needs toreassess the identificationand
measurement of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingentliabilities and the measurement of the cost
of combination. Ifnegative goodwillremains, thisis recognisedimmediatelyin OCland accumulatedin equity as Capital
Reserve. The Company recognises any non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The Company recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the
acquired entity's net identifiable assets. Consideration transferred does not include amounts related to settiement of pre-
existing relationships. Such amounts are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Transactioncosts areexpensedasincurred, otherthanthoseincurredinrelationtotheissue of debt orequity securities.
Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes in the fair
value of contingent consideration are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Ifthereis an acquisition of an asset or a group of assets that does not constitute abusiness.In such cases the Company
shall identify and recognise the individual identifiable assets acquired (including those assets that meet the definition
of, and recognition criteria for, intangible assetsin INnd AS 38, Intangible Assets) and liabilities assumed. The cost of the
group shall be allocated to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction or event does not give rise to goodwill.
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Shedules for the year ended 31st March, 2019

4. Property Plant and Equipment (Rs. In Lacs)
Gross Block Depreciation / Amortisation Net Block
Description As at /;\ji?,'itrgon Sales/ As at As at Forthe| Sales/ As at As at As at

01-04-2018 theyegr Disposals |31-03-2019{01-04-2018*| Period | Disposals |31-03-2019(31-03-2019|31-03-2018*
TANGIBLE ASSETS:
Free hold land 1,608.30 - -l 1,608.30 - - - - 1,608.30 1,608.30
Factory Building 6,801.58| 416.73 15.38| 7,202.93 1,156.88| 233.41 3.27| 1,387.02| 5,815.91 5,644.70
Plant & Machinery 15,100.39| 1,856.86 19.94| 16,937.31 1,186.75| 860.65 3.65| 2,043.75| 14,893.56| 13,913.64
Furniture & Fixture 241.61 6.02 - 247.63 52.53| 24.86 - 77.38 170.25 189.09
Motor Car 227.71|  44.09 - 271.80 60.91| 44.54 - 105.45 166.35 166.80
Scooter, Moped & 1.01 0.65 - 1.66 0.12 0.18 - 0.30 1.36 0.89
Cycle
Laboratory Equipment 703.51|  89.51 - 793.02 110.49| 77.52 - 188.01 605.02 593.02
Electrical Installation 1,268.58| 180.84 2.28| 144714 383.78| 173.98 0.36 557.40 889.74 884.80
Office Equipment 5451 2448 - 78.99 13.90| 13.65 - 27.55 51.45 40.61
Air Conditioner 67.25 3.59 - 70.84 15.14 4,08 - 19.22 51.62 52.12
Computer 36.68| 16.54 - 53.22 10.62| 1347 - 24.09 29.14 26.06
Total 26,111.14| 2,639.30 37.60| 28,712.85 2,991.11| 1,446.32 7.29| 4,430.15| 24,282.70| 23,120.03
Previous Year 22,420.92| 3,846.24|  156.01| 26,111.14 1,309.53| 1,721.76 40.18| 2,991.11| 23,120.03| 21,111.39
5. Capital Work In Progress

Gross Block Depreciation / Amortisation Net Block
Description As at /;\ji?,'itrgon Adjust- As at As at For the Adiustments As at As at As at

01-04-2018 theyegr ments |31-03-2019(01-04-2018*| Period g 31-03-2019{31-03-2019|31-03-2018*
Capital Work-in- 410.14| 730.26| 1,140.40 - - - - - - 410.14
Progress
Total 410.14| 730.26| 1,140.40 - - - - - - 410.14
Previous Year 1,401.00| 418.75| 1,409.61 410.14 - - - - 410.14 -
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6. Investment Property

Gross Block Depreciation / Amortisation Net Block
Description As at éj(icli’:tr:on Sales/ As at As at Forthe| Sales/ As at As at As at
01-04-2018 theyegr Disposals |31-03-2019|01-04-2018*| Period | Disposals |31-03-2019{31-03-2019|31-03-2018*
Free Hold Land 1,281.68 - .| 1,281.68 - - - - 1,281.68 1,281.68
Total 1,281.68 - -l 1,281.68 - - - -l 1,281.68 1,281.68
Previous Year 1,281.68 - -l 1,281.68 - - - - 1,281.68 1,281.68
7. Other Intangible Assets
Gross Block Depreciation / Amortisation Net Block
Description As at /;\ji?,'itrgon Sales/ As at As at Forthe| Sales/ As at As at As at
01-04-2018 theyegr Disposals |31-03-2019|01-04-2018*| Period | Disposals |31-03-2019{31-03-2019|31-03-2018*
Technical Knowhow 0.20 - - 0.20 - - - - 0.20 0.20
Computer Software 31.56| 196.56 - 228.12 8.31| 201.03 - 209.34 18.78 23.25
Total 31.77| 196.56 - 228.33 8.31| 201.03 - 209.34 18.98 23.45
Previous Year 25.12 6.65 - 31.77 4.42 3.88 - 8.31 23.45 20.69

Other Notes to Note No 04 to 07
A Disclosures for Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) ,Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) and Intangible Assets

A1. Refer Note No. 47 for information on property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets pledged as security by the Company.
A2. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not provided for the year
ended 31st March, 2019 is Rs. 76.07 lacs ( 31st March, 2018: Rs. 70.65Lac)

A3. There has been no impairment loss on above assets during the year.

A4.The Company hasimplemented SAP,anew Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) Systemwhich has beenimplemented and
ammortised during the year.

A5. * Refer Note No. 53

B Disclosures for Investment Property

B1. The Company has identified and reclassifed Land at West Bengal amounting Rs 1281.67 Lacs. immovable properties as
Investment Properties on the date of transitioni.e. 1st April, 2016 on the basis of currently undermined future use.

B2. No amount of Income / Expenses has been recognised in Profit and Loss in relation to the above Investment Property.
B3. The Company has norestrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no contractual obligations to purchase,
construct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

B4.The Company has elected optional exemptionunderInd AS 101 tomeasure Investment Property at previous GAAP carrying

value.

B5. Since the Land at West Bengal are partial agricultural in natrue, the management has not determined the Fair Market Value

of these properties from the accredited independent valuer and hence the disclosure requirement of fair value has not been
furnished.
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(Rs. Inlacs)
No.ofShares/Units Amount
Face As at As at As at As at
8 FINANCIAL ASSETS:- NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS Value 31st S 31st
R 31st March, 31st March,
S. 2019 March, 2019 March,
2018 2018
Equity Instruments - Fully paid up
Unquoted
(a) Subsidiary-At Cost
(i) Plastic Processors and Ex- 10 49,994.00 45,000.00 36.50 36.00
porters PvtLtd.
(b) Others-At Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
(i) Panchawati Holiday Resorts 10 9,400.00 9,400.00 - -
Ltd.
Quoted
(a) Associate-At Cost
(i) KkalpanaPlastick Limited 10 2,002,920 2,002,920 200.29 200.29
(b) Others-At Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
(i) Dena Bank/Bank of Baroda 10 - 14 - -
(ii) Nicco Corporation Ltd. 2 826,194 826,194 - -
Total Investments 236.79 236.29
Less: Provision for diminution in the value of Investments - -
NetInvestments 236.79 236.29
Notes:
Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments and market value 200.29 200.29
thereof
Aggregate amountof Unquoted Investments 36.50 36.00
Aggregate amount of Impairmentin the value of Investments - -
Total Investment (net) 236.79  236.29
(Rs.Inlacs)
9. FINANCIALASSETS-LOANS Non Current Current
As at As at As at As at
31st March, 31st 31st March, 31st
2019 March, 2019 March,
2018 2018
(a) Unsecured, considered good
LoantoRelated Party - - - 741.39
Total - - - 741.39

There are no loans/ advances to directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally orjointly with
any other persons or loans/ advances to firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partnerora
director or a member.
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KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the yearended 31stMarch, 2019

(Rs. In lacs)
10. FINANCIALASSETS-OTHERS Non Current Current
As at As at As at As at
31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018 2019 2018
Unsecured, considered good
(a) Security Deposit 109.26 90.39 65.95 98.50
(b) Investmentin TermDeposits (with remaining maturity of 281.40 163.82 - -
more than 12 months)
(c) Derivative Instruments
Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts - - - 64.74
Foreign Currency Options - - - 2212
(d) Others - Advances Recoverable from
Employees - - 116.76 82.00
Others - - 23.60 47.65
(e) Interest Accrued - - 262.94 31.17
Total 390.66 254.21 469.26 346.18
(Rs.Inlacs)
11. OTHERNON CURRENTASSETS As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018
(a) Capital Advances
(i)  Unsecured-considered good 57.53  448.37
(b) PrepaidRent 20.48 23.42
Total 78.01  471.79

There are no advances to directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any
other persons or advances to firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or

a member.
(Rs.Inlacs)
As at As at
12. INVENTORIES 31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018
(As taken valued and certified by the management)
At Cost or NRV whichever is lower
(a) Raw materials
- In Stock 11,695.53  12,262.41
- In Transit 19.89 112.01
(b) Finished goods
- In Stock 3,668.93  2,751.63
(c) Stores and spares- at Cost
- In Stock 330.02 417.86
Total 15,714.37 15,543.90

- Duringthe yearended 31st March, 2019 and year ended 31st March, 2018 no amount was recognised as an expense
for the inventories carried at net realisable value.

- Refer Note No - 47 for details of Carrying amount of Inventories pledged with banks against Working Capital loans.
- Storesand Sparesdoes notinclude machinery spares which can be used only in connection withanitem of Fixed Assets.
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(Rs. Inlacs)
As at As at
13. TRADE RECEIVABLES 31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018
(@) Unsecured, considered good
(i) Others 30,722.98 33,972.69
(i) Related Parties 939.79  144.90

31,662.77 34,117.59

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 631.86 619.06

Total (Netof Provision) 31,030.91 33,498.54

- There are no debts due by directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any
other persons or debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or
a member.

- The Company has done the Impairment Assesement for Trade Receivables based on expected creditloss model con-
sidering the creditrisk as significantely low. The Company has used a simplified approach based on a 12 months ECL.
A provison matrix has been prepared based on historical credit loss experience adjusted as appropiate to reflect the
current conditions and supportable forecast of future economic conditons.

(Rs. Inlacs)
As at As at
14. CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018
(a) Balance with banks:
(i)  In CurrentAccounts 501.65 340.48
(i) In EEFC Account 141.80 25.03
(i)  InDepositwith Original Maturity of less than 3 371.35 58.00
months
(b) Cash in hand (As certified by the management) 18.50 25.66
(c) Other Bank Balance
(i)  Unpaid Dividend account 22.21 2458
(i) Deposits with more than 3 months initial maturity 636.56  1,214.08
Total 1,692.07 1,687.83
As at As at
15. OTHER CURRENTASSETS 31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018
(a) Other Advances
Unsecured, considered good
(i) Balances with government departments 4,902.91 5,716.87
(ii) Advance to Suppliers 63.67 100.87
(b) Prepaid Expenses 209.57 198.77
(c) Prepaid Rent 0.04 0.05
Total Other Current Assets 5,176.20 6,016.55
Less: Total Provision for Doubtful Advances/ Debts
Total (Netof Provision) 5,176.20 6,016.55

There are no advances to directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any
other persons or advances to firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or
a member.
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16. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (ReferStatementof ChangesinEquity)

KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the yearended 31stMarch, 2019

Authorised Shares
153,000,000 (Previous Year: 153,000,000) Shares of Rs. 2 each

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up
940,72,930 (Previous Year: 940,72,930) Equity Shares of Rs.2 each

(Rs.Inlacs)

As at
31st March,
2019

As at
31st March,
2018

3,060.00

3,060.00

3,060.00

3,060.00

1,881.46

1,881.46

1,881.46

1,881.46

(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars As at 31st March 2019| As at 31st March 2018
No. of Amount | No. of Shares| Amount
Shares (Rs. In Lacs) (Rs. In Lacs),
Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 94,072,930.00 1,881.46| 94,072,930.00 1,881.46
Equity Shares issued during the year - -
Equity Shares bought back during the year - - - -
Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the year 94,072,930.00 1,881.46| 94,072,930.00 1,881.46

(b) Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares
The Company hasissued only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 2 per share. Each equity shareholder
is entitled to one vote per share. The Company had declared and paid dividends in Indian rupee.
In event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts in propotion of their shareholding.

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Sl. Name of the Shareholders As at 31st March 2019| As at 31st March, 2018
No. No. of % of | No. ofShares % of
Shares held | Holding held Holding

1 |Sri Ram Financial Consultants Pvt Ltd - - 44,785,170.00 47.61

2 |Shyam Baba Trexim Pvt Ltd - - 15,551,680.00 16.53

3 |Almond PolyTraders Pvt Ltd 7,750,000.00 8.24 7,750,000.00 8.24

4 |Inbara holdings Pvt Ltd. - - 7,250,000.00 7.71

5 |Bbigplas Poly Pvt Ltd. 69,641,685.00 74.03

Note - During the FY 2018-19 Sri Ram Financial Consultants Pvt Ltd, Shyam Baba Trexim Pvt Ltd and Inbara holdings
PvtLtd. has been merged in Bbigplas Poly Pvt Ltd vide scheme of amalgamation dated 18th December 2018 which is
binding with effect from 1st April '2018.

(d) Aggregate numberofbonus sharesissued, shares alloted as fully paidup pursuantto contract without paymentbeing
receivedin cash and shares bought back during the period of five yearsimmediately preceding the reporting date: Nil
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17. OTHER EQUITY (Refer Statement of Changes in Equity )

(a) Security Premium (Rs. Inlacs)
This reserves are used to record the premium onissue of shares. The reserve would be utilized in accordance with the

provisons of the Act.

As per Last Financial Statement
Add:Duringtheyear

As at

As at

31st March, 31st March,

2019

2018

5,322.45 5,322.45

5,322.45 5,322.45

(b) Capital Reserve and Amalgamation Reserve As at As at
31st March, 31st
2019 March,
2018
As per Last Financial Statement 852.96 852.96
Add: During the year - -
852.96 852.96
(c) General Reserve As at As at
31st March, 31st
2019 March,
2018
As per Last Financial Statement 3,400.00 3,400.00
Add: During the year - -
3,400.00  3,400.00
(d) Retained Earnings As at As at
31st March, 31st
2019 March,
2018
As per Last Financial Statement 18,144.26  15,947.02
Less: Equity Dividend (225.78) -
Less: Corporate Dividend Tax (45.96) -
Add: During the year 2,561.75 2,197.24
20,434.27 18,144.26
(e) Other Comprehensive Income As at As at
31st March, 31st
2019 March,
2018
As per Last Financial Statement (21.15) (2.96)
Add: During the year (16.58) (18.18)
(37.73) (21.15)
TotalReserves (a+b+c+d+e) 2997196  27,698.53
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KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements forthe yearended 31stMarch,2019

(Rs. Inlacs)
18. LONGTERMBORROWINGS Non Current Current *
As at As at As at As at
31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018 2019 2018
Secured
(a) TermLoans
| FromBanks
(i)Rupee Loan 3,022.36 4,626.23 1,626.58 1,501.58
] From Others
(i) From Banks - Vehicle Loan 30.40 82.00 28.08 -
Total (Net) (a) 3,052.76 4,708.23 1,654.66 1,501.58
Unsecured
(b) Long termloan
-Related Party 1,977.10 1,780.27 - -
Total (Net) (b) 1,977.10 1,780.27 - -
Grand Total(Net) (a+b) 5,029.86 6,488.50 1,654.66 1,501.58
* Refer Note No.23
Details of terms of repayment of long term borrowings
Longterm borrowings Terms of Repayment Mstautr;ty Iné:e:t L:: B;ag i
Secured
a) TermLoans
| From Banks
(i) Rupee Loan-IDFC 1 Year moratorium from the date of 1stdisbursement&  13th Feb 10.20% 01st April
thereafter payable in 20 equal quarterly installments. 2021 2017
(i) RupeeLoan-HDFC  Repayablein 15equal quarterly installments starting from  31st Dec 9.00% 24th March
30th june 2017. 2020 2017

(iii) Rupee Loan-SBI Will start after completing moratorium period of 2years. 24~ 31st Dec 11.50% 31st Dec
quarterly installment starting from 31st December 2016 in 2021 2014
a structured way .

(iv) RupeeLoan-HDFC  Repayable in 20 equal quarterly installments after 12 31st Dec 9.75% 06th Jan
months of moratorium from the date of first disbursal. Re- 2022 2017
payments to startfrom 31stMarch 2018ill 31st December
2022.

Il From Others
(i)  VehicleLoan- 60 equal monthly instalment
Unsecured
(b) Long term loan/deposits
RELATED PARTY
Bbigplas Poly Pvt. Ltd. Repayable on Demand after 30th March 2022 4.00%

Details of terms of security for long term borrowings

a) Rupee Loan from SBI, HDFC and IDFC are secured by 1st pari passu charge by way of equitable mortgage over all
present and future movable and immovable properties located at Silvasa, Surangi, Daman and Bhasa Units and movable
fixed assets at Dhulagarh Unitand 2nd pari passu charge by way of hypothecation overentire current assets, stock and

book debts of the company both present and future.

b) The unsecured loan from Promoter group Comapnies namely Sri Ram Financial Consultants Pvt Ltd, Shyambaba Trex-
im Pvt Ltd, Krishna Commaodeals Pvt Ltd and Inbara holdings Pvt Ltd, all of which merged with Bbigplas Poly Pvt Ltd
vide NCLT order dated 18th December, 2018 (filed with ROC on 4th Feb 2019), having effect from 1st April, 2018, is
subordinated to State Bank of India for their Term Loan outstanding of INR2123.69 Lacsason 31.03.2019.

c) Veichle Loan are secured by hypothecation against Motor Car.

(Rs. In lacs)
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19. LONG TERM PROVISIONS

(@) Employee benefits
(i) Gratutiy (Refer Note No. 39(b))

Total

20. DEFERREDTAXLIABILITIES(NET)

(a) Liabilities :
Depreciation and ammortization expenses
Items under financial assets and financial liabilities giving temporary dif-
ferences

Total (a)

(b) Assets :

Iltems under financial assets and financial liabilities giving temporary dif-
ferences
Provision for doubtful debts & obsolescence
MAT Credit Entitlement
Total (b)

Net Liability (a-b)

Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Assets/ Liabilites (Net):

Opening balance as at the beginning of the Year

Tax (benefit) / expense during the period recognised in profit or loss

MAT Credit Entitlement utilised/(availed)

Taximpactonitems of Other Comprehensiveincomethatwillnotbe classified to
profit & loss

Closing balance as at the end of the Year
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As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018
163.88 93.98
163.88 93.98
(Rs. In lacs)

Asat As at

31st March, 31st March,

2019 2018
3,094.94  2,846.93
322.43 387.89
3,417.37 3,234.82

As at As at
31st March, 31st March,

2019 2018
41.85 18.57
220.80 214.24
244.48 581.84
507.12 814.65
2,910.24 242017

As at As at
31st March, 31st March,

2019 2018
2,420.17  2,040.62
161.49 563.97
337.36 (174.79)
(8.78) (9.62)
2,910.24 242017




KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements forthe yearended 31stMarch,2019

(Rs.Inlacs)
21. SHORTTERMBORROWINGS Asat As at
31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018
Secured
(a) Loans repayable on demand
Cashcreditsfrombank* 2,527.95 12,090.36
Working Capital Demand Loan from Bank 4,500.00 -
(b) Other Loans and advances
Buyer'screditfrombank* - 2,350.74
Total 7,027.95 14,441.10

* These Loans are repayable on demand and carries interest as applicable from time to time.

* Working Capitalfacilities (fundbasedandnonfundbasedlimits)are secured by 1stparipassuchargebywayofequitable
mortgage over property located at D-403, Dharam Place, CHS Limited, Shantivan, Borivalli (E), Mumbai-400066 and
by way of hypothecation overentire current assets, stock and trade receivables of the company both presentand future
and 2nd pari passu charge by way of equitable mortgage over all presentand future movable andimmovable properties
located at Silvasa, Surangi, Daman and Bhasa Units and movable fixed assets at Dhulagarh Unit.

(Rs. In lacs)

22. TRADEPAYABLES As at As at
31st March, 31st March,

2019 2018
(@) Micro & Small Enterprises 314.32 -

(b) Others

Acceptances secured * 26,834.51 22,781.90
Sundry Creditors for goods 928.04  2,803.20
Sundry Creditors for expenses 926.40  1,206.74
Total 29,003.28 26,791.84

* Secured by way of hypothecation of stocks and book debts in favor of the Company's banker.
Micro enterprises and Small enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 have
been determined based on the confirmations received in response to intimation in this regard sent to the suppliers. In-
terestinterms of Section 16 of Micro, Smalland Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 due and remaining unpaid
as at March 31, 2019 — Rs 2.53 lacs.

(Rs.Inlacs)
As at As at
23. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES-OTHER 31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018
(a) Current maturities of long-term debts (Refer Note No.18 ) 1,654.66  1,501.58
(b) Interest payable on Unsecured Loan 233.35 253.06
(c) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 25.67 -
(d) Unpaid dividends # 22.21 24.59
( e) Derivative Instruments
(i) Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts 101.58 -
(i) Foreign Currency Options 5.46 -
(f) Others
(i) Creditors for Capital Goods 210.91 296.91
(i)  Other Liability 904.29 576.97
Total 3,158.13 2,653.11

# There is no amount due & outstanding to be credited to the Investor Education & Protection Fund.
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24. OTHERCURRENTLIABILITIES

(a) Advance payments fromcustomers

(b) Other payables
(i)  Statutory dues
Total

25. SHORTTERMPROVISIONS

(a) Employee benefits

Leaveencashment(unfunded)

Total

26. CURRENT TAXLIABILITIES

Income Tax (Net of Payments)

27. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(a) Sale of Products
(i) Polyethylene
(i)  Poly Vinyl Chloride
(i) Others

(c) Sale of Services

(i)  CommissionReceived (Refer Note below:-)
Commission relates to sale of Products in which the Company Acts as an agentin the
transaction rather than as a Princial in assessing the Companies role to be that of an
agentratherthan as a principal, the management considered the following factors:-

(Rs. Inlacs)
Asat As at
31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018

357.83  386.39

89.74 73.86

447.57 460.25

Asat As at
31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018

122.53 88.96

122.53 88.96

As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018

654.77 614.08

654.77 614.08

Forthe For the
Year Year

2018-19  2017-18

122,807.20 88,372.83
48,310.54 43,326.23
29,785.45 44,322.01

- 512.08

a) The Company does not take tiltle to the goods and has no responsibility in respect of goods sold.

b) The Company cannot vary the selling prices set by the supplier.
c) Credit risk is born by the supplier.

Total

28. OTHERINCOME

(a) Interest income

(b) Exchange difference other than considered as finance

cost (net)
(c) Export Incentive

(d) Unwinding of Interest on security deposit
(e) Fair Value gain or (losses) on derivatives

(f) Insurance Claim Received
(g9) Other Miscelleaneous Income

Total
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200,903.19 176.533.15

Forthe For the

Year Year
2018-19  2017-18
75.60 137.50

906.87 400.67

98.99 19.63
5.96 462
(107.04) 86.86
34.38 97.37

164.88 72.57

1,179.65  819.22




KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements forthe yearended 31stMarch,2019

(Rs.Inlacs)

Forthe Forthe

Year Year

29. COSTOFMATERIALS CONSUMED 2018-19 2017-18
Inventory at the begining of the year 12,374.41  14,437.00
Add: Purchases during the year 175,754.17 149,010.11
Add: Stock In Transit 19.89 -
Less: Raw Material at the end of the Year 11,715.42  12,374.41
Total Cost of Material Consumed 176,433.05 151,072.69

Details of Raw Material Consumed

LLDPE/LDPE/HDPE/CC 99,244.99 69,469.99
PVC Resin 32,952.14 27,859.59
Plastic Scrap 6,330.80 5,810.68
Other items 37,905.12  47,932.44
176,433.05 151,072.69

30. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS & STOCK IN TRADE For the For the

Year Year
2018-19 2017-18

(a) Stocks at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 2,751.63 2,671.99

(b) Less: Stocksattheend oftheyear

Finished goods 3,668.93 2,751.63
Total (917.30)  (79.64)
31. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE For the For the
Year Year
2018-19  2017-18
(a) Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Gratuity 3,991.93  2,615.39
(b) Contribution to Provident and other funds 63.70 53.04
(c) Workmen and staff welfare expenses 111.97 96.72
Total 4,167.60 2,765.15
32. FINANCE COSTS For the For the
Year Year

2018-19  2017-18

(a) Interest expense

i o Banks ,800. ,847.

(i) ToBank 3,800.65  3,847.47
(i) To Others 119.17 371.83

(b) Other borrowing costs 1,628.23  1,130.79

(c) Unwinding of Interest 195.93 176.51
Total 5,743.98 5,526.60

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 105



KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the yearended 31st March, 2019

(Rs. Inlacs)
33. OTHER EXPENSES For the For the
Year Year
2018-19  2017-18
(a) Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts. 215.75 113.55
(b) Power & Fuel 2,74436  2,218.96
(c') Rent 647.98 593.16
(d) Repair & Maintenance - Building 140.91 91.23
(e) Repair & Maintenance - Machinery 630.53 327.44
(f) Repair & Maintenance - Others 234.37 158.43
(9) Insurance Charges 202.33 171.48
(h) Rates & Taxes 75.97 44.81
(i) Payments to Auditors (Refer Note (i) below) 3.75 6.00
(j) Directors' Fees 3.70 3.20
(k) Bad debts / Advances Written off 3.44 27.57
() Loss on sale of fixed assets 18.85 10.94
(m) Selling & Distribution Expenses 4,739.45  4,458.20
(n) Net (gain)/loss on Fair value of Financial Assets through Profit & Loss - 0.01
(o) Provision for doubtful debts 12.81 (376.31)
(p) CSR expenses (Refer Note No. 38) 83.08 135.50
(q) Miscellaneous expenses 1,208.58  1,132.45
Total 10,965.86  9.116.64
Refer Note :- 1
Auditors' remuneration and expenses
Audit fees 3.10 3.10
Tax audit fees 0.65 0.65
Fees for other services - 2.25
3.75 6.00
34. IncomeTax Forthe For the
Year Year
2018-19 2017-18
| Income tax related to items charged or credited directly to profit or loss during the year:
(a) Statement of profit andloss
(i) Current Income Tax 1,319.06 688.62
(i) Deferred Tax expense/ (benefit) 161.49 563.97
1,480.54 1,252.59
(b) Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Deferred Tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:
- Net expense/(benefit) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (8.78) (9.62)
(8.78) (9.62)
Total (a+b) 1,471.77 1,242.97

I Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31st March,

2019 and 31st March,2018:
Accounting profit before income tax as per Ind AS
At Income tax rate of 34.944% (31st March, 2018: 34.608%)
Tax effect of items that are not deductible for tax purpose
Change in Rate Impact
Tax effect of deductions under Chapter VIA of Income Tax Act, 1961

4,042.29
1,412.54
47.02
28.88
(16.67)

3,449.83
1,193.92
59.00

(9.95)

Atthe effective income tax rate of 36.41% (31st March 2018: 36.03%)

1,471.77 1,242.97

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profitand loss

1,471.77

1,242.97

Difference
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35. Other Comprehensive Income

i Items that will not be classified to profit and loss
- Remeasurementgain/ (losses)ondefined benefitplans
Balance as at year beginning
Add: Created during the year
Less: Adjustments
Balance as at year end
i Incometaxrelating toitems that will notbe
classified to profit and loss
- Remeasurement gain/ (losses) on defined benefit plans
Balance as at year beginning
Add: Created during the year
Less: Adjustments
Balance as at year end
Total

36 OTHER NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Contingent liabilities & Commitments

A Not Provided for:-

(a) Claimsagainstthe Company notacknowledged as debts
- Demand raised by following authorities in dispute:
(i) Income tax matters

B Bank Gurantee

C Capital Commitments

(Rs.Inlacs)
Forthe Forthe
Year Year

2018-19 2017-18

(27.81) (4.53)
245  (23.27)
)

(25.36) (2781

9.62 1.57

- 8.05
0.85 -
8.78 9.62

(16.58)  (18.18)

(Rs.InLacs)
As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018

338.77 338.77

807.88 658.44

Estimated Value of contracts in Capital accountremaining to be excecuted and not provided 76.07 70.65

for (Net of advances)
D Other Commitments

Letter of Credit

2,572.16  23,185.05

37 DETAILS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE AND GUARANTEE GIVEN COVERED U/S 186(4) OF THE

COMPANIES ACT, 2013
(a) Loan Given

Sl.No. Name ofthe entity

1 ToSubsidiary Co.
2 Others

(Rs. InLacs)
As at As at
31st March 31st March
2019 2018
- 741.39
- 741.39
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(b) Investment Made
There are no investments by the company other than those stated under Note No. 8 in the financial statements.

(c) Securities Given
There is no security given during the year.

38 DISCLOSURE ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENSES

(a) Grossamountrequiredto be spentbythe Company during the yearin pursuance to the provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder : Rs. 73.08 lacs (PY Rs. 72 lacs).

(b) Amount unspent as at 31.3.2019 Rs. Nil (P.Y 31.3.2018 Rs. Nil)
(c) Amountspentduringtheyear2018-19andshownunder Other Expensesinthe Statementof ProfitandLoss (ReferNote

No. 33):
(Rs. In Lacs)
As at Asat
Sl. No. Particulars 31st March 31st March
2019 2018
(i) Spentduringtheyear 83.08 135.50
(i) YettoSpend - -
Total 83.08 135.50
39 DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY IND AS 19, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(Rs. In Lacs)
(a) Definedcontributionplans: As at As at
31st March 31st March
2019 2018
Contributiontodefined contribution plan, recognised as expense forthe yearas under:
(i) Employer's contributionto Government Provident Fund, Pension Fund & ESI 63.70 53.04
Total 63.70 53.04

(b) Defined benefit plan:

Gratuity

The Employee's Gratuity Fund Scheme, which is defined benefit plan, is managed by Trust maintained with Life Insurance
Corporation of India. The liabilities with respect to Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on projected unit
credit method on the balance sheet date, based upon which the Company contributes to the Group Gratuity Scheme.
The difference, if any, between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of employees at the year end and the balance of
funds with Life Insurance Corporation of India, is provided for as assets/ (liability) in the books. Actuarial gains/ (losses)
for defined benefit plans are recognised in full and are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and Other
Comprehensive Income accordingly as per Acturial Valuation Report.. The Gratuity Plan provides alump sum payment
to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount equivalentto 15 to
30days'salaryforeach completedyearof service . Vesting occurs upon completion of five continuous years of service in
accordance with Indian law. The gratuity fund is separately administered by a Gratuity Fund Trust.

Gratuity (Funded)
| Followinginformation are based onreport of actuary foremployee benefitexpenses

As at Asat
31st March 31st March

2019 2018

(A) Changeinpresentvalue ofthe obligation during the year

(1) Presentvalue of obligation at year beginning 219.85 172.44
(2) Currentservice cost 37.54 24.75
(3) Interestcost 16.79 12.73
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(4) Benefits paid

(5) Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions
(6) Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from changes in financial assumptions

(7) Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from changes in experience adjustments
(8) Present value of obligation at year end

(B) Changeinfairvalue of plan assets during the year
(1) Fairvalue of planassets atyear beginning
(2) Interest income on plan assets
(3) Expected return on plan assets other than interest income
(4) Contribution made by the Employer *
(5) Benefits paid
(6) Fair value of plan assets at year end

(C) Reconciliation of obligationandfairvalue of assets
(1) Presentvalue of the obligation atyear end
(2) Fair value of plan assets at year end
(3) Funded status [surplus / (deficit)]

(D) Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
(1) Current service cost
(2) Interest cost
(3) Interest income on plan assets
Net costrecognised in Profit or Loss

(E) Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
(1) Expected return on plan assets other than interest income
(2) Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions
(3) Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from changes in financial assumptions
(4) Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from changes in experience adjustments
Net(gain)/lossrecognisedin Other Comprehensivelncome

(F) Net Defined benefit liability/(Asset) Reconciliation
(1) Net Defined benefit liability/(Asset) at the beginning of the year
(2) Defined benefit cost included in P/L
(3) Total remeasurement included in OCI
(4) Employers contribution*
Net Defined benefitliability/(Asset) at the end of the year

Asat Asat
31stMarch 31stMarch

2019 2018
(3.70) (16.40)
5.10 (4.48)
18.05 30.81
293.63 219.85
125.87 118.04
9.69 9.15
(2.21) (1.48)
0.10 16.56
(3.70) (16.40)
129.75 125.87
293.63 219.85
129.75 125.87

(163.88) (93.98)

37.54 24.75
16.79 12.73
(9.69) (9.15)
44.64 28.33
2.21 1.48
5.10 (4.48)
18.05 30.81
25.36 27.81
93.98 5441
44.64 28.33
25.36 27.81
(0.10) (16.56)
163.88 93.98

*Note - As per acturial valuation report contribution made by employeris Rs. 70,000. The difference of Rs. 60,000 is
due to the refund pertaining to last financial year adjusted in current financial year by Life Insurance Corporation of

India.
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Il Maturity profile of defined benefit obligations:

Year 1 29.52 15.55
Year 2 30.48 72.57
Year 3 43.95 120.18
Year 4 19.60 64.41
Year 5 15.21 24.76
Year 6 53.78 82.98
Year 7 23.03 117.62
Year 8 20.41 85.74
Year 9 18.72 34.12
Year 10 25.64 43.53
Above 10 years 398.08 -
Total expected payments 678.44 661.46

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting periodis 5.17 Years
(31st March,2018: 5.52 years).

The best estimate contribution for the company during the next yearwould be Rs 47.55lacs
(31st March,2018: Rs. 55.61lacs).

Amountpayable upondiscontinouance ofallemploymentis INR339.97 lacs.
(31st March,2018: Rs. 263.82lacs).

(Rs. In Lacs)
Il Experience Adjustments onPresentValue of DBO and Plan Assets As at As at
31st March 31st March
2019 2018
(Gain)/Loss on Plan Liabilities 18.05 30.81
% of Opening Plan Liabilities 8.21% 17.87%
(Gain)/Loss on Plan Assets 2.21 1.48
% of Opening Plan Assets 1.75% 1.25%

IV Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significantassumptions considered for defined benefit obligation (Gratuity):

Sensitivity analysis presented below represents expected change in present value of defined benefit obligation based
on reasonably possible changes in the assumptions occurring at the year end.

As at As at
31st March 31st March

2019 2018
Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) 293.63 219.85
(1) One percentage increase in discount rate 271.41 203.04
(2) One percentage decrease in discount rate 319.31 239.31
(3) One percentage increase in rate of salary escalation 319.16 238.79
(4) One percentage decrease in rate of salary escalation 270.99 203.06
(5) One percentage increase in rate of withdrawl rate 296.10 222.09
(6) One percentage decrease in rate of withdrawl rate 290.74 217.28
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V  Actuarial Assumptions

(1) Discountrate

(2) Mortality Rate

(3) SalaryEsclation-First5years

(4) Salary Esclation - After 5 years

(5) Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets
(6) Disability Rate

(7) RetirementAge
(8) Average Future Service

(9) Withdrawal rates , based on age: (per annum)

Upto25years
26-30years
31-35years
36-40years
41-45years
46-50years
51-55years
Above56years

VI Weighted average Asset allocation
( as percentage of total plan assets )

(1) Equities

(2) Bonds

(3) Gilts

(4) Insurance Policies
Total

Asat Asat
31stMarch 31stMarch
2019 2018

7.70% 7.75%
IALM (2006-08) Table
6%p.a 6%p.a
6%p.a 6%p.a
7.70% 7.75%
5% of 5% of
Mortality =~ Mortality
Rate Rate

60years 60 years
21.66 21.97

8.00% 8.00%
7.00% 7.00%
6.00% 6.00%
5.00% 5.00%
4.00% 4.00%
3.00% 3.00%
2.00% 2.00%
1.00% 1.00%

100% 100%
100% 100%

40 DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY IND AS 108, OPERATING SEGMENTS

(a) Identification of Operating Segments:
The Compnay Operate in a Single Reportable Operating Segment i.e. manufacturing and sale of Poly Vinyl Chloride,
Polyethylene, Antifab and EP Compound which have similar risk and returns and are of similar nature.

No otheroperating segments have been aggregated toformthe above reportable operating segments as perthe criteria
specified in the IndAS.

(b) Business Segment wiserevenue/results/assets/liabilities

Since there is Single Reportable Operating Segment hence disclosure of Operating Segment wise Assets, Liabilities,
Revenue and Results are notapplicable.

(c) Geographical Information

(i)

Segment revenue by location of Customers:

India
Overseas

Total

(Rs. In Lacs)
As at As at
31st March 31st March
2019 2018

171,216.89 144,123.95
29,686.29  32,409.19

200,903.19 176,533.15
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(ii)

Segment Assets by location
India

East

West

Others

Overseas

Total

7,464.26 6,805.65
18,086.37  17,579.37
32.73 40.13

25,583.36 24.425.16

(d) The Company does not have material amount of tangible, intangible assets and non current operating assets located
outside India.

(e) Product wise revenue from external customers has been detailed in Note No 27.

(f) RevenuefromthreecustomersisINR21,247.511acs(P.YRs.19,471.97 Lacs)whichismorethan 10%ofthetotalrevene
of the Company

41 DISCLOSURE ON RELATED PARTYTRANSACTIONS

(A) Related parties and their relationship with the Company :

(i)

(ii)

Name of the Related Party

Mr. Narrindra Suranna

Mr. Rajesh Kothari
Dr.P.R.Mukherjee

Mr.1.C Dakalia

Ms. Tanvi Panday

Mrs. TaraDeviSurana

Mr. Surendra Kumar Surana
Mr. DevKrishna Surana

Relationship with the Company

CEO, Chairman and Managing Director and
Promoter (KMP)

Whole Time Director (KMP)

Whole Time Director (KMP)

Chief Financial Officer (KMP)
Company Secretary (KMP)

Promoter

Promoter

Promoter & Director

Relative of Key Management Personnel (KMP) of the Company

Name ofthe Relative

Mrs. TaraDevi Surana

Mrs. SarlaDevi Surana

Mr. Surendra Kumar Surana
Mr. DevKrishna Surana

(iii) Bbigplas Poly PvtLtd (refer note below)

(iv) Plastic Processorand Exporters PvtLtd.

v)

Kkalpana Plasticks Limited

(vi) SriRamFinancial Consultants PvtLtd.

Shyambaba Trexim Pvt Ltd.
Inbara Holdings Pvt Ltd
KrishnaCommodeals Pvt.Ltd. (refernote below)

Relationship with KMP

Mother of Chairman and Managing Director
Wife of Chairman and Managing Director
Brother of Chairman and Managing Director
Son of Chairman and Managing Director

Promoter and Holding Company

Enterprises over which key management personnel
are abletoexercisessignificantinfluence withwhom
there were transactions during the Financial Year
2018-19

Subsidiary

Associate

Enterprises over which key management personnel
areabletoexercise significantinfluence withwhom
there were transactions during the Financial Year
2017-18

Note-Duringthe FY 2018-19 Kkalpana had also enteredinto transaction with SriRam Financial Consultants PvtLtd,
Shyambaba Trexim Pvt Ltd, Krishna Commodeals Pvt Ltd and Inbara holdings Pvt Ltd (Promoters of the Company)
all of which merged with Bbigplas Poly Pvt Ltd vide NCLT order dated 18th December, 2018 (filed with ROC on 4th

Feb 2019), having effect from 1st April, 2018.
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(B) Disclosure oftransactions with Related Parties as on 31.03.2019 (Rs. InLacs)
Nature of transactions Ref.toNote (A)above As at As at
Remuneration to KMP 31st March 31st March
2019 2018
Mr Narrindra Surana (i) 70.00 42.00
Mr Rajesh Kothari (i) 40.00 40.00
Mr P.R. Mukherjee (i) 19.00 18.00
Mr I.C. Dakalia (i) 22.96 20.91
Ms Tanvi Panday* (i) 7.23 5.50
Mr. A.B Chakraborty ** - 1.93

159.19 128.33

* Effective date of joining 1st July 2017. This remuneration is proportionate CTC for period of her service.
** Former Company Secretary of Kkalpana Industries (India) Ltd. resigned at 1st June 2017.

Sale of Goods
Plastic Processors Pvt Ltd. (iv) 2,871.90 850.46

Purchase of Goods
Plastic Processors Pvt Ltd. (iv) 4,219.90 702.16

Interest Expenses

Bbigplas Poly Pvt Ltd (iii) 119.17

Sri Ram Financial Consultants Pvt Ltd. (vi) 74.75
Shyambaba Trexim Pvt Lid. (vi) 35.67
Krishna Commodeals Pvt. Ltd. (vi) 4.89
Inbara Holdings Pvt Ltd (vi) 4.03

119.17 119.34

Interest Income
Plastic Processor and Exporters Pvt Ltd. (iv) 249.75 -

Loan Taken & Repaid during the Year

Kkalpana Plasticks Limited (v) 5.00 -
Rent
Sri Ram Financial Consultants Pvt Ltd. (vi) 76.56 76.56

Net Receivable\(Payable) at the Year End
Plastic Processor and Exporters Pvt Ltd. (iv) 939.79 144.90

Loan Taken & Outstanding at year End

Bbigplas Poly Pvt Ltd* (iii) 1,977.10 -
Sri Ram Financial Consultants Pvt Ltd.* (vi) - 1,124.05
Shyambaba Trexim Pvt Ltd.* (vi) - 524.98
Krishna Commodeals Pvt. Ltd.* (vi) - 71.87
Inbara Holdings Pvt Ltd* (vi) - 59.37
*(Note- After giving effect of IND AS)

Interest Payable

Bbigplas Poly Pvt Ltd (iii) 233.35 253.06
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Loan Given & Outstanding at year End
Plastic Processor and Exporters Pvt Ltd. (iv) - 748.39

Interest Receivable
Plastic Processor and Exporters Pvt Ltd. (iv) 224.78 -

42 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Thefairvalue ofthefinancial assets andliabilities areincluded atthe amountatwhich theinstrumentcould be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

(1) Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables , other current
liabilities, short-termloans frombanks and otherfinancial institutions approximate their carryingamountslargely due
to the short term maturities of these instruments.

(2) Financialinstrumentswithfixed andvariable interestrate are evaluated by the Company based on parametersuch
asinterestrates andindividual creditworthiness ofthe counterparty. Based onthis evaluation, allowances are taken
into account for the expected losses of these receivables.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by
valuation technique.

Level 1 : Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 : Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effects on the recorded fair value are observable,
either directly orindirectly.

Level 3: Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effects on the recorded fair value that are notbased on
observable market data.

The following tables provides classification of financial instruments and the fair value hierarchy of the Company's
assets and liabilities.

(a) Disclosurefortheyearended31stMarch,2019
Fair Value heirarchy

Carrying FairValue Level1 Level 2 Level 3
Value
(1) Financial Assets
Financial Assets at
amortised cost
Trade Receivables 31,030.91 31,030.91 - - 31,030.91
Loans - - - - -
Other Financial assets 859.91 859.91 - - 859.91
excluding derivative financial
instruments
Cash & cash equivalents 1,692.06 1,692.06 - - 1,692.06
33,582.88 33,582.88 - - 33,582.88
Financial Assets at cost
Investments in equity shares
Kkalpana Plastick Limited 200.29 200.29 - - -
Plastic Processor and 36.50 36.50 - - -

Exporters Pvt Ltd.

236.79 236.79 - - -
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Total 33,819.67  33,819.67 - - 33,582.88
(2) Financial Liability
Financial Liabilities at
amortised cost
Borrowings from Banks and 13,71247  13,712.47 13,712.47
Financial Institutions
Trade Payables 29,003.28  29,003.28 29,003.28
Other Financial liabilities 1,396.43 1,396.43 1,396.43
excluding derivative financial
instruments
Total 44.112.18 44,112.18 - - 44.112.18
Financial Liability at fair
value through profitorloss
Derivative financial instruments 107.04 107.04 - 107.04 -
Total 44,219.21 44,219.21 - 107.04 44.112.18
(b) Disclosurefortheyearended31stMarch,2018
Fair Value heirarchy
Carrying FairValue Level1 Level 2 Level 3
Value
(1) Financial Assets
Financial Assets at
amortised cost
Trade Receivables 33,498.54  33,498.54 - - 33,498.54
Loans 741.39 741.39 - - 741.39
Other Financial assets 513.53 513.53 - - 513.53
excluding derivative financial
instruments
Cash & cash equivalents 1,687.83 1,687.83 - - 1,687.83
36,441.28  36,441.28 - - 36,441.28
Financial Assets at cost
Investments in equity shares
Kkalpana Plastick Limited 200.29 200.29 - - -
Plastic Processor and 36.00 36.00 - - -
Exporters Pvt Ltd.
236.29 236.29 - - -
Financial Assetatfairvalue
through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments 86.86 86.86 - 86.86 -
86.86 86.86 - 86.86 -
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Assetsforwhichfairvalues

are disclosed

Investment Property (Refer - - - - -
Note No. 6 (b))

Total 36,764.43 36,764.43 - 86.86 36.441.28

(2) Financial Liability

Financial Liabilities at
amortised cost

Borrowings from Banks and 22,431.18 22,431.18 22,431.18
Financial Institutions

Trade Payables 26,791.84 26,791.84 26,791.84
Other Financial liabilities 1,151.54 1,151.54 1,151.54
excluding derivative financial

instruments

Total 50,374.55 50,374.55 - - 50,374.55

(c) Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation:

Financial Asset/ Liability Valuation Technique Significant unobservable input
Trade Receivables ECL Realisation pattern or past experience
Loans DCF usingEIR method Discount rate

Other Financial assets excluding derivative DCF usingEIR method Discount rate

financial instruments

Borrowings from banks and financial DCF usingEIR method Discount rate
institutions

43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(a

~

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables and advances from customers. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s
operations, projects under implementation and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company’s principal
financial assets include Investment, loans and advances, trade and other receivables and cash and bank balances that
derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's financial risk management is an
integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company's financial risk management policy is set
by the Managing Board.

Allderivative activities forrisk management purposes are carried outby specialistteams that have the appropriate skills,
experience and supervision. It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes to be
undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and finalises policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised
below.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: Interest rate risk, Currency risk and Commaodity price risk.
Financialinstruments affected by marketriskinclude investments and deposits, foreign currencyreceivables, payables,
loans and borrowings and derivative financial instruments.

The Company manages marketrisk throughatreasury department, which evaluates and exercisesindependent control
overtheentire process of marketrisk management. The treasury departmentrecommends risk managementobjectives
and policies, which are approved by Senior Management and the Audit Committee. The activities of this department
include management of cash resources, implementing hedging strategies for foreign currency exposures, borrowing
strategies and ensuring compliance with market risk limits and policies.
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(i) Interest rate risk

Interestrateriskistherisk thatthe fairvalue orfuture cashflows of afinancialinstrumentwill fluctuate because of changes
inmarketinterestrates. In orderto optimize the Company's position withregard tointerestincome andinterestexpenses
to manage the interest rate risk, treasury performs a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management by balancing
the proportion of fixed rate and floating rate financial instruments in its total portfolio.

Interest rate sensitivity

Thefollowingtabledemonstratesthe sensitivitytoareasonably possiblechangeininterestratesonthe unhedgedportion
of loans and borrowings. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the
impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

2018-19  2017-18
(+/-)50 (+/-)50
Basis Points Basis Points

Effect on profit before tax due to interest rate sensitivity 92.98 91.43

(i) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fairvalue or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in
foreignexchangerates. The Company’s exposure totherisk of changesinforeignexchange rates relates primarily tothe
Company’s operating and financing activities. The Company manages its foreign currency risk by hedging transactions
that are expected to realise in future.

As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Foreign Currency Exposure Foreign Functional Foreign Functional
Currency Currency Currency Currency
I  Hedged (Rs.inLacs) (Rs.inLacs)
Forward contracts for Imports UsD 10,900,940 7,540.18 5,550,000 3,609.72
EURO 155,925 121.15
Forward contracts for Exports uUsD 1,500,000 1,037.55 4,000,000 2,601.60
Option contracts for Exports uUsD 400,000 276.68 - -
I Not hedged
Trade receivables usb 4,182,895 2,893.31 3,446,685 2,241.72
EURO 1,572,616 1,221.92 2,826,250 2,278.52
Trade payables usb 1,756,303 1,214.83 2,780,438 1,808.40
EURO 19,280 14.98 405,075 326.57
Foreign currency loan UsD - - 3,615,852 2,350.74

availed under buyers' credit

Foreign Currency Sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of unhedged monetary
assets and liabilities.
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(Rs.InLacs)
201819  2017-18
(+)5%  (+-)5%
Effect on profit before tax

usD 83.92 (95.92)
Euro 60.35 97.60
144.27 1.68

Derivative Financial Instrument

The company holds Derivative financial instrument such as foreign currency forward and option contracts to mitigate the
risk of changes in exchange rate on foreign currency exposures. The counterparty for this contract is generally a Bank.
Although the company believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic perspective these do not
qualifyforhedge accountingas per IND AS 109, Financial instrument. Since the above derivatives are notdesignated as
hedges, suchderivatives are categorised asfinancial assetorfinancial liability atfair value through profit &loss.

(Rs. In Lacs)
As at As at
31stMarch, 31st March,
2019 2018

Foreign  Fair Value Foreign  Fair Valueas

Currency as on Currency 0n31.03.2018
31.03.2018
Derivatives not designated as hedges
Forward Contracts usD 12,400,940.00 (99.87) 5,550,000.00 64.74
EURO 155,925.00 (1.71) - -
Option Contracts usD 400,000.00 (5.46) 4,000,000.00 2212

(i) Commodity price risk

Principal Raw Material for Company’s products s variety of plastic polymers which are primarily Derivatives of Crude Oil.
Company sources its raw material requirement from across the globe. Domestic market prices are also generally remains
in sync with international market price scenario. Volatility in Crude Oil prices, Currency fluctuation of Rupee vis-a-vis other
prominentcurrencies coupled withdemand-supply scenarioin the world market affectthe effective price and availability
of polymersforthe Company. Company effectively manageswith availability of material as well as price volatility through:
1. Widening its sourcing base

2. Appropriate contracts and commitments

3. Well planned procurement & inventory strategy and

4. Prudent hedging policy on foreign currency exposure

Risk committee of the Company comprising members from Board of Directors and operations has developed and enacted
a risk management strategy regarding commodity Price risk and its mitigation.

(b) Credit Risk
Creditrisk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leadingtoafinancialloss. The Company is exposed to credit risk fromits operating activities (primarily trade receivables
andadvancestosuppliers)and fromitsfinancingactivities, including deposits and otherfinancialinstruments.

(i) Trade Receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. An
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients.

The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respecttotrade receivables as low, as its customers arelocatedin
several jurisdictions and operate in largely independent markets.
The ageing analysis of the receivables (gross of provisions) have been considered from the date of the invoice falls due.
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(Rs. In Lacs)
As at Asat
31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018
Lessthan6 months 30,412.33 33,954.42
6to 12months 738.08 107.56
morethan12months 512.37 55.61
Total 31,662.77 34,117.59

(i) Financial Instruments and Cash and bank balances
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in
accordance with the Company’s policy. Credit limits of all authorities are reviewed by the Management on regular basis. All
balances with banks and financial institutions is subject to low credit risk due to good credit ratings assigned to these entities.
(c) Liquidity Risk
The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool. The Company’s objective is to
maintain abalance between continuity of funding andflexibility through the use of cash credit, letter of credit, factoring, bill
discounting and working capital limits.
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual payments.

(Rs.InLacs)
Less than 1to5 > 5 years Total
1 year years
31st March, 2019
Borrowings

Term Loans from Banks 1,626.58 3,022.36 4,648.94

Long Term Loans from Others 28.08 2,007.50 2,035.58

Cash credit from Banks 2,527.95 2,527.95

Buyers credit from Banks - -

WCDL from Bank 4,500.00 4,500.00
OtherFinancial Liabilities otherthan current maturities of 1,503.47 1,503.47
borrowings and lease obligation
Trade Payables 29,003.28 29,003.28

39,189.35 5,029.86 - 44,219.21
31st March, 2018 Less than 1to 5 > 5 years Total
1 year years
Borrowings

Term Loans from Banks 1,501.58 4,626.23 6,127.81

Long Term Loans from Others - 1,862.27 1,862.27

Cash credit from Banks 12,090.36 12,090.36

Borrowing from Bank-Factoring/Bill discounting -

Buyers credit from Banks 2,350.74 2,350.74
OtherFinancial Liabilities otherthan currentmaturities of 1,151.54 1,151.54
borrowings and lease obligation
Trade Payables 26,791.84 26,791.84

43,886.05 6,488.50 - 50,374.55

44 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

(a) Forthe purpose of the Company’s capital management, equity includes issued equity capital, securities premium and
all other equity reserves attributable to the equity share holders, including capital reserve and net debt includes interest
bearing loans and borrowings except cash and cash equivalents. The primary objective of the Company’s capital
management is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and provide adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth.
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The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. The funding requirement is met through a mixture of equity, internal accruals,
long term borrowings and short term borrowings. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total capital plus net debt.

Inordertoachievethis overall objective, the Company’s capitalmanagement,amongstotherthings, aimstoensurethatit
meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements.

(Rs.InLacs)
As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018
Borrowings 13,712.47 22,431.18
Less: Currentinvestments - -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 1,692.06 1,687.83
(a) Net Debt 15,404.52 24,119.01
(b) Equity 31,853.42 29,579.99
(c)EquityandNetDebt(a+b) 47,257.94 53,698.99
Gearing Ratio (a/c) 32.60% 44.92%

(b) Proposed Dividend

The Board of directors in its Board meeting held on 28th May 2018 have recommended the payment of a final dividend
of Rs 0.12 paise per fully paid up equity share (March 31,2018 - Rs 0.24 paise), The proposed dividend is subject to the
approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

(Rs. In Lacs)
As at As at
45 EARNINGPERSHARE (EPS) 31st March 31st March
2019 2018
(a) Face value of equity shares Rs. 2.00 2.00
(b) Profit attributable to equity Rs. (in 2,561.75 2,197.24
shareholders Lacs)
(c) Weighted average number of Nos. 940.73 940.73
equity shares outstanding
(d) Weighted average Earning Rs. 2.72 2.34

Per Share (Basic and Diluted)
46 RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES

The Company has in-house R&D centre. The details of revenue/capital expenditure incurred by the said R&D Centre during
the year are as follows:-

(Rs. In Lacs)
As at Asat
(a) Revenueexpenditure charged to Statement of Profitand Loss 31st March 31st March
2019 2018
Other Expenses 36.93 16.08
(b) Capital expenditure shown underfixed assets schedule 89.51 102.17
Grand Total 126.45 118.26
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47 ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY

The carrying amount of Assets pledged as security for current and non current borrowings are :-

A. Current
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables
Other Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Non Financial Assets
Inventories
Total Current Assets Pledged as Security

B. Non Current
Movable and immovable properties located at Surangi Unit
Movable and immovable properties located at Daman Unit
Movable and immovable properties located at Silvassa Unit
Movable and immovable properties located at Bhasa Unit
Movable properties located at Dhulagarh Unit

Property located at D-403, Dharam Place, CHS Limited, Shantivan, Borivalli (E), Mumbai - 400066

Exclusive Charge
Immovable properties located at Bhasa Unit.

Notes -

(Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at
31st March, 31st March,

2019 2018
31,030.91  33,498.54
5,645.46 7,104.12
1,692.06 1,687.83
15,714.37  15,543.90
54,082.80 57,834.39
14,592.81  14,220.24
1,937.92 1,645.17
1,535.01 1,511.87
611.36 631.70
3,607.22 -
- 131.99

1 Rupee Loan from SBI, HDFC and IDFC are secured by 1st pari passu charge by way of equitable mortgage over
all present and future movable and immovable properties located at Silvasa, Surangi, Daman and Bhasa Units and
movablefixedassetsatDhulagarh Unitand2nd paripassucharge byway ofhypothecationoverentire currentassets,
stock and book debts of the company both present and future.

2 Working Capital facilities (fund based and non fund based limits) are secured by 1st pari passu charge by way of equitable
mortgage over property located at D-403, Dharam Place, CHS Limited, Shantivan, Borivalli (E), Mumbai-400066 and
by way of hypothecation over entire current assets, stock and trade receivables of the company both present and
future and 2nd pari passu charge by way of equitable mortgage over all present and future movable and immovable
propertieslocated atSilvasa, Surangi,Damanand Bhasa Unitsand movable fixedassets atDhulagarh Unit.

48 VALUE OF IMPORTED AND INDEGENEOUS MATERIAL CONSUMED

Particulars

Raw Materials

i Imported
i Indegeneos

Total
Store, Spare parts and Components

i Imported
i Indegeneous

Total

(Rs. In Lacs)

As at %age of As at %age of

31st March, Total Con- 31st March, Total Con-

2019 sumption 2018 sumption
56,477.94 32% 66,497.29 44%
119,955.11 68% 84,575.41 56%
176,433.05 100% 151,072.69  100%
181.19 30% 149.02 35%
432.73 70% 277.65 65%
613.92 100% 426.67 100%

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19/121



KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the yearended 31st March, 2019

49 VALUE OF IMPORTS ON CIFBASIS

Particulars

Raw Materials

Stors, Spare parts and Components
Capital Goods

Total

50 EARNING IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (ACCRUAL BASIS)

Particulars

ExportsatFOBValue

Total

51 EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (ACCRUAL BASIS)

Particulars

Travelling
Exhibition
Interest
Other Matters

Total
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(Rs.InLacs)
As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018

47,869.71  60,564.17
181.19 150.51
600.50 140.31

48,651.40  60,854.99

(Rs. In Lacs)
As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018

29,686.29 32,409.19

29,686.29 32,409.19

(Rs. In Lacs)
As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018
15.76 11.69
30.08 12.99
129.62 112.46
438.23 5.74

613.69 142.87




KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the yearended 31stMarch, 2019

52 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate affairs have notified Ind AS 116 — “Leases”. Ind AS 116 will replace the existing
leases standards Ind AS 17 — “Leases” and related interpretations. The new standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosures of lease for both lease and lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lease accounting
model and requires aleassee to recognise the assets and liabilities for all leases with aterm of more than 12 months, unless
the underlying assets are of low value. Ind AS 116 substantially carried forward the accounting treatment prescribed for lessor.
The effective date foradoption of Ind AS 116is annual period beginning on or after April01,2019. The Companyis evaluating
the impact of the issued Ind AS 116 on its financial statements.

The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 also notified amendments to the following accounting
standards. The amendments would be effective from April 1, 2019.

. Ind AS 12, Income taxes — Appendix C on uncertainty over income tax treatments

. Ind AS 12, Income Taxes - Accounting for Dividend Distribution Taxes

.Ind AS 23, Borrowingcosts

. Ind AS 28 — Investment in associates and joint ventures

. Ind AS 103 and Ind AS 111 — Business combinations and joint arrangements

. Ind AS 109 - Financial instruments

. Ind AS 19 — Employee benefits

The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of such amendments.

Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged/ reclassified where necessary to correspond with current year figures.

~N o OB wWw N -

For B. Mukherjee & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No:302096E

Narrindra Suranna Rajesh Kothari
(DIN: 00060127) (DIN: 02168932)
Chairman and Managing Director Whole Time Director
B. Mukherjee
Partner
Membership No.002941 Tanvi Panday Indar Chand Dakalia
Date : 28th May, 2019 (Membership No. ACS 31176) Chief Financial Officer
Place : Kolkata Company Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of KKALPANA INDUSTRIES
(INDIA) LIMITED (“the parent company”), its subsidiary and associate(herein after to be referred as “the
Group”), which comprises of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2019, the consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated Cash Flow
Statement and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March 2019, its profits (including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAIl) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by other auditors is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significant in our

audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in

the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response

Information Technology (IT) Systems and | Audit Procedures Performed
Controls

We have performed procedures to ensure the migration
During the vyear the parent Company | of financial data between old system and new system.
has implemented SAP, a new Enterprise
Resource Planning (ERP) System. The new
system is fully integrated financial accounting
and reporting system.

Our audit approach consisted testing of design and
operating effectiveness of internal controls and
substantive testing around the new ERP system. We
also performed sufficient test of details as a part of our
audit.
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Key Audit Matters

Auditor’s Response

The implementation of ERP has a risk of
loss of integrity of key financial data being
migrated and elimination of traditional
controls without replacing them with the new
effective controls measures, monitoring of IT
controls which are relating to critical business
processes such as purchase, production,
sales, inventory and including recording of
transactions, which could lead to financial
errors or mis-statements and inaccurate
financial reporting and also there is risk
that automated accounting procedures and
related IT manual controls might not work.

We have performed the test of details for areas where
the Management has implemented manual controls
during the year including the continuing manual controls
as at the year end.

We have performed the test of controls regarding the
appropriateness of system access and an effective
maker and checker system built in the ERP system for
proper authorizations of transactions and posting of
accounting entries.

The combination of these tests of controls and procedures
performed, gave us a sufficient evidence to enable us to
rely on the operations of ERP system for the purpose of

We have accordingly designated this as a the audit of the financial statements.

focus area in the audit.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s report thereon

The Group Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The Other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including
Annexures to the Board report, Business responsibility Report, Corporate Governance report and
Shareholder’s information, but does not include the consolidated financial statement and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Group Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance (including other comprehensive
income), consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, vdedue
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design ad
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial control
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of amiy
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of amigand,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a
going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial d#es
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that individually or
in aggregate makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) Planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work and (ii) To
evaluate the effect of ant identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
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precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report,to the extent applicable that:

1.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31%*March,
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
consolidated financial statements..

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For B.Mukherjee & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No : 302096E

B.Mukherjee
(Partner)
Mem No : 002941

Place: Kolkata
Date: 28" day of May, 2019
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ANNEXURE “A” REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2(F) UNDER “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL
AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” SECTION OF OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED OF EVEN DATE:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KKALPANA INDUSTRIES
(INDIA) LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31'March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Group management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Group considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’'). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to group policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by ICAIl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Group internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
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and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Group has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at 31**March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For B.Mukherjee & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No : 302096E

B.Mukherjee

(Partner)
Mem No : 002941

Place: Kolkata
Date: 28" day of May, 2019
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2019

A ASSETS

1

Non-current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Capital Work-in-Progress
Investment Property
Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill
Financial Assets

(i) Investments

(i) Loans

(ii) Other Financial Assets
Other Non-Current Assets

Current Assets
Inventories
Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables
(i) Cash & Cash Equivalents
(v) Loans
(vi) Other Financial Assets
Other Current Assets

Total

B EQUITY & LIABILITIES

1

Significant Accounting Policies and other information

Equity
Equity Share Capital
Other Equity

Non Controlling Interest

Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings
Provisions
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)

Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(i) Trade Payables

- Micro & Small Enterprises

- Others
(i) Other Financial Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities
Provisions
Current Tax Liabilities (net)

Total

(Rs in Lacs)
Note As at As at
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
4 24,565.32 23,315.77
5 24.15 410.14
6 1,281.68 1,281.68
7 18.98 23.45
71.11 49.60
8 241.56 239.04
9 - -
10 425.77 271.24
11 78.01 578.26
12 16,225.47 15,910.87
13 30,133.90 33,360.06
14 1,883.84 1,697.49
9 - -
10 246.40 350.94
15 5,227.65 6,044.41
80,423.84 83,532.95
16 1,881.46 1,881.46
17 29,891.67 27,576.96
31,773.13 29,458.42
- (19.32)
31,773.13 29,439.10
18 5,029.86 6,488.50
19 163.88 93.98
20
21 7,027.95 14,441.10
22
314.32 -
28,705.45 26,834.00
23 3,224.59 2,653.11
24 47414 461.75
25 126.56 88.96
26
40,539.62 45,092.90
80,423.84 83,532.95
1-3

Contingent liabilities and Other notes to the financial statements.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For B. Mukherjee & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No:302096E

B. Mukherjee

Partner

Membership No.002941
Date : 28th May, 2019
Place : Kolkata
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Narrindra Suranna
(DIN: 00060127)
Chairman and Managing Director

Tanvi Panday
(Membership No. ACS 31176)
Company Secretary

Rajesh Kothari
(DIN: 02168932)
Whole Time Director

Indar Chand Dakalia
Chief Financial Officer



KKALPANAINDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFITANDLOSSFORTHEYEARENDED 31stMARCH, 2019

(Rs in Lacs)
Note As at As at
No. 31st March 2019 31st March 2018
I INCOME
Revenue from Operations 27 198,252.72 175,578.38
Other Income 28 1,226.63 819.56
Total Income 199,479.35 76,397.94
I EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 29 172,684.58 150,204.44
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods 30 (940.33) (106.28)
& Work-in-Progress & Stock-in-Trade
Excise Duty - 3,775.43
Employee Benefits Expense 31 4,586.38 2,799.73
Finance Costs 32 5,994.39 5,526.62
Depreciation & Amortization Expense 4-7 1,667.14 1,732.91
Other Expenses 33 11,387.13 9,189.91
Total Expenses 195,379.30 73,122.76
L PROFIT BEFORE SHARE OF PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM 4,100.06 3,275.18
INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE AND TAX
IV SHARE OF PROFIT/(LOSS) OF ASSOCIATE 2.52 4.33
V  PROFIT BEFORE TAX 4,102.58 3,279.51
Tax expense 34
Current tax 1,330.95 688.62
Mat Credit Entitlement (2.53) -
Deferred tax 172.82 563.97
Total Tax expense 1,501.24 1,252.59
VI PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AFTER TAX 2,601.34 2,026.91
VIl OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 35
i Items that will not be classified to profit and loss (25.36) (27.81)
i Income tax relating to items that will not be 8.78 9.62
classified to profit and loss
Total Other Comprehensive Income For The Year (16.58) (18.18)
VI TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 2,584.75 2,008.73
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
Attributable to
Equity Holders of the Parent 2603.02 2044.38
Non Controlling Interest (1.69) (17.47)
2,601.34 2,026.91
TOTAL COMPRHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
Attributable to
Equity Holders of the Parent 2586.44 2026.20
Non Controlling Interest (1.69) (17.47)
2,584.75 2,008.73
EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE
(Face value of Rs 2/- each)
Basic (Rs) 2.77 217
Diluted (Rs.) 2.77 2.17
Significant Accounting Policies and other information 1-4
Contingent liabilities and Other notes to the financial statements
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For B. Mukherjee & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No:302096E
Narrindra Suranna Rajesh Kothari
(DIN: 00060127) (DIN: 02168932)
Chairman and Managing Director Whole Time Director
B. Mukherjee
Partner
Membership No.002941 Tanvi Panday Indar Chand Dakalia
Date : 28th May, 2019 (Membership No. ACS 31176) Chief Financial Officer
Place : Kolkata Company Secretary
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KKALPANAINDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019
(Rs. In Lacs)

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax from continuing operations

Adjustment for:
Depreciation & amortization expense
Loss/(Profit) on sale of fixed assets
Unwinding of Interest on security deposit
Finance cost
Interest income

(Gain)/Loss on remeasurement of Investment at fair

value

Other comprehensive income
Provision for Doubtful debts

Bad debts written off

Notional rent on Security deposit

Operating profit before Working Capital changes

Adjustments for Working Capital changes

Decrease/(increase) in non current financial assets

Loans

Other financial assets
Decrease/(increase) in other non current assets
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in current financial assets

Trade receivables

Loans

Other financial assets
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets
Increase/(decrease) in non current provisions
Increase/(decrease) in current financial liabilities

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in short term provisions

Cash generated from operations

(Tax paid) / refund received (net)
Net cash from operating activities

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, CWIP and

Intangible assets

Sale proceeds of Property, Plant and Equipment
Interest receipt on investments

Increase in investment in Term deposit
Purchase of current investments (net)

Net cash generated / (used) in investing activities
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As at
31st March, 2019

4,100.06
1,667.14
21.12
(5.96)
5,994.39
(75.89)
(25.36)
12.81
3.44
6.90

7,598.61

11,698.67
(30.98)
493.35
(314.60)
3,209.91
104.54
816.76
69.89
2,185.78
412.44
12.38
37.60

_6,997.07

18,695.74

(940.96)

17,754.78
(2,601.61)
54.25
75.89
(117.58)
(0.50)

(2,589.54)

As at
31st March, 2018

1,732.91
10.94
(4.62)

5,526.62

(137.78)

0.01

(27.81)
(376.31)
27.57
5.27

(95.38)
(405.16)
1,445.45

23.82
(667.86)
(88.64)
(2,554.57)
39.57

13,070.82
(168.97)
149.91
(79.01)

(3,054.79)

104.89
137.78
504.70

0.01

3,275.18

6.756.79
10,031.97

10,669.97
20,701.94

(780.01)
19,921.93

(2,307.41)



KKALPANAINDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019

C. CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long term borrowings

Repayment of long term borrowings (1,654.57) (338.95)
Increase/(decrease) in short term borrowings (7,260.07) (11,843.59)
Dividend paid (225.78) ' -
Taxes on dividend Paid (45.96) -
Finance cost (5,792.51) (5,316.25)
Net cash from financing activities (14,978.88) (17.498.79)
Net changes in Cash and Bank balances 186.36 115.72
Net Increase / (-) Decrease in Cash and Bank balances
Balance at the end of the year 1,883.84 1,697.49
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,697.49 1,581.77
Net changes in Cash and Bank balances 186.36 115.72
Notes:

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 7, Statement of Cash Flows.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For B. Mukherjee & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No:302096E

Narrindra Suranna Rajesh Kothari
(DIN: 00060127) (DIN: 02168932)
Chairman and Managing Director Whole Time Director
B. Mukherjee
Partner
Membership No.002941 Tanvi Panday Indar Chand Dakalia
Date : 28th May, 2019 (Membership No. ACS 31176) Chief Financial Officer
Place : Kolkata Company Secretary
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KKALPANAINDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Refer Note No. 16)

(Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at
31st March, 31st March,

2019 2018
Balance at the year beginning 1,881.46 1,881.46
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balance at the year end 1,881.46 1,881.46

B. OTHER EQUITY (Refer Note No. 17)
For the year ended 31st March, 2019
Other
Reserve & Surplus Comprehensive
Particulars Income Total
.. Securities . Remeasurement
Capital . General Retained .
Premium . of defined
Reserve Reserve Earnings .
Reserve benefit plan

Balance as at 1st April, 2018 852.96 5,322.45 3,400.00 18,144.26 (21.15) 27,698.53
Add : For the Year - - -2,561.75 (16.58) 2,545.17
Less: Equity Dividend - - - (225.78) - (225.78)
Less: Corporate Dividend Tax - - - (45.96) - (45.96)
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 _ 852.96 5,322.45 3,400.00 20,434.27 (37.73) 29,971.97

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
This is the Statement of Equity referred to in our report of even date.

For B. Mukherjee & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No:302096E
Narrindra Suranna
(DIN: 00060127)

Chairman and Managing Director
B. Mukherjee

Partner

Membership No.00294 1
Date : 28th May, 2019
Place : Kolkata

Tanvi Panday
(Membership No. ACS 31176)
Company Secretary
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Rajesh Kothari
(DIN: 02168932)
Whole Time Director

Indar Chand Dakalia
Chief Financial Officer



KKALPANAINDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019
1. COMPANY INFORMATION

21

Kkalpana Industries (India) Limited (the Company) was incorporated in India on 03rd of September 1985.
The Company is domiciled in India whose shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). The
registered office is located at 2B Pretoria Street. Kolkata Plastic Processors and Exporters Pvt Limited is a
subsidiary of the Company.The Parent Company along with subsidiary is engaged in the manufacturing of
Plastic Compounds.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2019 were authorised
for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors as on 28.05.2019.

Group Overview

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Kkalpana Industries (India) Limited,
Parent Company and its subsidiary and its associate (herein referred as "The Group"). "It is incorporated
under the Indian Companies Act, 1956 and its share are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange".

Group Structure

Name of the Company Country of % of share held by the parent
Incorporation | company as at 31st March 2019
Subsidiary
Plastic Processor and Exporter Pvt Ltd. India 99.99%
Associates
Kkalpana Plastick Limited India 36.23%

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate affairs pursuant to
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting
policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group's normal operating
cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division Il of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the
nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or
non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is the Group's functional
currency and transactions and balances with values below the rounding off norm adopted by the Group have
been reflected as "0" in the relevant notes in these consolidated financial statements.

2.2 Basis of Consolidation

A) Investment in Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has control.Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to effect those
returns through its powers over the investee. Specificaly, the Group controls an investee if and only if the
Group has :

-Power over the investee (i.e. exsisting rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee)

-Exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and,

-The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its return.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it control an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of controls. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the group losses control of the subsidiary.

Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the Parent Company
gains control until the date when the Parent Company ceases to control the subsidiary

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Parent
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance
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KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes tothe consolidatedfinancial statements forthe yearended 31stMarch, 2019

Consolidation Procedure

a) Combine, on line by line basis like items of assets , liabilities , equity, income, expense and cash flows of the
parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on
the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements of the acquisition
date.

b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent's investment in each subsidiary and the parent's portion
of equity of each subsidiary.In other words, the excess of cost to the Group of its investment in subsidiaries,
on the acquisition dates over and above the Group’s share of equity in the subsidiaries, is recognized as
‘Goodwill on Consolidation’ being an asset in the consolidated financial statements. The said Goodwill is not
amortised, however, it is tested for impairment at each Balance Sheet date and the impairment loss, if any, is
provided for. On the other hand, where the share of equity in subsidiaries as on the date of investment is in
excess of cost of investments of the Group, it is recognised as ‘Capital Reserve’ and shown under the head
‘Reserves and Surplus’ in the consolidated financial statements.

c¢) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between entites of the group (profit or losses resulting from intra group transactions that are
recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are elimiated in full.)

d) Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the
consolidated Balance Sheet separately within equity.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consists of:

(i) The amount of equity attributable to non-controlling interests at the date on which investment in a subsidiary
is made; and

(ii) The non-controlling interests share of movements in equity since the date parent subsidiary relationship
came into existence.

e) Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and
other events in similar circumstances. If the member of the group uses accounting policies other than those
adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
appropiate adjustments are made to that group member's financial statements in preparing the consolidated
financial statements to ensure confirmity with the group's accounting policies.

B) Investment in Associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.
The Group's investments in its associate are accounted for using the equity menthod. Under the equity
method, the investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment
is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate since the aquisition date.
Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is
not tested for impairment individually.
The statement of profit and loss reflects the Group's share of the results of operations of the associate. Any
change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group's OCI. In addition where there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. unrealised gains and losses resulting from the transaction
between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate.

2.3 Basis of Measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis (which includes deemed
cost as per Ind AS 101), except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:
(i) Derivative financial instruments
(i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments).

(iii) Defined benefits plans - Plan assets measured at fair value

2.4 Key Accounting Estimates And Judgements
The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions in the application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the
estimation and judgments based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.
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KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Revenue Recognition
The Group recognizes revenue, whenever control over distinct goods or services is transferred to the customer;
i.e. when the customer is able to direct the use of the transferred goods or services and obtains substantially
all of the remaining benefits, provided a contract with enforceable rights and obligations exists and amongst
others collectability of consideration is probable taking into account customer’s creditworthiness.
Revenue is the transaction price the Company expects to be entitled to. In determining the transaction price,
the Group considers effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing contracts, noncash
consideration and consideration payable to the customer, if any. The Group considers whether there are other
promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which the transaction price needs to be
allocated (e.g. warranties etc.).
A) Variable Consideration
If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled to in exchange for transferring goods to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant reversal of
revenue will not occur once associated uncertainties are resolved. Some contracts with the customers provide
them with a right to return and volume rebates. The right to return and volume rebates gives rise to variable
consideration.
The amount of variable consideration is calculated by either using the expected value or the most likely
amount depending on which is expected to better predict the amount of variable consideration. Consideration
is also adjusted for the time value of money if the period between the transfer of goods or services and the
receipt of payment exceeds twelve months and there is a significant financing benefit either to the customer or
the Company. If a contract contains more than one distinct good or service, the transaction price is allocated
to each performance obligation based on relative stand-alone selling prices. If stand-alone selling prices are
not observable, the Company reasonably estimates those.
Revenue is recognized for each performance obligation either at a point in time or over time.

B) Sale of goods

Revenues are recognized at a point in time when control of the goods passes to the buyer, usually upon either
at the time of dispatch or delivery. In case of export sale, it is usually recognised based on the shipped-on
board date as per bill of lading. Revenue from sale of goods is net of taxes and recovery of charges collected
from customers like transport, packing etc.

C) Contract balances

Trade Receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. only a
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the company
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the company transfer goods and services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made or the payment is due, whichever is earlier. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the company performs under the contract.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend Income
Revenue is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established by the reporting date.

Other Claims / Receipts

Insurance claims and other receipts including export incentives, where quantum of accruals cannot be
ascertained with reasonable certainty, these receipts are accounted on receipt basis.
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KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes tothe consolidatedfinancial statements forthe yearended 31stMarch, 2019

Commission Income

When the Compnay Acts in the capacity of an agent rather than as the princpal in a transaction the revenue
recognised is the net amount of the commission earned by the Company.

3.2 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses (i.e. as per Cost Model), if any. Cost comprises purchase price including import duties
and other non-refundable duties and taxes, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and other directly
attributable cost for bringing the Assets to its present location and condition.

The cost of replacing part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of
the item only when it is probable that future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item/part can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which they are incurred.

When parts of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Property, Plant and Equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance sheet are
disclosed as "Capital Work-in-progress".

Items of Property, Plant and Equipment acquired through exchange of non-monetary assets are measured at
fair value, unless the exchange transaction lacks commercial substance or the fair value of either the asset
received or asset given up is not reliably measurable, in which case the asset exchanged is recorded at the
carrying amount of the asset given up.

The Assets which are held for Sale shall be reclassified to Current Assets only if its carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction (within one year) rather than through continuing use.
Depreciation and Ammortization:-

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight line method based on estimated useful life
prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

Particulars Years
Factory Building 30
Plant & Machinery 25
Electrical Installation 10
Lab Equipments 10
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Motor Car 8
Air Conditioner 15
Scooter, Moped and Cycle 10
Office Equipment 5
Computer 3

Useful life of Plant and Machinery has been considered 25 years as against 15 years as prescribed in Shedule
Il of the Companies Act, 2013 which is based on the prevailing practices of the comparable industries and our
past experience for last 30 years.

3.3 Intangible Assets
Separately purchased intangible assets are initially measured at cost.Subsequently, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.Finite-life intangible assets are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of their expected useful lives.
The Tangible Assets are derecognised either when they are being disposed off or no future economic benefit
is expected from its use or disposal, the difference net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of Assets
is recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss in the period of dereognition.
Intangible assets are amortised as follows:
Technical Know How and Computer Software is ammortized over a period of 10 years except SAP, a new
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) System which has been implemented and ammortised during the year.
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KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

3.4 Non Current Assets held for Sale
Non-current assets or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities are classified as 'held for sale' when all
of the following criteria are met : (i) decision has been made to sell. (ii) the assets are available for immediate
sale in its present condition (iii) the assets are being actively marketed and (iv) sale has been agreed or is
expected to be concluded within 12 months of the Balance Sheet date.
Subsequently, such non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of its carrying value and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets held for sale are not depreciated
or amortised.

3.5 Investment Property
Investment Property comprises Free-Hold Lands that are held for Capital Appreciation as it has been held for
a currently undetermined future use and are recognised at cost.
An Investment Property are derecognised either when they are disposed off or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected.The difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period of
derecognition.

3.6 Lease
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date, whether fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific
asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset even if that right is not explicitly specified
in an arrangement.
Leases in which a substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments and receipts under such leases are recognised to the Statement
of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless the lease payments to the lessor
are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected
inflationary cost increases, in which case the same are recognised as an expense in line with the contractual
term.
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee.

3.7 Impairment of non-financial assets
As at each balance sheet date, the Group assesses whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired and also whether there is an indication of reversal of impairment loss recognised in the previous
periods. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, if any, the Group
determines the recoverable amount and impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is determined:-
a )In the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value in use ; and
b) In the case of cash generating unit (a group of asset that generates identified, independent cash flow), at
the higher of the cash generating unit’s fair value less cost to sell and the value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discounting rate that reflect the current market assessment of the time value of the money and the risk
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transaction is taken into
account. If no such transaction can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations
are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available
fair value indicators.
The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared
separately for each of the Group’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

3.8 Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.
A) Financial Assets
Initial Recognition and measurement of Financial Assets
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus or minus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.
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Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, in the same manner as described in subsequent
measurement.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the
date the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
(a) Financial assets at amortised cost

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

(d) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost (net of any write down
for impairment) unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.
i) Business model test : The objective of the Group's business model is to hold the financial asset to collect
the contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realize its fair
value changes).

ii) Cash flow characteristics test : The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts ) through the expected life of the
debt instrument or where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Afinancial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

i) Business model test : The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

ii) Cash flow characteristics test : The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’) that would otherwise arise
from measuring financial assets and financial liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on different
bases.

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in the statement of profit and loss.

(d) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes
in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is
made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If an equity investment is not held for trading, an irrecoverable election is made at initial recognition to measure
it at fair value through other comprehensive income with only dividend income recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.
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If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from other
comprehensive income to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s financial statement) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and
either:

(i) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(i) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

Write Off

An entity shall directly reduce the gross carrying amount of a Financial Asset when the entity has no reasonable
expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirity or for a portion thereof.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss
on the following financial assets:

(a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

(b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Expected Credit Losses are measured through either 12 month ECL or lifetime ECL and it is assessed as
following:

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets, the Group determines that whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly,
12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in the subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves, such that there
is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables
The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather,

it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

The Group follows a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historical observed default rates over the expected life of
the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group combines financial instruments on the
basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.
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3.9

B) Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, trade and other payables and derivative financial
instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as
such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

(b) Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit
and loss.

(¢) Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially
as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as
per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group enters into derivative contracts such as forward currency contract, option contract and cross
currency and interest rate swaps to hedge foreign currency risks and interest rate risks. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair
value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss,
except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other comprehensive income and
later reclassified to statement of profit and loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprises cash in hand, cash at banks and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, cash
at banks and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts, if any, as they are
considered an integral part of the cash management.
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3.10Foreign currency Transactions
The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.) which is also Group's
functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency, using the exchange
rates prevailing on the date of transaction. At each balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are
reported using the closing exchange rate. Exchange rate differences that arise on settlement of monetary items
or on translating of monetary items at each balance sheet reporting date at the closing rate are recognised as
income or expense in the period in which they arise except exchange difference on monetary items that qualify
as a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge are recognised initialy in OCI to the extent the hedge is effective.
Non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using
the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates prevailing at the date when fair value is determined.
When a gain or loss on non-monetary items is recognised in OCl any exchange component of that gain / loss
shall be recognised in OCI, conversaly when a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in Profit /
loss any exchange component of that gain/loss shall be recognised in Profit / Loss.

3.11Fair Value Measurement
The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
(a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

3.12Inventories
Raw materials
Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower. Cost is determined by using the
Weighted average method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Finished Goods and Traded Goods

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Finished goods include cost of conversion
and other cost incurred for bringing the inventories to their present location and condition and Traded Goods
includes purchase prise and other cost incurred for bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.
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Stores & Spareparts
Store and Spare Parts are valued at Cost.

3.13Employee Benefits
Short Term Employee Benefits
Short term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the
amount expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the year end, if the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and
the obligation can be estimated reliably. It includes Salary, wages, paid annual leave.
Post Employement Benefits
Defined Contribution Plan
Retirement benefits in the form of contribution to Provident fund are defined contribution plans. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss as and when due monthly and are paid to the
Government administered Providend Fund towards which the Group has no further obligation beyond its
monthly contribution. Superannuation benefit scheme is not exsisting in the Group.
Defined benefit plans
The Group operates defined benefit plan viz., gratuity. The costs of providing benefits under this plan are
determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end. Actuarial valuation is carried out for the plan
using the projected unit credit method.
Defined benefit costs are comprised of:
a ) service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments
and settlements);
b ) Net interest expense or income; and
c) Re-measurement.
The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee
benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs. Re-measurement of
net defined benefit liability/ asset pertaining to gratuity comprise actuarial gains/ losses (i.e. changes in the
present value resulting from experience adjustments and effects of changes in actuarial assumptions) and is
reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

3.14Borrowing Cost
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which it is incurred.
Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest rate method as described in
Ind AS 109- Financial Instruments, finance charges in respect of finance leases are recognised in accordance
with Ind AS 17- Leases and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

3.15Income Taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. It is recognised in
statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
Current Tax
Currentincome tax represents the tax currently payable on the taxable income for the year and any adjustment
to the tax in respect of the previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.
Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at
the reporting date.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reveiwed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates ( and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside the statement of profit
and loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:
(i) entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and
(i) deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to the income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority.
Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity. In this case, tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
Minimum Alternate Tax creditis recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is
no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Group will pay normal tax during the specified period.
3.16 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
General
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement
of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
Contingent Liabilities and Assets
Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are not recognised
but disclosed in the consolidated financial statements when economic inflow is probable.
3.17Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period after deducting any
attributable tax thereto for the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period
is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
3.18 Current and Non-current Classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non current classification.
An asset is current when:
- It is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle (twelve months),
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,
- It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period,
- It is cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle (twelve months),
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period,
Or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
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3.19Business Combination

Business combinations, if any, are accounted for using the acquisition accounting method as at the date of the
acquisition, which is the date at which control is transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred in the
acquisition and the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recognised at fair values on their
acquisition date. Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over
the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the Goodwill computed as per IND AS 103 is
negative, the acquirer needs to reassess the identification and measurement of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities and the measurement of the cost of combination. If negative
goodwill remains, this is recognised immediately in OCI and accumulated in equity as Capital Reserve. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share
of the acquired entity's net identifiable assets. Consideration transferred does not include amounts related to
settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such amounts are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, other than those incurred in relation to the issue of debt or equity
securities. Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes in the fair value of contingent consideration are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss.

If there is an acquisition of an asset or a group of assets that does not constitute a business.In such cases the
Group shall identify and recognise the individual identifiable assets acquired (including those assets that meet
the definition of, and recognition criteria for, intangible assets in Ind AS 38, Intangible Assets) and liabilities
assumed. The cost of the group shall be allocated to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the
basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction or event does not give rise to
goodwill.

Consolidated Shedules for the year ended 31st March, 2019

04. Property Plantand Equipment (Rs. InLacs)
Gross Block Depreciation / Amortisation Net Block
Description As at dﬁg:'t'g; Sales/ As at As at Forthe| Sales/ As at As at As at

01-04-2018 yegar Disposals |31-03-2019|01-04-2018*| Period | Disposals [31-03-2019|31-03-2019|31-03-2018*
TANGIBLE ASSETS:
Free hold land 1,608.30 - -l 1,608.30 - - - -l 1,608.30 1,608.30
Factory Building 6,809.87 524.76 15.38| 7,319.24 1,158.41| 236.93 3.27| 1,392.07| 5,927.17 5,651.45
Plant & Machinery 15,207.47| 1,897.13 66.12| 17,038.47 1,189.84| 867.79 478| 2,052.85| 14,985.62| 14,017.63
Furniture & Fixture 241.61 6.12 - 247.73 52.53|  24.86 - 77.38 170.35 189.09
Motor Car 227.71 44.09 - 271.80 60.91| 44.54 - 105.45 166.35 166.80
Scooter, Moped & 1.01 0.65 - 1.66 0.12 0.18 - 0.30 1.36 0.89
Cycle
Laboratory Equipment 703.51 89.51 - 793.02 110.49| 77.52 - 188.01 605.02 593.02
Electrical Installation 1,353.13 180.84 2.28| 1,531.68 388.03| 182.01 0.36 569.68 962.00 965.10
Office Equipment 59.19 27.82 - 87.01 1412|1473 - 28.84 58.16 45.07
Air Conditioner 67.51 3.59 - 71.09 15.15 4.10 - 19.24 51.85 52.36
Computer 36.68 16.54 - 53.22 10.62| 1347 - 24.09 29.14 26.06
Total 26,315.98| 2,791.04 83.79| 29,023.24 3,000.22| 1,466.11 841 4,457.92| 24,565.32 23,315.77
Previous Year 22,431.98] 4,039.01 156.01  26,314.97 1,310.37| 1,727.86 40.18]  2,998.04] 23,316.93] 21,121.61
05. Capital Work In Progress

Gross Block Depreciation 7/ Amortisation Net Block
Description As at dﬁﬁ:mt%r; Adjust- As at As at For the| Adjust- As at As at As at

01-04-2018 yegar ments |31-03-2019|01-04-2018%| Period | ments [31-03-2019|31-03-2019|31-03-2018*
Capital Work-in-Prog-  410.14 754.41|  1,140.40 2415 - - - - 24.15 410.14
ress
Total 410.14 730.26] 1,140.40 24.15 - - - - 24.15 410.14
Previous Year 1,401.00 418.75]  1,409.61 410.14 - - - - 410.14 1,401.00
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06. Investment Property

Gross Block Depreciation 7/ Amortisation Net Block
Description As at dﬁﬁ:mt%r; Sales/ As at As at Forthe| Sales/ As at As at As at
01-04-2018 yegar Disposals |31-03-2019{01-04-2018*| Period | Disposals |31-03-2019|31-03-2019|31-03-2018*
Free Hold Land 1,281.68 - - 1,281.68 - - - - 1,281.68 1,281.68
Total 1,287.68 - - 1,281.68 - - - - 1,281.68 1,281.68|
Previous Year 1,281.68 - - 1,281.68 - - - - 128168 1,281.68
07. Other Intangible Assets
Gross Block Depreciation / Amortisation Net Block
Description As at dﬁg:'t'g; Sales/ As at As at For the| Sales/ As at As at As at
01-04-2018 yegar Disposals |31-03-2019{01-04-2018*| Period | Disposals [31-03-2019|31-03-2019|31-03-2018*
Technical Knowhow 0.20 - - 0.20 - - - - 0.20 0.20
Computer Software 31.56 196.56 - 228.12 8.31| 201.03 - 209.34 18.78 23.25
Total 31.77 196.56 - 228.33 8.31| 201.03 - 209.34 18.98 23.45
Previous Year 25.12 6.65 - 31.77 442 5.05 - 9.48 22.29 20.69

Other Notes to Note No 04 to 07
A Disclosures for Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) ,Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) and Intangible Assets

A1. Refer Note No. 47 for information on property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets pledged as security by the Company.
A2. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not provided for the year
ended 31st March, 2019 is Rs. 76.07 lacs ( 31st March, 2018: Rs. 70.65Lac)

A3. There has been no impairment loss on above assets during the year.

A4.The Companyhasimplemented SAP,anew Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) Systemwhichhas beenimplementedand
ammortised during the year.

A5. * Refer Note No. 53

B Disclosures for Investment Property

B1. The Company has identified and reclassifed Land at West Bengal amounting Rs 1281.67 Lacs. immovable properties as
Investment Properties on the

date of transition i.e. 1st April, 2016 on the basis of currently undermined future use.

B2. No amount of Income / Expenses has been recognised in Profit and Loss in relation to the above Investment Property.
B3. The Company has norestrictions onthe realisability ofitsinvestment properties and no contractual obligations to purchase,
construct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance

and enhancements.

B4.The Companyhaselected optionalexemptionunderIndAS 101 tomeasure Investment Property atprevious GAAP carrying
value.

B5. Since the Land at West Bengal are partial agricultural in natrue, the management has not determined the Fair Market Value
of these properties from the accredited independent valuer

and hence the disclosure requirement of fair value has not been furnished.
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KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes tothe consolidatedfinancial statements forthe yearended 31stMarch, 2019

(Rs. InLacs)
8 FINANCIAL ASSETS:- NON-CURRENT Face No.ofShares/Units Amount
INVESTMENTS Value As at As at As at As at
Rs. 31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018 2019 2018
Equity Instruments - Fully paid up
Unquoted
(A) Others-AtFairValue Through Profitand
Loss
(i) Panchawati Holiday Resorts Ltd. 10 9,400 9,400 - -
Quoted
(a) Associate-At Cost
(i) Kkalpana Plastick Limited 10 2,002,920 2,002,920 241.56 239.04
(b) Others-AtFairValue Through Profitand
Loss
(i) Dena Bank/Bank of Baroda 10 - 14 - -
(ii) Nicco Corporation Ltd. 2 826,194 826,194 - -
Total Investments 241.56 239.04
Less: Provision for diminution in the value of - -
Investments
Net Investments 241.56 239.04
Notes:
Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments and 241.56 239.04
market value thereof
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments - -
Aggregate amount of Impairment in the value of - -
Investments
Total Investment (net) 241.56 239.04
Non Current Current
As at As at As at As at
9. FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS 31stMarch, 31stMarch, 31stMarch, 31stMarch,
2019 2018 2019 2018

(a) Unsecured, considered good
Loan to Related Party - - - -

Total - - - -

There are noloans/ advances to directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with
any other persons or loans/ advances to firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a
director or a member.
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KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

(Rs. In Lacs)
Non Current Current
As at As at As at As at
10. FINANCIALASSETS-OTHERS 31st March, 31stMarch, 31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018 2019 2018
Unsecured, considered good
(a) Security Deposit 144.37 106.85 65.95 101.70
(b) Investment in Term Deposits (with remaining 281.40 163.82 - -
maturity of more than 12 months)
(c) Derivative Instruments
Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts - - - 64.74
Foreign Currency Options - - - 2212
(d) Others - Advances Recoverable from
Employees - - 116.76 82.00
Others - - 24.70 49.21
(e) InterestAccrued - 0.58 38.99 31.17
Total 425.77 271.24 246.40 350.94
As at Asat
11. OTHERNONCURRENTASSETS 31stMarch, 31stMarch,
2019 2018
(a) Capital Advances
(i)  Unsecured-considered good 57.53 546.40
(b) Other Advances
(i)  Unsecured, considered good
- Balance With GovernmentAuthorities - -
(c) PrepaidRent 20.48 31.86
Total 78.01 578.26

There are no advances to directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any
other persons or advances to firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a directorora

member.
(Rs.InLacs)
As at Asat
12. INVENTORIES 31stMarch, 31stMarch,
2019 2018
(As taken valued and certified by the management)
At Cost or NRV whichever is lower
(a) Raw materials
- In Stock 11,729.31 12,492.34
- InTransit 447.53 222.40
(b) Finished goods
- In Stock 3,718.60 2,778.27
(c) Stores and spares- at Cost
- In Stock 330.02 417.86
Total 16,225.47 15,910.87

- Duringtheyearended 31stMarch,2019andyearended 31stMarch, 2018 noamountwas recognised as an expense for
the inventories carried at net realisable value.
- Refer Note No - 47 for details of Carrying amount of Inventories pledged with banks against Working Capital loans.
- Storesand Spares does notinclude machinery spares which can be used only in connection with anitem of Fixed Assets.
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KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes tothe consolidatedfinancial statements forthe yearended 31stMarch, 2019

(Rs.InLacs)
As at As at
31stMarch, 31st March,
2019 2018

13. TRADE RECEIVABLES

(a) Unsecured, considered good
(i) Others 30,765.76  33,979.12
(i)  Related Parties

30,765.76  33,979.12

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 631.86 619.06

Total (Netof Provision) 30,133.90 33,360.06

- There are no debts due by directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any
other persons or debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or
a member.

- The Company has done the Impairment Assesement for Trade Receivables based on expected credit loss model
considering the credit risk as significantely low. The Company has used a simplified approach based on a 12 months
ECL. Aprovisonmatrixhasbeenpreparedbasedonhistorical creditloss experience adjusted asappropiatetoreflectthe
current conditions and supportable forecast of future economic conditons.

(Rs.InLacs)
As at Asat
14. CASH&CASHEQUIVALENTS 31stMarch, 31stMarch,
2019 2018
(a) Balance with banks:
(i) In CurrentAccounts 510.39 349.18
(i) In EEFC Account 310.19 25.03
(i) In Deposit with Original Maturity of less than 3 months 371.35 58.00
(b) Cash in hand (As certified by the management) 33.14 26.38
(c) Other Bank Balance
(i)  Unpaid Dividend account 22.21 24.58
(i) Deposits with more than 3 months initial maturity 636.56 1,214.33
Total 1,883.84 1,697.49
(Rs.InLacs)
As at Asat
15. OTHERCURRENTASSETS 31stMarch, 31stMarch,
2019 2018
(a) Other Advances
Unsecured, considered good
(i) Balances with government departments 4,918.22 5,731.22
(i) Advance to Suppliers 67.96 100.87
(b) Prepaid Expenses 241.42 212.27
(c) Prepaid Rent 0.04 0.05
Total Other Current Assets 5,227.65 6,044.41
Less: Total Provision for Doubtful Advances/ Debts
Total (Netof Provision) 5,227.65 6,044.41

There are no advances to directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any
other persons or advances to firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a directorora
member.
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KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

16. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Refer Statement of Changes in Equity)

Authorised Shares

153,000,000 (Previous Year: 153,000,000) Shares of Rs. 2 each

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up

940,72,930 (Previous Year: 940,72,930) Equity Shares of Rs.2 each

(Rs.InLacs)

As at As at
31stMarch, 31stMarch,

2019 2018
3,060.00 3,060.00
3,060.00 3,060.00
1,881.46 1,881.46
1,881.46 1,881.46

(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March 2018
No. of Amount |No. of Shares| Amount
Shares |[(Rs. In Lacs) (Rs. In Lacs)
Equity Sharesoutstandingatthe beginningoftheyear 94,072,930 1881.4586| 94,072,930.00 1,881.46
Equity Shares issued during the year - - - -
Equity Shares bought back during the year - - - -
Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the year 94,072,930 1,881.46| 94,072,930.00 1,881.46

(b) Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares

The Company has issued only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 2 per share. Each equity shareholder
is entitled to one vote per share. The Company had declared and paid dividends in Indian rupee.
In event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts in propotion of their shareholding.

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

SI. Name of the Shareholders As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March, 2018
No. No. of % of No. of Shares| % of Holding
Shares held| Holding held

1 |Sri Ram Financial Consultants Pvt Ltd - - 44,785,170.00 47.61

2 |Shyam Baba Trexim Pvt Ltd - - 15,551,680.00 16.53

3 [Almond PolyTraders Pvt Ltd 7,750,000 8.24 7,750,000.00 8.24

4 |Inbara holdings Pvt Ltd. - - 7,250,000.00 7.71

5 |Bbigplas Poly Pvt Ltd. 69,641,685 74.03 - -

Note - During the FY 2018-19 Sri Ram Financial Consultants Pvt Ltd, Shyam Baba Trexim Pvt Ltd and Inbara holdings
Pvt Ltd. has been merged in Bbigplas Poly Pvt Ltd vide scheme of amalgamation dated 18th December 2018 which is

binding with effect from 1st April '2018.

(d) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares alloted as fully paidup pursuant to contract without payment being
received in cash and shares bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date: Nil

17. OTHEREQUITY (Refer Statement of Changesin Equity)

(a) Security Premium

(Rs. In Lacs)

This reserves are used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve would be utilized in accordance with the

provisons of the Act.

As per Last Financial Statement
Add:Duringtheyear

(b) CapitalReserveand AmalgamationReserve

As per Last Financial Statement
Add:Duringtheyear

As at As at
31stMarch, 31st March,
2019 2018
5,322.45 5,322.45
5,322.45 5,322.45
As at As at
31stMarch, 31st March,
2019 2018
852.96 852.96
852.96 852.96
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KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

(c) GeneralReserve

As per Last Financial Statement
Add: During the year

(d) RetainedEarnings

As per Last Financial Statement
Less: Equity Dividend

Less: Corporate Dividend Tax
Add:Duringtheyear

(e) OtherComprehensivelncome

As per Last Financial Statement
Add:Duringtheyear

TotalReserves(at+b+c+d+e+f)

18. LONGTERMBORROWINGS

Secured
(a) Term Loans
| From Banks
(i) Rupeeloan
Il From Others
(i) FromBanks-Vehicle Loan

Total (Net) (a)
Unsecured
(b) Long term loan

-Related Party

Total (Net) (b)
Grand Total(Net) (a+b)

* Refer Note No.23
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(Rs.InLacs)
As at As at
31stMarch, 31st March,
2019 2018

3,400.00 3,400.00

3,400.00 3,400.00

As at As at
31stMarch, 31st March,
2019 2018
18,022.70 15,978.32
(225.78) -
(45.96) -

2,603.02 2,044.38

20,353.98 18,022.70

As at As at
31stMarch, 31st March,
2019 2018
(21.15) (2.96)
(16.58) (18.18)
(37.73) (21.15)
29.891.67 27,576.96
(Rs.InLacs)
Non Current Current *
As at As at As at As at
31st March, 31stMarch, 31stMarch, 31st March,
2019 2018 2019 2018

3022.36286 4626.23047 1,626.58 1,501.58

30.3989855 82.0022932 28.08 -

3,052.76 4,708.23 1,654.66 1,501.58

1977.097892 1780.269282 - -

1,977.10 1.780.27

5,029.86 6.488.50 1,654.66 1,501.58




KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

Notestothe consolidated financial statements forthe yearended 31stMarch,2019
Details of terms of repayment of long term borrowings

Longterm borrowings
Secured

a) Term Loans
| From Banks
(i) Rupee Loan-IDFC

(ii) Rupee Loan-HDFC

(iii) Rupee Loan-SBI

(iv) Rupee Loan-HDFC

Il From Others
(i) Vehicle Loan-

Unsecured
(b) Longtermloan/deposits
RELATED PARTY

Bbigplas PolyPvt. Ltd.

Terms of Repayment

1 Year moratorium from the date of 1st
disbursement & thereafter payable in 20
equal quarterly installments.

Repayable in 15 equal quarterly
installments starting from 30th june 2017.

Will start after completing moratorium
periodof2years. 24 quarterlyinstallment
starting from 31st December 2016 in a
structured way .

Repayable in 20 equal quarterly
installments after 12 months of
moratoriumfromthe date offirstdisbursal.
Repayments to start from 31st March
2018 till 31st December 2022.

60 equal monthly
instalment

Repayable on Demand
after 30th March 2022

Details of terms of security for long term borrowings

Maturity Interest Rate Loan Taken
Date Date

13th Feb 10.20% 01st April

2021 2017
31st Dec 9.00% 24th March
2020 2017
31st Dec 11.50% 31st Dec
2021 2014
31st Dec 9.75% 06th Jan
2022 2017

4.00%

a) Rupee Loan from SBI, HDFC and IDFC are secured by 1st pari passu charge by way of equitable mortgage over all
present and future movable and immovable properties located at Silvasa, Surangi, Daman and Bhasa Units and movable
fixed assets at Dhulagarh Unitand 2nd pari passu charge by way of hypothecation over entire current assets, stock and
book debts of the company both present and future.

b) The unsecured loan from Promoter group Comapnies namely Sri Ram Financial Consultants Pvt Ltd, Shyambaba Trexim
PvtLtd, Krishna Commodeals PvtLtd and Inbara holdings Pvt Ltd, all of which merged with Bbigplas Poly PvtLtd
vide NCLT order dated 18th December, 2018 (filed with ROC on 4th Feb 2019), having effect from 1st April, 2018, is
subordinated to State Bank of India for their Term Loan outstanding of INR2123.69 Lacs as on 31.03.2019.

c) Veichle Loan are secured by hypothecation against Motor Car.
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KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

19. LONGTERMPROVISIONS

(a) Employee benefits
(i) Gratutiy (Refer Note No. 39(b))

Total

20. DEFERRED TAXLIABILITIES (NET)

(a) Liabilities :
Depreciation and ammortization expenses
Items underfinancial assets and financial liabilities giving temporary differences
Total (a)

(b) Assets :
Items underfinancial assets and financial liabilities giving temporary differences
Provision for doubtful debts & obsolescence
MAT Credit Entitlement
Total (b)

Net Liability (a-b)

Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilites (Net):

Opening balance as at the beginning of the Year
Tax (benefit) / expense during the period recognised in profit or loss
MAT Credit Entitlement

Taximpactonitemsof Other Comprehensiveincomethatwillnotbe classifiedto

profit & loss
Closingbalanceasattheendofthe Year

21. SHORTTERMBORROWINGS

Secured
(a) Loans repayable on demand
Cash credits from bank *
Working Capital Demand Loan from Bank

(b) Other Loans and advances
Buyer'screditfrombank*

Total

(Rs.InLacs)
Asat Asat
31stMarch, 31stMarch,
2019 2018
163.88 93.98
163.88 93.98
(Rs.InLacs)
As at As at
31stMarch, 31stMarch,
2019 2018
3,104.58 2,846.93
322.43 387.89
3,427.00 3,234.82
41.85 18.57
220.80 215.94
247.00 581.84
509.65 816.35
2,917.35 2,418.47
As at As at
31stMarch, 31stMarch,
2019 2018
2,418.47 2,445.97
172.82 563.97
334.84 (581.84)
(8.78) (9.62)
2,917.35 2,418.47
(Rs.InLacs)
As at As at
31stMarch, 31stMarch,
2019 2018
2,527.95 12,090.36
4,500.00 -
- 2,350.74
7,027.95 14,441.10

* These Loans are repayable on demand and carries interest as applicable from time to time.

* Working Capitalfacilities (fundbasedandnonfundbasedlimits)are secured by 1st paripassucharge byway ofequitable
mortgage over property located at D-403, Dharam Place, CHS Limited, Shantivan, Borivalli (E), Mumbai-400066 and by
way of hypothecation over entire current assets, stock and trade receivables of the company both present and future
and 2nd pari passu charge by way of equitable mortgage over all present and future movable andimmovable properties
located at Silvasa, Surangi, Daman and Bhasa Units and movable fixed assets at Dhulagarh Unit.
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Notestothe consolidated financial statements forthe yearended 31stMarch,2019

(Rs.InLacs)
As at As at
22. TRADE PAYABLES 31stMarch, 31stMarch,
2019 2018
(@) Micro & Small Enterprises 314.32 -
(b) Others
Acceptances secured * 26,834.51 22,781.90

Sundry Creditors for goods
Sundry Creditors forexpenses
Total

928.39 2,803.20
942.55 1,248.90
29,019.77 _ 26,834.00

* Secured by way of hypothecation of stocks and book debts in favor of the Company's banker.
Micro enterprises and Small enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 have
been determined based on the confirmations received in response to intimation in this regard sent to the suppliers.
Interestinterms of Section 16 of Micro, Smalland Medium Enterprises DevelopmentAct, 2006 due and remainingunpaid

asatMarch 31,2019—-Rs 2.53 lacs.

As at Asat
23. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES-OTHER 31stMarch, 31stMarch,
2019 2018
(a) Currentmaturities of long-term debts (Refer Note No.18) 1,654.66 1,501.58
(b) Interestpayable onUnsecuredLoan 233.35 253.06
(c) Interestaccrued but notdue onborrowings 25.67 -
(d) Unpaiddividends # 22.21 24.59
(e) Derivative Instruments
(i)  ForeignExchange Forward Contracts 101.58 -
(i)  ForeignCurrency Options 5.46 -

(f) Others
(i)  Creditors for Capital Goods

210.91 296.91
970.76 576.97

(i)  Other Liability

Total 3,224.59

2,653.11

# There is no amount due & outstanding to be credited to the Investor Education & Protection Fund.

(Rs.InLacs)
As at Asat
24, OTHERCURRENTLIABILITIES 31stMarch, 31stMarch,
2019 2018
(a) Advance payments fromcustomers 357.83 386.39
(b) Other payables
(i) Statutory dues 116.31 74.75
(iiy Others - 0.62
Total 474.14 461.75
As at Asat
25. SHORTTERMPROVISIONS 31stMarch, 31stMarch,
2019 2018
(a) Employee benefits
Leaveencashment(unfunded) 126.56 88.96
Total 126.56 88.96
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KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

26. CURRENT TAXLIABILITIES

Income Tax (Net of Payments)

27.|REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(a) Sale of Products

(i) Polyethylene
(i)  Poly Vinyl Chloride
(iii) Others

(c) Sale of Services
(i) CommissionReceived (Refer Note below:-)
Commission relates to sale of Products in which the Company Acts as an agentin
the transaction ratherthan as a Princial in assessing the Companies role to be that
of an agent rather than as a principal, the management considered the following

factors:-

(Rs.InLacs)
Asat Asat
31stMarch, 31stMarch,
2019 2018
666.61 613.98
666.61 613.98
(Rs.InLacs)
FortheYear FortheYear
2018-19 2017-18
122,807.20 88,372.83
48,310.54 43,326.23
27,134.98 43,367.25
- 512.08

a) The Company does not take tiltle to the goods and has no responsibility in respect of goods sold.

b) The Company cannot vary the selling prices set by the supplier.
¢) Credit risk is born by the supplier.

Total

28. OTHER INCOME

(a) Interest income
(b) Exchange difference other than considered as finance cost (net)
(c) Export Incentive
(d) Unwinding of Interest on security deposit
(e) Fair Value gain or (losses) on derivatives
(f) Insurance Claim Received
(g) Other Miscelleaneous Income

Total

29. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Inventory at the begining of the year
Add: Purchases during the year

Add: Stock In Transit

Less: Raw Material at the end of the Year
Total Cost of Material Consumed

Details of Raw Material Consumed

LLDPE/ LDPE
PVC Resin
Plastic Scrap
Other items
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198,252.72  175,578.38
FortheYear FortheYear
2018-19 2017-18
75.89 137.78
953.55 400.67
98.99 19.63
5.96 4.62
(107.04) 86.86
34.38 97.37
164.88 72.62
1,226.63 819.56
(Rs. InLacs)
FortheYear FortheYear
2018-19 2017-18
12,714.74 14,437.00
172,146.69 148,482.18
12,176.85 12,714.74
172,684.58  150,204.44
99,244.99 69,469.99
32,952.14 27,859.59
2,582.33 4,942.43
37,905.12 47,932.44
172,684.58  150,204.44




31.

32.

33.

KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

Notestothe consolidated financial statements fortheyearen

30. CHANGESININVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS & STOCKINTRADE

(a) Stocks at the beginning of the year
Finished goods

(b) Less: Stocks at the end of the year
Finished goods

Total

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

(a) Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Gratuity
(b) Contribution to Provident and other funds
(c) Workmen and staff welfare expenses

Total
FINANCE COSTS

(a) Interest expense

(i) ToBanks

(i) ToOthers
(b) Other borrowing costs
(c) Unwinding of Interest

Total

OTHER EXPENSES

Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts.
Power & Fuel

Repair & Maintenance - Building
Repair & Maintenance - Machinery

g) Insurance Charges
h) Rates & Taxes

i) Payments to Auditors (Refer Note (i) below)

(j) Directors' Fees

k) Bad debts / Advances Written off

I) Loss on sale of fixed assets

m) Selling & Distribution Expenses

n) Net (gain)/loss on Fair value of Financial Assets through Profit & Loss
0) Provision for doubtful debts

p) CSR expenses (Refer Note No. 38)

q) Miscellaneous expenses

(
(
(
(
(
(
(

Total

Refer Note :- 1

Auditors' remuneration and expenses
Audit fees

Tax audit fees

Fees for other services

ded31stMarch,2019

(Rs.InLacs)
FortheYear FortheYear
2018-19 2017-18
2,778.27 2,671.99
3,718.60 2,778.27
(940.33) (106.28)
(Rs.InLacs)
FortheYear FortheYear
2018-19 2017-18
4,395.17 2,649.30
66.23 53.61
124.98 96.82
4,586.38 2,799.73
FortheYear FortheYear
2018-19 2017-18
4,050.40 3,847.47
119.17 371.83
1,628.89 1,130.81
195.93 176.51
5,994.39 5,526.62
(Rs.InLacs)
FortheYear FortheYear
2018-19 2017-18
221.08 113.55
2,941.93 2,261.04
699.70 613.67
148.22 91.23
676.26 329.01
238.84 158.43
202.33 173.33
103.65 44.84
3.85 6.10
3.70 3.20
3.44 27.57
21.12 10.94
4,764.48 4,460.29
- 0.01
12.81 (376.31)
83.08 135.50
1,262.64 1,137.50
11,387.13 9,189.91
3.20 3.20
0.65 0.65
- 2.25
3.85 6.10

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19157



KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

34. IncomeTax

I Incometaxrelatedtoitems charged orcredited directly to profitorloss during

the year:

(a) Statement of profit andloss

(i) Current Income Tax
(i) Mat Credit Entitlement
(iii) Deferred Taxexpense/ (benefit)

(b) Other Comprehensive Income

(i) Deferred Tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:
- Netexpense/(benefit) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Total (a+b)

(Rs.InLacs)
FortheYear FortheYear
2018-19 2017-18

1,330.95  688.62
(2.53) -
172.82 563.97

1,501.24 1,252.59

8.78 9.62

8.78 9.62

1,510.02 1,262.22

I Reconciliation oftax expense andthe accounting profitmultiplied by India’s domestic taxratefor31st March,

2019 and 31st March,2018:
Accounting profit before income tax as per Ind AS
AtIncome tax rate of 34.944% (31st March, 2018: 34.608%)

Tax effect of items that are not deductible for tax purpose

Change inRate Impact

Taxeffect of deductions under Chapter VIA of Income TaxAct, 1961
Differential TaxImpactin Subsidiary and Associates

Tax effect of loss from share of subsidiary

Atthe effective income tax rate of 36.40% (31st March 2018: 37.95%)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

Difference

35. OtherComprehensivelncome

i Items that will not be classified to profit and loss
- Remeasurement gain/ (losses) on defined benefit plans
Balance as at year beginning
Add: Created during the year
Less: Adjustments
Balanceasatyearend

i Income tax relating toitems that will notbe
classified to profit and loss
- Remeasurement gain/ (losses) on defined benefit plans
Balance as at year beginning
Add: Created during the year
Less: Adjustments
Balanceasatyearend

Total
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4,102.58  3,279.51
1,433.60 1,134.97

47.02 59.00
28.87 -
(16.67) (9.95)
(0.35) (1.50)

- 60.44

1,492.47  1,242.97

e

1,492.47 1,242.97

0.00 (0.00)

FortheYear FortheYear
2018-19 2017-18

(27.81 (4.53)
(2.45) (23.27)
(25.36) (27.81)
9.62 1.57

- 8.05

0.85 -
8.78 9.62
(16.58) (18.18)
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OTHER CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Rs. In Lacs)
36 Contingent liabilities & Commitments
As at As at
A Not Provided for:- 31st March, 31stMarch,
2019 2018
(@) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
- Demand raised by following authorities in dispute:
(i) Income tax matters 338.77 338.77
B Bank Gurantee 807.88 658.44
C Capital Commitments
Estimated Value of contracts in Capital account remaining to be excecuted and 76.07 70.65
not provided for (Net of advances)
D Other Commitments
Letter of Credit 2,572.16  23,185.05

37 DETAILS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE AND GUARANTEE GIVEN COVERED U/S 186(4) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

(@) Loan Given

There is no loan given during the year.
(b) Investment Made

There are no investments by the Group other than those stated under Note No. 8 in the financial statements.
(c) Securities Given

There is no security given during the year.

38 DISCLOSURE ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENSES

(@) Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year in pursuance to the provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder : Rs. 73.08 lacs (PY Rs. 72 lacs).

(b) Amount unspent as at 31.3.2019 Rs. Nil (P.Y 31.3.2018 Rs. Nil)

(c) Amountspentduringtheyear2018-19andshown under Other Expensesinthe Statementof Profitand Loss (Refer Note

No. 33):
(Rs.InLacs)
As at Asat
Sl. Particulars 31st March 31st March
No. 2019 2018
(i) Spentduringtheyear 83.08 135.50
(i) YettoSpend - -
Total 83.08 135.50
39 DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY IND AS 19, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(Rs.InLacs)
(a) Definedcontributionplans: As at As at
31st March 31st March
2019 2018
Contribution to defined contribution plan, recognised as expense for the year as under:
(i) Employer's contributionto Government Provident Fund, Pension Fund & ESI 63.70 53.04
Total 63.70 53.04
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(b) Defined benefit plan:

Gratuity

The Employee's Gratuity Fund Scheme, which is defined benefit plan, is managed by Trust maintained with Life Insurance
Corporation of India. The liabilities with respect to Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on projected unit
credit method on the balance sheet date, based upon which the Group contributes to the Group Gratuity Scheme. The
difference, if any, between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of employees at the year end and the balance of funds
with Life Insurance Corporation of India, is provided for as assets/ (liability) in the books. Actuarial gains/ (losses) for
defined benefit plans are recognised in fulland are immediately taken to the statement of profitand loss and Other
Comprehensive Income accordingly as per Acturial Valuation Report.. The Gratuity Plan provides alump sum payment
tovested employees atretirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of anamount equivalentto 15to
30days'salary foreach completed yearofservice . Vesting occurs upon completion of five continuous years of servicein
accordance with Indian law. The gratuity fund is separately administered by a Gratuity Fund Trust.

Gratuity (Funded)
| Following information are based onreport of actuary foremployee benefit expenses As at As at
31st March 31st March
2019 2018
(A) Change in present value of the obligation during the year
(1) Present value of obligation at year beginning 219.85 172.44
(2) Current service cost 37.54 24.75
(3) Interest cost 16.79 12.73
(4) Benefits paid (3.70) (16.40)
(5) Actuarial(gain)/lossarising fromchangesindemographicassumptions - -
(6) Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from changes in financial assumptions 5.10 (4.48)
(7) Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from changes in experience adjustments 18.05 30.81
(8) Present value of obligation at year end 293.63 219.85
(B) Change in fair value of plan assets during the year
(1) Fair value of plan assets at year beginning 125.87 118.04
(2) Interest income on plan assets 9.69 9.15
(3) Expected return on plan assets other than interest income (2.21) (1.48)
(4) Contribution made by the Employer * 0.10 16.56
(5) Benefits paid (3.70)  (16.40)
(6) Fairvalue of planassets atyearend 129.75 125.87
(C) Reconciliation of obligation and fair value of assets
(1) Present value of the obligation at year end 293.63 219.85
(2) Fair value of plan assets at year end 129.75 125.87
(3) Funded status [surplus / (deficit)] (163.88) (93.98)
(D) Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
(1) Current service cost 37.54 24.75
(2) Interest cost 16.79 12.73
(3) Interest income on plan assets (9.69) (9.15)
Net cost recognised in Profit or Loss 44.64 28.33
(E) Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
(1) Expected return on plan assets other than interest income 2.21 1.48
(2) Actuarial (gain)/lossarisingfrom changesindemographicassumptions - -
(3) Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from changes in financial assumptions 5.10 (4.48)
(4) Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from changes in experience adjustments 18.05 30.81
Net (gain)/ loss recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 25.36 27.81
(F) Net Defined benefit liability/(Asset) Reconciliation
(1) Net Defined benefit liability/(Asset) at the beginning of the year 93.98 54 .41
(2) Defined benefit cost included in P/L 44.64 28.33
(3) Total remeasurement included in OCI 25.36 27.81
(4) Employers contribution* (0.10) (16.56)
Net Defined benefit liability/(Asset) at the end of the year 163.88 93.98

*Note - As per acturial valuation report contribution made by employeris Rs. 70,000. The difference of Rs. 60,000 is
due to the refund pertaining to last financial year adjusted in current financial year by Life Insurance Corporation of
India.
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Il Maturity profile of defined benefit obligations:

Year 1 29.52 15.55
Year 2 30.48 72.57
Year 3 43.95 120.18
Year 4 19.60 64.41
Year 5 15.21 24.76
Year 6 53.78 82.98
Year 7 23.03 117.62
Year 8 20.41 85.74
Year 9 18.72 34.12
Year 10 25.64 43.53
Above 10 398.08 -

years

Total expected payments 678.44 661.46

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting periodis 5.17
Years
(31st March,2018: 5.52 years).

The best estimate contribution for the company during the next year would be Rs 47.55lacs
(31st March,2018: Rs. 55.61lacs).

Amountpayable upondiscontinouance ofallemploymentis INR 339.97 lacs.
(31st March,2018: Rs. 263.82lacs).

(Rs.InLacs)

Il Experience Adjustments on PresentValue of DBO and Plan Assets As at As at
31st March 31st March

2019 2018
(Gain)/Loss on Plan Liabilities 18.05 30.81
% of Opening Plan Liabilities 8.21% 17.87%
(Gain)/Loss on Plan Assets 2.21 1.48
% of Opening Plan Assets 1.75% 1.25%

IV Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions considered for defined benefit obligation (Gratuity):

Sensitivity analysis presented below represents expected change in present value of defined benefit obligation based
onreasonably possible changesinthe assumptions occurring atthe yearend.

As at Asat
31st March 31st March

2019 2018
Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) 293.63 219.85
(1) One percentage increase in discount rate 271.41 203.04
(2) One percentage decrease in discount rate 319.31 239.31
(3) One percentage increase in rate of salary escalation 319.16 238.79
(4) One percentage decrease in rate of salary escalation 270.99 203.06
(5) One percentage increase in rate of withdrawl rate 296.10 222.09
(6) One percentage decrease in rate of withdrawl rate 290.74 217.28
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As at Asat
31st March 31st March
2019 2018
V  Actuarial Assumptions
(1) Discountrate 7.70% 7.75%
(2) Mortality Rate IALM (2006-08) Table
(3) SalaryEsclation-First5years 6%p.a 6% p.a
(4) Salary Esclation-After5years 6%p.a 6% p.a
(5) Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets 7.70% 7.75%
(6) Disability Rate 5% of 5% of
Mortality =~ Mortality
Rate Rate
(7) RetirementAge 60years 60 years
(8) Awverage Future Service 21.66 21.97
(9) Withdrawal rates , based on age: (per annum)
Upto25years 8.00% 8.00%
26-30years 7.00% 7.00%
31-35years 6.00% 6.00%
36-40years 5.00% 5.00%
41-45years 4.00% 4.00%
46-50years 3.00% 3.00%
51-55years 2.00% 2.00%
Above56years 1.00% 1.00%
VI Weighted average Asset allocation
(as percentage of total planassets)
(1) Equities - -
(2) Bonds - -
(3) Gilts - -
(4) InsurancePolicies 100% 100%
Total 100% 100%

40 DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY IND AS 108, OPERATING SEGMENTS

(a) Identification of Operating Segments:
The Compnay Operate in a Single Reportable Operating Segment i.e. manufacturing and sale of Poly Vinyl Chloride,
Polyethylene, Antifab and EP Compound which have similar risk and returns and are of similar nature.
No otheroperating segments have been aggregated toformthe above reportable operating segments as perthe criteria
specified in the IndAS.

(b) Business Segment wise revenue/results/assets/liabilities
Since there is Single Reportable Operating Segment hence disclosure of Operating Segment wise Assets, Liabilities,
Revenue and Results are notapplicable.

(Rs. In Lacs)
(c) Geographical Information As at As at
31st March 31st March
2019 2018
(i) Segment revenue by location of Customers:
India 168,566.43 143,169.19
Overseas 29.686.29 32,409.19
Total 198,252.72 175,578.38
(i) Segment Assets by location
India
East 7,464.26 6,805.65
West 18,086.37 17,579.37
Others 315.35 235.88
Overseas - -
Total 25,865.98 24,620.90

(d) The Group does nothave material amount of tangible, intangible assets and non current operating assets located outside India.
(e) Product wise revenue from external customers has been detailed in Note No 27.
(f) Revenue from three customersis INR 21,247.51 (P.Y Rs. 19,471.97) Lacs which is more than 10% of the total revene of the

Group.
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41 DISCLOSURE ON RELATED PARTYTRANSACTIONS

(A) Related parties and their relationship with the Group :

(i)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

(B)

Name of the Related Party Relationship with the Group

Mr. Narrindra Suranna CEO, Chairman and Managing Director and Promoter (KMP)
Mr. Rajesh Kothari Whole Time Director (KMP)

Dr.P.R.Mukherjee Whole Time Director (KMP)

Mr.1.C Dakalia Chief Financial Officer (KMP)

Ms. Tanvi Panday Company Secretary (KMP)

Mrs. TaraDevi Surana Promoter

Mr. Surendra Kumar Surana Promoter

Mr. DevKrishna Surana Promoter & Director

Relative of Key Management Personnel (KMP)

of the Group

Name ofthe Relative Relationship with KMP

Mrs. TaraDevi Surana Mother of Chairman and Managing Director
Mrs. SarlaDevi Surana Wife of Chairman and Managing Director
Mr. Surendra Kumar Surana Brother of Chairman and Managing Director
Mr. DevKrishna Surana Son of Chairman and Managing Director
Bbigplas Poly Pvt Ltd (refer note below) Promoter and Holding Company

Enterprises over which key management personnel are able to
exercise significant influence with whom there were transactions
during the Financial Year 2018-19

SriRamFinancial Consultants PvtLtd. Enterprises over which key management personnel are able to
Shyambaba Trexim Pvt Ltd. exercise significant influence with whom there were transactions
Inbara Holdings Pvt Ltd during the Financial Year 2017-18

Krishna Commodeals Pvt. Ltd. (refer note below)

Note-Duringthe FY 2018-19Kkalpanahadalsoenteredintotransactionwith SriRam Financial Consultants PvtLtd,
Shyambaba Trexim PvtLtd, Krishna Commodeals PvtLtd and Inbara holdings Pvt Ltd (Promoters of the Company)
all of which merged with Bbigplas Poly Pvt Ltd vide NCLT order dated 18th December, 2018 (filed with ROC on 4th
Feb 2019), having effect from 1st April, 2018.

Disclosure oftransactions with Related Parties as on 31.03.2019 (Rs. InLacs)

Nature of transactions Ref. to Note (A) above Asat As at

Remunerationto KMP 31st March 31st March
2019 2018

Mr Narrindra Surana (i) 70.00 42.00

Mr Rajesh Kothari (i) 40.00 40.00

Mr P.R. Mukherjee (i) 19.00 18.00

Mr I.C. Dakalia (i) 22.96 20.91

Ms Tanvi Panday* (i) 7.23 5.50

Mr.A.B Chakraborty ** - 1.93

159.19 128.33

* Effective date of joining 1st July 2017. This remuneration is proportionate CTC for period of her service.
** Former Company Secretary of Kkalpana Industries (India) Ltd. resigned at 1st June 2017.

Interest Expenses
Bbigplas Poly Pvt Ltd (i)
Sri Ram Financial Consultants Pvt Ltd. (iv) 74.75
Shyambaba Trexim Pvt Ltd. (iv) 35.67
(iv)
(iv)

119.17

Krishna Commodeals Pvt. Ltd. 4.89
Inbara Holdings Pvt Ltd 4.03
119.17 119.34

Rent
Sri Ram Financial Consultants Pvt Ltd. (iv) 76.56 76.56
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(Rs. In Lacs)
Ref.toNote (A)above As at As at
31st March 31st March
2019 2018

Loan Taken & Outstanding at year End
Bbigplas PolyPvt Ltd* (iii) 1,977.10 -
SriRam Financial Consultants PvtLtd.* (iv) - 1,124.05
Shyambaba Trexim PvtLtd.* (iv) - 524.98
KrishnaCommodeals Pvt. Ltd.* (iv) - 71.87
Inbara HoldingsPvt Ltd* (iv) - 59.37
*(Note- After giving effect of IND AS)
Interest Payable
BbigplasPoly PvtLtd (iii) 233.35 253.06

42 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Thefairvalue ofthefinancial assets andliabilities areincluded atthe amountatwhich theinstrument couldbe exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

(1) Fairvalue of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables , other current
liabilities, short-term loans from banks and other financial institutions approximate their carrying amounts largely due
to the short term maturities of these instruments.

(2) Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rate are evaluated by the Group based on parameter such as
interest rates and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into
account for the expected losses of these receivables.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fairvalue of financial instruments by valuation
technique.
Level 1 : Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 : Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effects on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly orindirectly.
Level 3: Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effects on the recorded fair value that are notbased on
observable market data.

The following tables provides classification of financial instruments and the fair value hierarchy of the Group's
assets and liabilities.

(a) Disclosure for the year ended 31st March, 2019
Fair Value heirarchy

Carrying FairValue Level1 Level2 Level 3
Value
(1) Financial Assets
Financial Assets at
amortised cost
Trade Receivables 30,133.90 30,133.90 - - 30,133.90
Loans - - - - -
Other Financial assets 672.17 672.17 - - 67217
excluding derivative financial
instruments
Cash & cash equivalents 1,883.83  1,883.83 - - 1,883.83
32,689.90 32,689.90 - - 32,689.90
Assets for which fair
values are disclosed
Investment Property (Refer - - - - -
Note No. 6 (b))
Total 32,689.90 32,689.90 - - 32,689.90

164 ' ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19



2

KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notestothe consolidated financial statements forthe yearended 31stMarch,2019

Fair Value heirarchy

Carrying FairValue Level1 Level 2 Level 3
Value
Financial Liability
Financial Liabilities at
amortised cost
Borrowings from Banks and 13,712.47 13,712.47 13,712.47
Financial Institutions
Trade Payables 29,019.77 29,019.77 29,019.77
Other Financial liabilities 1,462.90 1,462.90 1,462.90
excluding derivative financial
instruments
Total 44,195.14 44,195.14 - - 44,195.14
Financial Liability at fair
valuethroughprofitorloss
Derivative financial 107.04 107.04 - 107.04 -
instruments
Total 44,302.17 44,302.17 - 107.04 44,195.14

(b) Disclosure for the year ended 31st March, 2018

M

(2)

Carrying FairValue
Value

Financial Assets
Financial Assets at
amortised cost
Trade Receivables 33,360.06 33,360.06
Loans - -
Other Financial assets 535.32 535.32
excluding derivative financial
instruments
Cash & cash equivalents 1,697.51 1,697.51

35,592.89  35,592.89
Financial Asset at fair
value throughprofitorloss
Derivative financial 86.86 86.86
instruments

86.86 86.86

Assetsforwhichfair
values are disclosed
Investment Property - -
(Refer Note No. 6 (b))
Total 35,679.75 35,679.75
Financial Liability

Financial Liabilities at
amortised cost

Borrowings from Banks and
Financial Institutions
Trade Payables

22,431.18 22,431.18

26,834.00 26,834.00

Other Financial liabilities 1,151.54 1,151.54
excludingderivativefinancial

instruments

Total 50,416.71 _ 50,416.71

Fair Value heirarchy
Level1 Level 2 Level 3

33,360.06

535.32

1,697.51

35,592.89

- 86.86 -

- 86.86 -

- 86.86  35,592.89

22,431.18

26,834.00
1,151.54

50,416.71

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19/165



KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes tothe consolidated financial statements forthe yearended 31stMarch, 2019

(c) Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation:

Financial Asset/ Liability Valuation Technique Significant
unobservable input
Trade Receivables ECL Realisation pattern or
pastexperience
Loans DCF usingEIR method Discount rate
Other Financial assets excluding derivative DCF usingEIR method Discount rate
financial instruments
Borrowings from banks and financial DCF usingEIR method Discount rate
institutions

43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(@)

The Group’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables
and advances from customers. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations, projects
underimplementationandtoprovide guaranteestosupportits operations. The Group’s principal financial assetsinclude
Investment, loans and advances, trade and other receivables and cash and bank balances that derive directly from its
operations.

The Groupisexposedtomarketrisk, creditriskandliquidity risk. The Group's financial risk managementis anintegral part
of how to planand execute its business strategies. The Group's financial risk management policy is set by the Managing
Board.

Allderivative activities forrisk management purposes are carried out by specialistteams that have the appropriate skills,
experience and supervision. Itis the Group’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes to be undertaken.
The Board of Directors reviews and finalises policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: Interest rate risk, Currency risk and Commodity price risk.
Financial instruments affected by market risk include investments and deposits, foreign currency receivables, payables,
loans and borrowings and derivative financial instruments.

The Group manages market risk through a treasury department, which evaluates and exercises independent control over
the entire process of market risk management. The treasury department recommends risk management objectives and
policies, whichare approved by Senior Management and the Audit Committee. The activities of this departmentinclude
managementof cashresources, implementing hedging strategies forforeign currency exposures, borrowing strategies
and ensuring compliance with market risk limits and policies.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interestrate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. In order to optimize the Group's position with regard to interest income and interest
expenses tomanage the interestrate risk, treasury performs a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management
by balancing the proportion of fixed rate and floating rate financial instruments in its total portfolio.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on the unhedged portion

ofloansandborrowings. Withall othervariables held constant, the Group’s profitbefore taxis affected through theimpact
on floating rate borrowings, asfollows:

2018-19  2017-18
(+/-)50 (+/-)50
Basis Points Basis Points

Effect on profit before tax due to interest rate sensitivity 92.98 91.43

(i) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes
inforeign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the
Group’s operatingandfinancingactivities. The Group managesits foreign currencyrisk by hedging transactionsthatare
expected to realise infuture.
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Foreign Currency Exposure

| Hedged
Forward contracts for uUsbD
Imports
EURO
Forward contracts for uUsbD
Exports

Option contracts for Exports USD

Il Not hedged
Trade receivables usbD
EURO
Trade payables uUsD
EURO
Foreign currency loan usbD

availed under buyers' credit

Foreign Currency Sensitivity

KKALPANA INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notestothe consolidated financial statements forthe yearended 31stMarch,2019

As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

Foreign Functional
Currency Currency
(Rs.in
Lacs)

Foreign  Functional
Currency  Currency
(Rs.in
Lacs)

10,900,940 7,540.18
155,925 121.15

1,500,000 1,037.55

400,000 276.68

4,182,895 2,893.31
1,572,616 1,221.92

1,756,303 1,214.83
19,280 14.98

5,550,000 3,609.72

4,000,000 2,601.60

3,446,685 2,241.72
2,826,250 2,278.52

2,780,438 1,808.40
405,075 326.57

3,615,852 2,350.74

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to areasonably possible change in exchange rates, with all other
variables held constant. The impact on the Group’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of unhedged

monetary assets and liabilities.

Effect on profit before tax
usD
Euro

Derivative Financial Instrument

(Rs.InLacs)

2018-19  2017-18

(+/-)5%  (+/-) 5%

83.92  (95.92)
60.35 97.60

— 14427 168

The group holds Derivative financial instrument such as foreign currency forward and option contracts to mitigate the
risk of changes in exchange rate on foreign currency exposures. The counterparty for this contract is generally a Bank.
Althoughthe group believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic perspective these do not qualify
forhedgeaccountingasperINDAS 109, Financialinstrument. Sincetheabovederivativesarenotdesignatedashedges,
such derivatives are categorised as financial asset or financial liability at fair value through profit & loss.

(Rs. InLacs)

Derivatives not designated as hedges
Forward Contracts

Option Contracts

As at
31stMarch, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

Foreign  Fair Value
Currency as on
31.03.2018

USD  12,400,940.00

usD 400,000.00

Foreign Fair Value
Currency as on
31.03.2018

(99.87) 5,550,000.00 64.74
EURO 155,925.00 (1.71)

(5.46) 4,000,000.00 2212
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(iii) Commodity price risk
Principal Raw Material for Group’s products is variety of plastic polymers which are primarily Derivatives of Crude Qil.
Group sourcesits raw material requirementfrom across the globe. Domestic market prices are alsogenerally remainsin
syncwithinternational market price scenario. Volatility in Crude Oil prices, Currency fluctuation of Rupee vis-a-vis other
prominent currencies coupled withdemand-supply scenarioin the world market affect the effective price and availability
of polymers for the Group. Group effectively manages with availability of material as well as price volatility through:
1. Widening its sourcing base
2. Appropriate contracts and commitments
3. Well planned procurement & inventory strategy and
4. Prudent hedging policy on foreign currency exposure
Risk committee ofthe Group comprisingmembers from Board of Directors and operations has developed and enacted a
risk management strategy regarding commaodity Price risk and its mitigation.

(b) Credit Risk
Creditrisk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leadingtoafinancialloss. The Groupis exposedto creditrisk fromits operating activities (primarily trade receivables and
advances to suppliers) and fromits financing activities, including deposits and otherfinancial instruments.

(i) Trade Receivables

Customercreditriskis managed by each business unit subjecttothe Group’s established policy, procedures and control
relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. An impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients.

The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in
several jurisdictions and operate in largely independent markets.

The ageing analysis of the receivables (gross of provisions) have been considered from the date of the invoice falls due.

(Rs.InLacs)

As at As at
31st March, 31st March,

2019 2018

Less than 6 months 29,515.31 33,815.94
6 to 12 months 738.08 107.56
more than 12 months 512.37 55.61
Total __30,765.76 33,979.12

(i) Financial Instruments and Cash and bank balances
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group’s treasury department in
accordance with the Group’s policy. Credit limits of all authorities are reviewed by the Management on regular basis. All
balances with banks and financial institutions is subject to low credit risk due to good credit ratings assigned to these
entities.

(c) Liquidity Risk
The Group monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool. The Group’s objective is to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of cash credit, letter of credit, factoring,bill discounting
and working capital limits.
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual payments.

(Rs.InLacs)
Less than 1to5 >5years Total
1year years
31stMarch,2019
Borrowings

Term Loans from Banks 1,626.58 3,022.36 4,648.94

Long Term Loans from Others 28.08 2,007.50 2,035.58

Cash credit from Banks 2,527.95 2,527.95

Buyers credit from Banks - -

WCDL from Bank 4,500.00 4,500.00
Other Financial Liabilities other than current maturities of 1,569.93 1,569.93
borrowings and lease obligation
Trade Payables 29,019.77 29,019.77

39,272.31 5,029.86 - 44,302.17
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31stMarch, 2018

Borrowings
Term Loans from Banks
Long Term Loans from Others
Cash credit from Banks

Borrowing from Bank-Factoring/Bill discounting

Buyers credit from Banks

Other Financial Liabilities other than current maturities of

borrowings and lease obligation
Trade Payables

44 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Less than 1to5

>5years Total

1year years
1,501.58 4,626.23 6,127.81
- 1,862.27 1,862.27
12,090.36 12,090.36
2,350.74 2,350.74
1,151.54 1,151.54
26,834.00 26,834.00
_43,928.20 6,488.50 - 50,416.71

A. Forthe purpose of the Group’s capital management, equity includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity share holders, including capital reserve and net debtincludes interest bearing
loans and borrowings except cash and cash equivalents. The primary objective of the Group’s capitalmanagementis to
safeguard continuity, maintain astrong creditratingand healthy capital ratios in orderto supportits business and provide
adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. The funding requirement is met through a mixture of equity, internal accruals,
long term borrowings and short term borrowings. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt

divided by total capital plus net debt.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it
meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements.

Borrowings

Less: Current investments

Less: Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Net Debt

(b) Equity
(c) Equity and Net Debt (a+b)

Gearing Ratio (a/c)

B. Proposed Dividend

(Rs.InLacs)
As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018

13,712.47 22,431.18

1,883.83  1,687.83

15,596.30 24,119.01

31,773.13  29,579.99

47,369.43 53,698.99

32.92% 44.92%

The Board of directors in its Board meeting held on 28th May 2018 have recommended the payment of a final dividend
of Rs 0.12 paise per fully paid up equity share (March 31,2018 - Rs 0.24 paise), The proposed dividend is subject to the
approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

45 EARNINGPERSHARE (EPS)

(a) Face value of equity shares

(b) Profit attributable to equity shareholders

(c) Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
(d) Weightedaverage Earning Per Share (Basicand Diluted)

Rs.

Rs. (in Lacs)

Nos.
Rs.

(Rs.InLacs)
As at As at
31st March 31st March
2019 2018
2.00 2.00
2,561.75 2,197.24
940.73 940.73
2.72 2.34
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46 RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES

The Group hasin-house R&D centre. The details of revenue/capital expenditure incurred by the said R&D Centre during the
year are as follows:-

(Rs.InLacs)
As at Asat
(a) Revenueexpenditure charged to Statement of Profitand Loss 31st March 31st March
2019 2018
Other Expenses 36.93 16.08
(b) Capital expenditure shown underfixed assets schedule 89.51 102.17
GrandTotal 126.45 118.26
47 ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY
(Rs.InLacs)
The carrying amount of Assets pledged as security for current and non current borrowings are :- As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018
A. Current
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 30,133.90  33,360.06
Other Current Assets 5,474.05 6,395.35
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,883.83 1,697.51
Non Financial Assets
Inventories 16,225.47  15,910.87
Total Current Assets Pledged as Security 53,717.25 57,363.78
B. Non Current
Movable and immovable properties located at Surangi Unit 14,592.81  14,220.24
Movable and immovable properties located at Daman Unit 1,937.92 1,645.17
Movable and immovable properties located at Silvassa Unit 1,535.01 1,511.87
Movable and immovable properties located at Bhasa Unit 611.36 631.70
Movable properties located at Dhulagarh Unit 3,607.22 -
Propertylocated atD-403, Dharam Place, CHS Limited, Shantivan, Borivalli (E), Mumbai-
400066
Exclusive Charge
Immovable properties located at Bhasa Unit. - 131.99

Notes -

1 RupeeLoanfrom SBI,HDFCandIDFC are secured by 1stpari passu charge by way of equitable mortgage over
all presentand future movable andimmovable properties located at Silvasa, Surangi, Daman and Bhasa Units and
movable fixed assets at Dhulagarh Unit and 2nd pari passu charge by way of hypothecation over entire current
assets, stock and book debts of the company both present and future.

2 Working Capital facilities (fund based and non fund based limits) are secured by 1st pari passu charge by way
of equitable mortgage over property located at D-403, Dharam Place, CHS Limited, Shantivan, Borivalli (E),
Mumbai-400066 and by way of hypothecationoverentire currentassets, stockandtradereceivables ofthe company
both present and future and 2nd pari passu charge by way of equitable mortgage over all present and future
movable andimmovable properties located at Silvasa, Surangi, Daman and Bhasa Units and movable fixed assets
at Dhulagarh Unit.
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48 VALUE OF IMPORTED AND INDEGENEOUS MATERIAL CONSUMED (Rs. In Lacs)
As at %age of As at %age of
Particulars 31st March, Total Con- 31st March, Total Con-
2019 sumption 2018 sumption
Raw Materials
i Imported 56,477.94 32% 66,497.29 44%
ii Indegeneos 119,955.11 68% 84,575.41 56%
Total 176,433.05 100% 151,072.69  100%
Store, Spare parts and Components
i Imported 181.19 30% 149.02 35%
ii  Indegeneous 432.73 70% 277.65 65%
Total 613.92 100% 426.67 __100%
49 VALUE OF IMPORTS ONCIF BASIS
(Rs.InLacs)
As at As at

Particulars

Raw Materials
Stors, Spare parts and Components
Capital Goods

Total

50 EARNING IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (ACCRUAL BASIS)

Particulars

ExportsatFOBValue

Total

51 EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (ACCRUAL BASIS)

Particulars

Travelling
Exhibition
Interest
Other Matters

Total

31st March, 31stMarch,

2019 2018
47,869.71  60,564.17
181.19 150.51
600.50 140.31
48,651.40 60,854.99
(Rs. InLacs)
As at As at

31st March, 31stMarch,
2019 2018

29,899.27 32,409.19

29,899.27 32,409.19
(Rs.InLacs)
As at As at

31st March, 31st March,

2019 2018
15.76 11.69
30.08 12.99

129.62 112.46
438.23 5.74
613.69 14287
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52 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate affairs have notified Ind AS 116 — “Leases”. Ind AS 116 will replace the existing
leases standards Ind AS 17 — “Leases” and related interpretations. The new standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosures of lease for both lease and lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lease accounting
model and requires aleassee to recognise the assets and liabilities for all leases with aterm of more than 12 months, unless
the underlying assets are of low value. Ind AS 116 substantially carried forward the accounting treatment prescribed for lessor.
Theeffective dateforadoption of Ind AS 116is annual period beginning on orafter April01,2019. The Groupis evaluating the
impact of the issued Ind AS 116 on its financial statements.

The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 also notified amendments to the following accounting
standards. The amendments would be effective from April 1, 2019.

1. Ind AS 12, Income taxes — Appendix C on uncertainty over income tax treatments

.Ind AS 12, Income Taxes - Accounting for Dividend Distribution Taxes

.Ind AS 23, Borrowingcosts

. Ind AS 28 — Investment in associates and joint ventures

.Ind AS 103 and Ind AS 111 — Business combinations and joint arrangements

. Ind AS 109 — Financial instruments

7. Ind AS 19 — Employee benefits

The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of such amendments.

Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged/ reclassified where necessary to correspond with current year figures.

[o 23N &) BF -GN S}

For B. Mukherjee & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No:302096E

Narrindra Suranna Rajesh Kothari
(DIN: 00060127) (DIN: 02168932)
Chairman and Managing Director Whole Time Director
B. Mukherjee
Partner
Membership No.002941 Tanvi Panday Indar Chand Dakalia
Date : 28th May, 2019 (Membership No. ACS 31176) Chief Financial Officer
Place : Kolkata Company Secretary
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